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CORPORATE PROFILE

APl

In 1669, Beijing Tong Ren Tang was founded
during the eighth year of Emperor Kangxi’s
reign during the Qing Dynasty. Starting in
1728, Beijing Tong Ren Tang exclusively
provided Chinese medicine to the royal
family for 188 years, spanning the reigns of
eight emperors. Throughout history, Beijing
Tong Ren Tang has always been nationally
renowned in the Chinese medicinal industry.
Over 350 years of dedication to quality
medicinal products, we have continuously
upheld our longstanding commitment to
“Never cut corners on labour and quality,
no matter how complex the process or how
costly the materials”. Our self-discipline

is also seen from our motto: “Dedication
comes from the heart in the steps that no
one else can see”. We are meticulous in

our manufacturing process and strive for
excellence, using superior crude materials
and meticulous technical skill. Only the most
effective, unique formulas are passed down
and refined into our famed products.

“Established as the sole Chinese medicine
provider to royal families, Tong Ren Tang
is an enduring national brand that has
overcome various vicissitudes — from
recessions to enemy invasions to the
establishment of the People's Republic of
China. Tong Ren Tang is a truly a historical
symbol of quality and credibility.”

Quote from "Tong Ren Tang: Inheritance and
Development”by Bian Dong Zi
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No blockage, no pain.
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The acupuncture points of the human
body can be divided into three types:
the acupoints, the external (odd)
points and the Ashi points. The
meridian points refer to the acupoints
on the Fourteen Meridians,

with a total of well names,
which are the most important part of
the . Among them, the

acupoints of the twelve meridians are
bilaterally symmetric, and the Renmai
and Dumai points are distributed in
the midline of the front and the back.
One point is a single point.
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{ CHINESE ACUPOINT TREATMENT >

Acupoint

enge 1

o
\ Fengchi acupoints, two acupoints of the foot Shaoyang gallbladder meridian of the human body, are
also called Refu acupoints. They are found on the two sides of the main arteries in the back of the
head at the points lying horizontally to the earlobes. Blood running through the gallbladder is
I e ltons) Elinese metlEi; theoretically gathered at these acupoints to form heat.
acupressure is a therapy used for J
restoring or improving body EUBRRABH AN BIBRBFR  EREREAFTHIWMEEEETITE B
funetions by pressing certain parts EERAROBRE - EABERERNENRAR(CBBRAR -

of the body by hand or through
some limb stretches. Massage is
regarded as one of the oldest
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They are effective in preventing and Press the Fengchi acupoints respectively by the two middle
treating neck and back pain, cervical fingers in an upward direction for two minutes. Massage

pain, neck stiffness, respiratory the acupoints twice a day. Do not do so after intensive
problems, chest pain, palpitation, etc. exercise when the body is sweating for detoxification.

WREAEAME BARF . BEFHREERBERLN BHhBEOETH
T PHER WSRO L SEREOR SRBE25E - HAEH
- BEEX - BENHETTRERALR  EAKEE AR
\:> > ERMOHBRE -




F 3% Techniques

Place the right palm on the side of the left hand dorsum and press the Hegu acupoint of the Yangming
large intestine meridian with the thumb (the point where the thumbtip is at when the first horizontal
line of the right thumb is placed in the middle of the left hand’s purlicue). 50 times for each side.
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M B8 Effect

Desirable pain relief effect for toothache, sore throat, headache and abdominal pain. Treatment of

cold, dizziness, weariness, tinnitus, deafness, neurasthenia, etc.
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i A 7% Hegu Acupoint

Hegu acupoint is an acupoint of the Yangming large
intestine meridian. “He” means joining together while
“gu” means valley. This acupoint is named so
because it is found in a valley-like part of the hand
where the first metacarpal bone and the second
metacarpal bone join together. The acupoint is in the
middle of the junction of the metacarpal bone and the
second metacarpal bone on the hand dors
easy way to locate the acupoint is t
horizontal line of a thumb on the t
web of another hand. The ac

thumbtip.
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{ CHINESE ACUPOINT TREATMENT >

Acupoint

/usanli

The word “Sanli” in Zusanli acupoint refers to its efficacy in
treating all of the upper, middle and lower parts. Treatment of
abdominal discomfort is among the numerous functions of
Zusanli. In treating abdominal discomfort, methods for
massaging Zusanli acupoint vary with different parts of

abdomen.
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During massage, the two thumbtips are continuously
and evenly pressed on the Zusanli acupoints in both

legs with an increasing force.
RERAWMEFNBERRD BZREREMBNZE
ZER BHAEEHE - BEMmMYIHANIZE -

It is mainly used for treatment of gastrointestinal
disorder, mental illness, head, face, eye, nose, mouth
and tooth diseases, as well as lesions of body
meridian points.
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ToNG REN TANG AT A GLANCEIN 2019
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JANUARY —H

- Held The Belt & Road Initiative Chinese Medicine International

Development Summit and Overseas Conference in Hong Kong
REBERP —F B FEEERCRRANEBEEITES

MAY B#A

Held “Capital State-owned Enterprises Open Day” at Tai Po
Production and R&D Base as well as the flagship store in Hong
Kong and retail outlet in Macao
REBRFLEEMBEWREEENRMBELARET [ FHEL
BRk A

»  Opened one more retail outlet in Macao

REFER -RTER R

OCTOBER 1H

- Opened one more retail outlet in Sydney, Australia
RBAFZEBIER -REBERR

DECEMBER +—H

= Grand opening of relocation of Dominion Road shop in Auckland,
New Zealand
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
I

Profit Attributable
Revenue Gross Profit Profit for the Year To Owners of the Company =—
WA EH A B R E /L ZEN
JRE A 10 1
HK$'000 HK$'000 | 078,421 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET 1.513.873 F#&T 078, 1,012,796 FET 601,323 F#&T
iy 1,432,632 ! 576,852 580,720
1,500,000 432, 1,000,000 600,000 . 600,000 720 ges 118
1,250,000 500,000 e 500,000 489,957
230/ 800,000 ' ' 420,315
1,000,000 400,000 400,000
600,000 22
750,000 420,043 300,000 300000,
400,000 215 ’
500,000 200,000 (- 200,000
250,000 200,000 100,000 100,000
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for UTAREEBRTILAMBRFENCE AHEBUREEREENE -

the past seven financial years.
For the year ended 31 December & Z 12 B 31 HILFE

2019 HK$’000 2018 HK$’000 2017 HK$’000 2016 HK$’000 2015 HK$’000 2014 HK$’000 2013 HK$’000

20195 F#& T 2018F FH T 2017F TH T 2016 F TH T 201545 THE T 20145 THE T 2013 F FHE T
Revenue WA 1,432,632 1,513,873 1,265,994 1,084,280 970,477 761,051 613,963
Gross profit £ 1,012,796 1,078,421 916,433 795,087 680,877 543,031 420,043
Profit before income tax Bk fr15%: A1 F 8 689,222 720,898 610,966 532,270 456,614 355,219 271,466
Profit for the year £ E ;8 576,852 601,323 505,512 439,880 374,578 294,698 227,548
Profit attributable to owners of the Company Z& A T# & A FE14 FH 556,118 580,720 489,967 420,315 354,249 287,124 220,001
Earnings per share (HK$) R ZF (B 7T) 0.66 0.69 0.59 0.50 0.42 0.35 0.29
Dividend per share (HK$) KR E (B T)
Final 7R &f 0.23 0.23 0.19 0.16 0.13 0.10 0.08
Special interim 45 Bl 7 HA 0.72 = = = = = =

As at 31 December 212 B 31 H
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2019 HK$’000 2018 HK$’000

2019F FTH T 20185 TE T
Non-current assets JERENE E 494,506 424,621
Current assets BN EE 2,643,815 2,746,464
Total assets A& E 3,138,321 3,171,085
Non-current liabilities 3R & & 65,604 5,927
Current liabilities TR & & 307,081 140,931
Total liabilities & & 372,685 146,858
Net assets EEFE 2,765,636 3,024,227
Financial Metrics 8 %512
Gross profit margin &R = 70.7% 71.2%
Net profit margin #i%| = 40.3% 39.7%
Current ratio fEhtb = 8.6 19.5
Return on equity BRZ<[E 3R = 20.9% 19.9%
Return on assets & & B #{ & 18.4% 19.0%
Dividend payout ratio JK 2 Lt = 34.6% 33.2%

Note: There are changes in accounting policies in 2019 which the Group has elected to apply without restating comparative figures as
permitted by the relevant financial reporting standards. Details are set out in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

2017 HK$’000

2017 TH T

405,768
2,354,887
2,760,655
5,024
147,454

152,478
2,608,177

72.4%
39.9%

16.0
19.4%
18.3%
32.5%

MiEE : AEER2019FFEHTEERREE  UREHAUNBREENAFTEETEMRLEH

2016 HK$’000
2016 F TR T
398,176
1,956,646
2,354,822
4,694

122,891

127,585
2,227,237

73.3%
40.6%

{519
19.8%
18.7%
31.9%

2015 HK$’000
20155 TH T
372,795
1,654,190
2,026,985
5,352

112,718

118,070
1,908,915

70.2%
38.6%

14.7
19.6%
18.5%
30.7%

B FRHNEAHUBERME20) -

2014 HK$’000
20145 THE T
312,890
1,319,651
1,632,541
4,675

91,005

95,680
1,636,861

71.4%
38.7%

14.5
19.2%
18.1%
29.2%

2013 HK$’000
2013F FHB T

251,493
1,158,622
1,410,115

4,248
96,148

100,396
1,309,719

68.4%
37.1%

121
17.4%
16.1%
30.2%
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

While China is playing a more important role in the world stage
boasting 70 years of perseverant endeavour,

Tong Ren Tang is well-prepared to penetrate the overseas market
as backed by its precious experience accumulated for 350 years.
We impress the world with one single prescription of
trustworthy TCM, and make our dream of a healthy world come
true through a new option for health.
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As the mystery of TCM is gradually unveiled by scientists, the efficacy of TCM can be recorded in a scientific manner, and
the progress of its scientification and acceptance by the global health system accelerate accordingly. While celebrating the
70th anniversary of New China and the 350th anniversary of Tong Ren Tang, this time-honoured brand is making more
steadfast steps in its overseas expansion. Along its path of TCM development, Tong Ren Tang is connecting the aspiration
for good health of both the West and the East.

SHARE THE SAME BREATH WITH CHINA, SHARE THE SAME
DESTINY WITH THE WORLD

2019 marks the 70th anniversary of New China and the 350th anniversary of Tong Ren Tang. Thanks to TCM, the global
health industry has been changing eventually. The 11th edition of the International Classification of Diseases and the
“Opinions of the State Council on Promoting the Preservation, Innovation, and Development of Traditional Chinese
Medicine” presage the connection between TCM and the world health system. As China is getting stronger, TCM will serve
as a new element of the global health community. With its base in China, Tong Ren Tang is going abroad to present to the
world the in-depth value and content of a traditional civilization with the distinctive features of TCM.

SERVE OUR MISSIONS WITH CULTURE, MEET OTHERS’ DEMANDS
WITH KINDNESS

During the Year, we conducted the first overseas Tong Ren Tang plaque cleansing (complimenting) ceremony, in which
Tong Ren Tang fellows from different parts of the world gathered together to cleanse the plaque, which once again
solidified our very first commitment to and mission of contributing TCM to the world. We continued and strengthened our
conventional charity activities. The State-owned Enterprise Open Day was organised in both Hong Kong and Macao to
allow local citizens to gain a better knowledge about TCM culture. We were honoured to have Mrs. Carrie Lam Cheng
Yuet-ngor, Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region as our guest to learn more about Tong Ren
Tang’s overseas development over 20 years. From August to November this Year, we organised a series of activities under
the 3rd Show Love and Care to Stroke Prevention campaign, such as health seminars on stroke prevention, free TCM
consultation services and elderly home visits in both Hong Kong and Macao. Large-scale free TCM consultation services
and healthcare seminars were also held in Australia. To enhance the TCM market penetration in Singapore, health seminars
were held in April, May, July and September, and a free medical consultation session was organised on the first Saturday
of each month. The 2019 Dubai-Macao TCM exchange program launching ceremony was held in Dubai in May. All these
activities enabled the overseas markets to have a more in-depth understanding of Tong Ren Tang, thus enhancing the
influence of our brand name in the international market.

70 4 HEHE B A > I OE 1 i B K s
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

OVERCOME THE DIFFICULTIES AND HINDRANCE, PROTECT OUR
FUNDAMENTAL INTERESTS

During the Year, a large-scale social event broke out in Hong Kong, which has seriously affected inbound tourism in Hong
Kong and the willingness of spending of the public and has resulted in a heavy blow to the retail sector. Nevertheless, the
Group managed to overcome all those difficulties. With a focus on our fundamental interests, the Company has actively
expanded its sales channels to improve business performance. We have strengthened efforts in primary research to keep
abreast of market demands, and have insisted on reform-driven development to enhance operating efficiency and achieve
higher management efficacy. As this Year happens to be the 350th anniversary of Tong Ren Tang and the 15th anniversary
of the Company, a special dividend of over HK$600 million in aggregate was distributed to reward our shareholders for
their trust in, and support to, the Tong Ren Tang brand and its overseas development.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2020, the global economy will still be exposed to various risks, such as the potential risks on the global
economic growth arising from the uncertainties of the China-US trade dispute and the hard Brexit. Subject to the uncertain
outcome of the China-US trade dispute and the impacts of the outbreak of novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) at the
beginning of 2020, the global economy is under downward pressure. Meanwhile, TCM has demonstrated a remarkable
clinical value in the epidemic of novel coronavirus disease. PRC has continued to update the TCM solutions with Angong
Niuhuang Wan chosen as one of the treatments. TCM has played a tide-turning role throughout the control of the epidemic
outbreak. The Group has established a “global coronavirus prevention and treatment expert team”, through which high
quality TCM resources are integrated, and our global presence covering more than 20 countries and region is utilized.
Great TCM Masters and TCM experts at home and abroad present their tailor-made “one country one strategy” TCM
epidemic prevention solutions to overseas, jointly contributing their wisdom and strength to build a human community of
shared future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The 350th anniversary marks a new starting point. With its original intention and missions remain unchanged, Tong Ren
Tang holds fast to its commitment to serve people around the world who desire good health, and also to its vision to
contribute the distinctive Chinese wisdom to the global health community. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express
our sincere gratitude and appreciation to all employees both at home and abroad for their dedication, loyalty, selflessness,
passion, commitment and efforts, and to our shareholders, customers, business partners and local governments for their
trust and support.

Ding Yong Ling
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PR ) R M o e

A new journey in a new era begins upon 15 years of endeavour. TIEEFIRA o B R AR o
We hold fast to our original intention with firm belief, and RO EES AR R o
continue with our mission and commitment to health. WA 2RI | BN -

On our path towards “Healthy Life Global Choice”, we

= ) Y :l:b —
contribute to the global community of shared health with A T 5 A B i A )
Tong Ren Tang’s distinctive TCM strengths. HEE R h R ) & o
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Overview L

Founded in 1669, Tong Ren Tang celebrates its 350th anniversary this Year. With such a long history, it has developed as a FI—ZBH1669F Al ESEHI0F BELELRL  CRERATERHFAFBENE

well-established and time-honored brand in China and among the global Chinese community. Leveraged on the reform FHRmE VWEBZFAER - EAHER EORXEHRERARI-F—BIER B

and opening of the PRC as well as the Belt and Road Initiative in the new era, Tong Ren Tang reached out to the world and EELEM BTEEABESEREEN RATPBEENEETHBNELRBE - EAL

spread the wisdom of traditional Chinese medicine overseas, and became an important vehicle and cultural symbol of ARCEEEESIMBETS  AEEEAE20BERMHERL T 7T1EAZEL

TCM. As an overseas development platform of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group, the Group has established 71 retail outlets in FERTIIEES IR AEERINERRAEHGRE -

20 countries and regions in total. We anchored in Hong Kong while marching to the world, thus establishing an international

network. 2019F  EIRANEBEAZEEY  2HRREREBE BFZREIZHRE FEXEFER
FEHREEZLRY HPELSEEFEEPRBEETIEY  REWEDE  HEZE

In 2019, due to the fast-changing situation at home and abroad, global economic development has slowed down and trade B ERFERAR FEBE2019F6 A ERBAELEEN BEFYELEHEFARRR

protectionism has emerged, and the China-US trade tension has also cast a shadow on the global economy. The Chinese HEEN HUEZE  RE ERETETRAIETE  FEEZULAZ -

economy displayed a downward trend as a whole amid the new norm and investment growth has slowed down.

Consumption was under pressure and was exposed to the risk of stagflation. Since June 2019, a large-scale social event HHEXRNWHLERRELERE  AEEBRFURRNAZARE  REEBEFEENKE

broke out in Hong Kong, which has seriously affected inbound tourism in Hong Kong and the public willingness of g MERBREBNRERE BEEREE  BLEKMR FEER ="EREET

spending, and has brought a heavy blow to a number of sectors, such as retail, tourism and catering, with an extensive FREZEHLAAEANEEEE - NF, AEEERKA1,432.6 5 BB T (2018%F :

impact. 1,513.988 B ) B THKS5.4%; BEFFBE576.9BE BT (2018F 1 601.3EHE
Br) BHETEH%41%: BEABGF BERS56.1 B 8E T (20185F 1 580.78 B8

In face of the complicated situation and economic environment, the Group adhered to the interests of shareholders as well 7)o BT ¥4.2%  BREBFH0.668 (20185 1 0.69/ ) » AL T#0.03E T °

as a stable progressive business strategy, strengthened risk management and brand protection, stringently controlled EFGEBERMTRERESR0.238 7T (20184 1 0.238 ) °

product quality, optimized business layout, laid a solid foundation, and overcame adversities to on the Company brought
by various factors. During the Year, the revenue of the Group was HK$1,432.6 million (2018: HK$1,513.9 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 5.4%; net profit was HK$576.9 million (2018: HK$601.3 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of 4.1%. Our profit attributable to owners was HK$556.1 million (2018: HK$580.7 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.2%. Earnings per share was HK$0.66 (2018: HK$0.69), representing a year-on-
year decrease of HK$0.03. The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.23 per share (2018:
HK$0.23).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Market

Adhering to the development strategy of “Anchor in Hong Kong and Asia and march to overseas”, the Group has served
Hong Kong for more than 15 years and the Hong Kong market has also become our top priority. In the first half of 2019,
the revenue generated from the Hong Kong market increased by 21.5% period-on-period. Since mid-June this Year,
affected by the large-scale social event in Hong Kong, and under the environment in which sectors such as tourism, retail
and catering were greatly impacted, the Group has also been affected. The retail business experienced a sharp decline and
the wholesale business was also impacted, resulting in a significant decrease in operating income in the second half of the
Year. In addition, due to the expiry of property lease, the number of retail outlets in Hong Kong decreased from 27 of last
year to 23 to further optimize the retail market in Hong Kong. The revenue from the Hong Kong market for the Year was
HK$790.2 million (2018: HK$807.3 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.1% with a same-store revenue
decrease of 14.6%.

Retail Network

F AR

Australia J® A F 28 Hong Kong &8 Singapore i3 UAE B2
Brunei 3 Macao &P Sweden £ UK ZE
Cambodia RIHZE Malaysia 55 75 52 Switzerland ¥+ Us %E
Canada & X New Zealand ¥i7# () Thailand % E

Czech Republic #£32 Poland JX# The Netherlands T8

Non-Hong Kong market

With the cornerstone of the Group in Hong Kong, the Group actively explored the overseas market and spread the brand of
Tong Ren Tang and TCM culture. Amid the general downfall of the global economy as well as the fast-changing and
complicated international relations, the Group continued its study on macroeconomics and the regional market. It
constantly optimized and reformed its global business layout with ongoing development. During the Year, the business
network of the Group covered major countries and regions of Asia, Oceania, North America and Europe, coupled with 48
retail outlets, representing a net decrease of 6 from the previous year. Adhering to the quality improvement requirement
raised by Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the Group conducted a comprehensive review of overseas companies. Two retail
outlets in Poland were merged and the market in South Africa and retail outlets in US and Canada were also
comprehensively rectified to underpin the basis and improve the quality of operations. In the same year, we also added a
retail outlet in each of Macao and Sydney to further increase our market share in these markets. During the Year, the
Group's revenue from overseas markets was HK$338.8 million (2018: HK$332.9 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of 1.8% with a same-store revenue decrease of 6.1%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For market in Mainland China, in view of the negative impact of the "Honey Incident" on the brand image of Tong Ren
Tang, Beijing Tong Ren Tong Group focused on improving the internal management during the Year. It commenced an
introspective examination and rectification of risks of quality management, thus the Parent Group slowed down the
procurement of the Owned Products from the Group. Since the adjustment of the industrial layout of the Parent Group and
the relocation of new production base which resulted in short-term transition issues between the old and new production
base, the supply of Tong Ren Tang products for export has experienced a temporary shortage. Given the difficulties we
experienced, revenue generated from the market in Mainland China for the Year was only HK$303.7 million (2018:
HK$373.6 million), representing a year-on-year decline of 18.7%.

Production and Research and Development

The Group’s Production and R&D base in Tai Po, Hong Kong obtained the GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) for
Proprietary Chinese medicine certification, International Standard 1ISO22000:2005 (Food Safety Management Systems) and
the HACCP (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points) certification. With the stringent quality management system,
standardized production process and high safety coefficient, the base has been able to provide full guarantee for the
production of quality products.

The Group continued to focus on its core business, enriched its product offerings and resources, and successfully
completed the registration of three proprietary Chinese medicines in Hong Kong during the Year. We will continue to
develop new products in line with the development trend in general health in order to meet the extensive market demand
for regulating body functions and preventing diseases.

With a focus on core varieties, greater efforts have been put into the development of independent intellectual property
rights which involved invention patents, utility models, appearance, copyrights and authorship etc.. While expanding to the
overseas market, Tong Ren Tang has continuously accumulated independent intellectual property rights, explored global
patents layout and applied rules of international intellectual property rights in order to protect and enrich the core values of
Tong Ren Tang'’s products. As of the end of 2019, we have successfully filed applications for a total of 53 patents
(including Mainland China, Hong Kong and international PCT (Patent Cooperation Treaty) patents), which provided
sufficient protection for the dominant products of Tong Ren Tang.

In order to further expand the results of scientific research, we will continue to cooperate with internationally renowned
universities at home and abroad for the purpose of researching on safety and functioning mechanism of key products. The
research project conducted in cooperation with universities in Hong Kong on the safety and functioning mechanism of
application of Angong Niuhuang Wan in the treatment of acute ischemic stroke successfully passed the inspection of the
Innovation and Technology Commission in Hong Kong and special funding support was granted. After confirming the
anti-tumor effect of one of our Lingzi products by universities in the US, we continued to conduct in-depth research in
order to expand product applications, further standardize and guide the rational use of products as well as provide new
ideas for setting targets of developing the new market. We cooperated with raw material suppliers to establish
biotechnology research and development centre for conducting a series of process technology studies on ganoderma
lucidum spore powder and ganoderma extract, thereby guaranteeing the quality of key products from the source. We also
cooperated with renowned domestic
companies for the commencement of
anti-counterfeiting technology upgrade
projects and applied near field
communication (NFC) technology, which
is currently widely used in mobile
payment and intelligent transportation, in
anti-counterfeiting of design. With its
unique anti-counterfeiting function which
can prevent impacts on market of
counterfeit products, the radio frequency
identification (RFID) chip supported by
physical unclonable function (PUF)
technology was viewed as a milestone in
protecting consumer rights, further
strengthening the trust of consumers in
the Tong Ren Tang brand and enhancing
the legitimacy and authority of the brand
in the market.
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Brand promotion

As a reputable and time-honored enterprise in China
with 350 years of wisdom in Chinese medicine, Tong
Ren Tang is not only an economic entity but also a
carrier of Chinese medicine culture which bears the
major mission on promoting such culture to the world.
The Group launched a series of brand promotion
activities during the Year, dedicating to the
dissemination of the brand and culture of “Tong Ren
Tang” overseas.

For the Hong Kong market, the Group adheres to the
philosophy of “Take root in the community to serve”
and is concerned about public health. This year marks
the 350th anniversary of the establishment of “Tong
Ren Tang”. As a result, the Group has placed
advertisements for the brand in major media and
newspapers, cross-harbour tunnels, cross-border ports, and tram stations in core business districts in Hong Kong to
celebrate the “350th Anniversary of Ten Ren Tang” and promoted the long history and culture as well as quality products
and superb technique of Tong Ren Tang. The Company also held the 4th “Capital State-owned Enterprise Open Day”,
which attracted hundreds of people to visit the Tai Po Production and R&D Base and Cultural Museum to experience the
advanced production technology and long history and culture of the Group, strengthening their trust in the Group's
products and recognition of the brand. Meanwhile, the Group continued to hold the “4th Show Love and Care to Stroke
Prevention” activity, including organizing health seminars on stroke prevention to educate the public with professional
information; organizing free medical consultations from time to time which attracted thousands of people to participate;
visiting elderly homes to care for the health of the elderly. The Company also regularly released health information on social
media, interacted with supporters and offered promotional discounts during festive seasons to give back to the public.

For the overseas markets, the Group also actively acts in concert with business development and strengthens the
promotion of the brand of “Tong Ren Tang” in various markets. During the Year, Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland)
Company Limited participated in co-organizing the 2019 “China Tourism Culture Week — TCM Culture and New Zealand
Healthy Journey Promotion”, which was held in Wellington, capital of New Zealand, and offered free medical consultations
by medical practitioners at the event, and the “health tourism” route of Chinese medicine in Beijing was promoted overseas
for the first time. For the European markets, leveraging on its geographical advantages, Beijing Tong Ren Tang Swiss SA
organized TCM health seminars and free consultations for representative organisations in the United Nations and the World
Trade Organization, so as to promote the brand of Tong Ren Tang to international organizations. For the Dubai market,
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC sponsored the “2019 Dubai-Macao TCM Cultural Exchange Program”, offering
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

consultations and treatments in relation to Chinese medicine, which fully demonstrated the brand and products of Tong
Ren Tang and further enhanced the influence of Chinese medicine and the brand of Tong Ren Tang in Dubai. This year
coincides with the 20th anniversary of the return of Macao. Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Company Limited organized
“State-owned Enterprise Open Day” activities for the first time to let the Macao public further understanding of the
international development of Tong Ren Tang. In addition, the Group also conducted regular online and offline marketing
activities at its local companies and retail outlets in markets such as Singapore, Australia, Europe and North America to
serve the local people and maintain their attention towards the brand of Tong Ren Tang.

The outstanding brand image and excellent product quality of the Group have also been widely recognized and
commended by the market. The Group was granted the “World Branding Award 2019-2020 (Global Tier)” by the World
Branding Forum in the United Kingdom, the “Leader in Naturopathic Medicine” in the 9th Polish Businesswomen Congress,
the “Most influential brand in Asia: Traditional Chinese Medicine — Most Trustworthy Brand” by Influential Brands in
Singapore, and the “Outstanding Chinese Medicines Enterprise in China” by the Hong Kong Chinese Medicine Association
during the Year, indicating the remarkable achievement of the internationalization of the “Tong Ren Tang” brand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human Resources Management
As at 31 December 2019, we had a total of 798 employees (2018: 817 employees).

The staff costs of the Group for the Year were HK$215.3 million (2018: HK$201.4 million), representing an increase of 6.9%
from last year, which was primarily due to the annual salary increment. To ensure that the Group is able to attract and
retain talents, remuneration policies are reviewed on a regular basis. In addition, the discretionary bonus is offered to
employees with outstanding performance with reference to the Group’s results and individual performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the Year was HK$1,432.6 million (2018: HK$1,513.9 million), representing a decrease of 5.4%
from last year. As affected by the large-scale social event in Hong Kong, the Group’s retail and wholesale business in Hong
Kong experienced a sharp decline, resulting in a significant decrease in revenue from Hong Kong in the second half of the
Year. In addition, in view of the negative impact of the “Honey Incident” on the brand image of Tong Ren Tang, the Parent
Group focused on improving the internal management and an introspective examination and rectification of risks of quality
management during the Year, thus slowing down the procurement of the Owned Products from the Group. Due to the
adjustment of the industrial layout of the Parent Group and the relocation of new production base which resulted in short-
term transition issues between the old and new production base, the supply of Tong Ren Tang products for export has
experienced a temporary shortage.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 6.1% to HK$1,012.8 million (2018: HK$1,078.4 million). The gross profit margin
decreased from 71.2% last year to 70.7% this Year, which was mainly due to the increase in the cost of raw materials.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses decreased by 14.6% to HK$199.1 million (2018: HK$233.2 million). The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in rental expenses along with the decrease in the number of retail outlets as well
as the decrease in advertising and promotion expenses brought about by the cancellation of large-scale advertising and
promotion activities in the second half of the Year caused by the impact of the social event in Hong Kong. Distribution and
selling expenses as a percentage to revenue decreased from 15.4% last year to 13.9% this Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

General and Administrative Expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses increased by 11.1% to HK$164.8 million (2018: HK$148.3 million). The
increase was mainly due to the increase in staff costs arising from annual salary increment, and the provision for
impairment loss on inventory in relation to the liquidation of a subsidiary. General and administrative expenses as a
percentage to revenue increased from 9.8% from last year to 11.5% this Year.

Finance Income, net
The Group’s net finance income increased by HK$15.8 million to HK$39.2 million (2018: HK$23.4 million), which was
mainly attributable to the increase in finance income brought about by an increase in the average bank deposit rate.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense decreased by 6.0% to HK$112.4 million (2018: HK$119.6 million). The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in taxable income for the Year. The effective tax rate for the Year slightly decreased from

16.6% last year to 16.3% this Year, which was caused by the change in the proportion of the contribution to taxable profit.

Profit for the Year, Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company,
Basic Earnings Per Share and Dividend

The Group’s profit for the Year decreased by 4.1% to HK$576.9 million (2018: HK$601.3 million) with a net profit margin of
40.3% (2018: 39.7%). Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$556.1 million (2018: HK$580.7
million), representing a decrease of 4.2% from last year. For the Year, the basic earnings per share were HK$0.66 (2018:
HK$0.69). The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.23 per share for the Year (2018: HK$0.23).

Financial Resources and Liquidity

During the Year, the Group funded its liquidity by internal resources. Based on the Group’s steady cash inflow from
operations, coupled with sufficient cash and bank balances, the Group has adequate liquidity and financial resources to
meet the daily operations and working capital requirements as well as to fund its expansion plans.

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$1,968.4 million (2018:
HK$2,265.4 million). Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi,
and were deposited in reputable financial institutions with maturity dates falling within one year. The table below sets out
the information regarding cash and bank balances, working capital, total equity, current ratio and gearing ratio as at 31
December 2018 and 2019 and net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities, investing activities and financing
activities for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019:

Cash and bank balances 3 & [ R 1T &5 84
Working Capital" &E& ¢ O

Total Equity #Ez5 4258

Current Ratio® Btk @

Gearing Ratio® & f&LL & ®

Net cash generated from operating activities A& & E B =4 WIH & FE5E
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities R &EEE4,(FrA) WIR S F4E
Net cash used in financing activities @& & B F7 F K938 & 58

™ Being net current assets
@ Being current assets divided by current liabilities
@ Being borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total equity
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As at 31 December

R12831H
2019 2018
HK$°000 T & 7T HK$’000 T3& 7T
1,968,366 2,265,440
2,336,734 2,605,533
2,765,636 3,024,227
8.6 19.5
3.61% 0.04%

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILFE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to HK$17.0 million (2018: HK$53.2 million), which was primarily
used for the purchase of production equipment and the establishment of new retail outlets.

Major Investment, Acquisitions and Disposals

During the Year, the Group did not have any major investment, acquisitions and disposals.

Charges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s net property value of HK$10.5 million (2018: HK$10.9 million) has been pledged as
securities for bank borrowings. Such bank borrowings in Australian dollars bears interest at 1.5% plus the bank bill rate in
Australia per annum and is wholly repayable in 2020.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s main business operations are conducted in Hong Kong and other overseas countries/regions. The
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US
dollar. During the Year, the fluctuation in the exchange rates of these currencies did not have material impact on the Group.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial instrument to hedge its foreign
exchange exposure during the Year.

B vk i 2 3
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Reviving Prebiotics

ER&SE

This product contains high-quality
fructo-oligosaccharide as major
ingredient, formulated with
Astragalus extract, Scrophulariaceae
extract and Angelica Sinensis Extract,
and is manufactured by a modern
technology. It is suitable for people that
suffer from both Qi deficiency and
poor blood circulation and people
with poor intestine activity.

FRERBEEBRRBEARN  BUE
KR - ZSREBMANERERY -
FARKTERRMA - 8ARR LR
[ERE BISEIERB AR B ERE

Cranberry Co ebiotics
TRRE

This product contains high-quality
fructo-oligosaccharide as major
ingredient, formulated with
cranberry powder and marine
collagen peptides and is
manufactured by a modern
technology.

FrREABEEBRERERE - B
BUBRY  BFBREAK KA
RRTEERMMA °

Lingzhi Collagen Cap
ECREIBE

Lingzhi Collagen Capsule
consists of premium quality
spores powder of Ganoderma
lucidum, Ganoderma lucidum
extract by advanced technology
and Marine Collagen Peptides
and is easily absorbed and taken.

ECREBENBENHEESHAT
¥ BUAARKARITRIREOE SRR
MEBTBRERK  EEZHAR
TR e B2 B AR 75 (R O (R B -

Ginseng-Antrodia
Camphorata Capsule &
Schisandra-Antrodia
Camphorata Capsule

HBEZBER
LREZBE

Antrodia camphorata plays an
important role in protecting liver
and improving metabolism,
reducing the rate of acute liver
injury caused by alcohol, as well
as regulating immune function.

WBZAFAGRREE - RENTHE -
BB A - EROMERERS
ERIMAE(EA °

AEBANABREY B
BEIBAR  H TR 54
WARRU - BEUHEHBEEMAR
RALENTERROKS @ RAT

Korean Red Ginseng & Red
Ginseng Granule Tea

BEASRASHBEENR

The Korean Red Ginseng products
come from Geumsan County in
South Chungcheong Province, a
place known as the home of
ginseng, and are manufactured by
traditional preparation method of
Korean Red Ginseng. Korean Red
Ginseng can strengthen the
immune system, increase blood
circulation, antioxidant, improve
memory and fight fatigue.

BEAZERERA 2288
EEERLE - KASERAZES
MITEERME - SEAZAE
WIERED - MFRE - REL
ERIRE - RERES I -

Sl
Rhodioa

Rhodiola Rosea Capsule
Blueberry & Rhodiola Rosea
Capsule
ARABERESASABE

Rhodiolae grows in high and cold
areas. It helps enhance immunity,
anti-hypoxic, anti-fatigue and
enhance memory.

ARR-RERESEWT - AFH
BRE - RRE - RS RURHER
SEEMBERESER -
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’I The Most Influential Brand in Asia 2019
2019 47 55 Y [t foe L 56 28 7 il o R
+ Most Trustworthy Brand (Traditional Chinese Medicine)
BESEERE (BRheEs)

2 World Branding Award
5 b R B

+ Brand of The Year 2019-2020 (Global Tier)
Bl PR A b2 K #€2019-2020 (2 IRER)

3 2019 China Enterprise Excellence Award 7
2019 A 4 AT 2

+ The Best Enterprise
BELEREE

Chinese Medicine Industry
Association Award

Hh 2 5 B 7 A0

» China Quality Enterprises — Top Brand
of Centuries Traditional Chinese
Medicine 2019
2019 BB FBERHELELIBRER

The Community Chest Award
o YN e e AL |
= Award of Excellence 2018/2019

NIF S MIE 2018/2019

ARC Award 2019

2019 #EHH4E

+ Design award for Annual Report 2018
2018 F R

CarbonCare® ESG Label 2019
2019 48 B Ak BH 13 ESG AR 4%

» Best Practise in ESG Reporting — Level 2
ESGHERERREBAF —F =R

The 9th Polish Businesswoman
Competition Award

CYINEN T THE S iy N 5 2 3
» Leader in Naturopathic Medicine
BRE2HEEE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Poland)
tRECE RBE)
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ABOUT THE REPORT B A #

This report is the 2019 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (referred as the “Report” in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”) published by the Group. By reporting the Group’s policies, measures and
performances in environmental, social and governance during the Year, the Report enables the stakeholders to know more
about the Group’s progress and development directions in sustainability issues.

REPORTING SCOPE

The Report focuses on the Group’s businesses which are manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine
products and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The scope of the Report
covers the business operations of the Group in Asia, Oceania, the Americas and Europe. Environmental Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs”) do not include operating sites without actual operations and resource consumption. Due to the failure of
providing raw data at some operating sites for the Year, it is impossible to calculate their environmental performance. Data
coverage of some environmental KPIs may be inconsistent with the scope of the Report, details please find the notes in the
corresponding sections.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report was prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the
“Guide”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, with four reporting principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency, and taken as the basis of preparation of the Report. In order to ensure
the accuracy of environmental KPIs, the Group has engaged Carbon Care Asia Limited, a professional independent
consulting firm, to assist in the preparation of the Report and the carbon assessments. In addition, the Report also includes
KPIs in the “Recommended Disclosures” of the Guide for the reporting completeness. A complete index is appended in the
last chapter hereof for quick reference according to the Guide.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

All the information cited in the Report is sourced from the Group’s official documents, statistical data, and the management
and operational information collected under the Group’s system. The Report was confirmed and approved by the Board of
the Group.

FEEDBACK

Our continuous improvement relies on your valuable opinions on the Group. If you have any questions or suggestions
about the content or reporting form of the Report, you are welcome to contact us via email at ir@tongrentangcm.com.

o Compared to the year of 2018, the scope of the 2019 Report does not cover Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Boryung) Co., Ltd, Beijing Tong Ren Tang
Africa (Pty) Ltd and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Farlong Healthcare Center LLC.
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ESG REPORT

The expectation of the global community on living standards continues to rise. At the same time, we are facing
ever-changing challenges, including public health, social event and environmental disasters. Under economic
globalization, with the Belt and Road Initiative being scaled up, the traditional Chinese culture has reached more
communities, providing a wider platform for the development of TCM. The Group has been making unremitting
efforts to develop TCM products that adjust human body functions and prevent illness to cope with market
demands and promote a healthy lifestyle.

The Board of the Group is responsible for formulating and optimizing the Group’s sustainability strategies and
policies, as well as reviewing and supervising the relevant measures and performance. In order to consolidate
sustainability governance, the Group continued to engage an independent consultant to conduct stakeholder
engagement activities for the Year and provide guidance on the works of the Group based on the opinions
collected through focus groups and questionnaires.

The risk management framework of the Group covers risk assessment, environmental monitoring, surveillance,
information and communication, and activity supervision. The Board has been monitoring the framework to ensure
that risks are effectively identified, assessed, responded, monitored and reported. The Group has also paid special
attention to the impact of major risks related to the ESG on our business in order to formulate corresponding
measures.

During the Year, “employment” and “operating practices” were identified as the most important sustainability
topics of the Group. In order to continuously improve product quality management, the Group updated its product
responsibility guidelines and continued to conduct staff training during the Year. In terms of employment, the
Group has also actively reviewed the feasibility of improving employee benefits in various aspects, including
welfare, health and occupational safety, training and other arrangements.

In response to the latest amendments to the ESG report by the Stock Exchange, the Group will discuss methods
for progress review based on the ESG objectives, continue to communicate with internal and external stakeholders,
and further make climate change-related disclosures in order to improve the reporting standards.

Ding Yong Ling
Chairman
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ESG REPORT

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

Risk management and internal control are an important part of the daily management procedure and effective ESG of the
Group. The Group has established a risk management and internal control system (applicable to ESG related risk are
included), which is continuously monitored by the Board with a review on effectiveness. Meanwhile, the Board is
responsible for determining the risk profile and monitor the risk management framework of the Group within the acceptable
tolerance for significant existing and potential risks, and their relevant control measures. To ensure an effective
implementation, the management-oriented risk management committee is established by the Group to monitor the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system as well as the changes in risk. The committee regularly
reports to the Audit Committee and the Board.

In the future, we will continue review the sustainability governance structure from the Board to the management and
business department, as well as the sustainability strategies and policies applicable to the Group.

A B R AR

HAKENS  EREFERADEEEAREEARRRSRE HEREANEZRG - ARECEYABREERANE
ERS(EREANERE HEREAEENRR)  AEZSEEFFEEERREERADEZRASRBRITEET R - B -
ESEEEEEASEVEIRAREEANBMESE  ERAEENEBEEER FEHAKENIEZRARELEABRUR
B EE - AREVTHAERY  AEERYUEEEAZINAKRER M  AEEERBREERABEZERSEHRI
EREBEZY YEHOELEZEENRESTER -

AR AEBESRFERINRESSINEEEUREEBPAINTHERREAESE  UREARBEASE TFESRREBAMBER -

RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Management Structure

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework consists of 5 major elements and is based on the “3 lines of
defense” model:

JE i B
JeR\ o 7 B 2 A
ARENAREERNBERERBETHIERIERE RO SEHS BABER

5 Major Elements “3 lines of defense” Model
FEFERTE (@& ERX

. .
Information
communication

& VB i

Identification, Evaluation and Management of the Significant Risks Procedure

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board considers that the risk management and internal monitor systems are
well effective. Such systems of the Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For details of risk management and internal control system, please refer to pages 132 to 139 in this annual report.
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Major Risks and Response Measures Related to ESG
SAEEHE - Al SRR B < o R B M S

Major Risks
Related to ESG
BEIRE  HEBR

ERAEMZ
FE@EB

Human
Resources Risk
AN ERER

Impact
=
2

If human resources planning is formulated
without comprehensive and strategic
consideration, no human resources
strategies and plans in line with the
Group’s sustainable development are
formulated and implemented, or no
competitive remuneration packages or
incentive systems in terms of development
prospect, salaries, benefits, working
environment and training, etc. are
provided, which results in the Group
having inadequate talent supply (such as
professional Chinese medicine
practitioners, experts familiar with
overseas markets and professional
management personnel) for its future
development, the development of the
Group will be subject to risks of
restrictions on human resource allocation.
BEANERNASRERZ 2R
ZE - REEHENERESAEEAIFER
ROADERERMNRE > HERETERE
RIS FB - B - THEBREREZIEFE
BHEREEERFONSER MBS - £
SEEEAREERZ AT HE(NSEFE
i RABBHITENER BEXEEASL
%) BEREEERZIRAANERKE
HI R o

Major Measure(s)
TEEYER

The Group will effectively meet its
development requirements and secured talent
provision through establishing five workshops,
namely overseas manager backup candidates
workshop, Angong Niuhuang Wan production
process inheritance workshop, overseas
medicine practitioners training workshop, chief
technician for TCM herbs quality inspection
workshop (Overseas Training Department) and
chief TCM dispenser workshop (Overseas
Training Department), promoting master-
apprentice learning model to cultivate various
successors abroad as well as strategically
cultivating overseas talents and maintaining
backup talent reserve.
AEBBBRISNECEBEBATIEE 2
EHEAREREERIEE  BIMEMES
THE - hENRERBERRMIEE I
IEFIER) ~ AP B E E A TEE G IMES
H)SEIEE » BBEMEFEREREBIME
Ao BEREERAL  WETEHBKMEEIMA
TREREBEBAT#E  UERREEERE
FEMREAARE -

We will work with professional colleges at
home and abroad in personnel recruitment to
employ talents with professional expertise and
multiple skillsets that meet the development
needs of the Group; put greater efforts in
attracting and cultivating local language
speaking talents overseas and provided them
with trainings on corporate culture and
professional expertise, so that the local
language speaking talents overseas can better
integrate into the Group and contribute their
wisdom to and create value for our overseas
business development.
HEERIEELBRERABRESHE  BEF
EEERRTENSERMBEMESHAL
ARSI RIBZEGIEMERILATHNOE
WHEERCATETEERBERRE
B BEBBFRLCATEFNRASEER
B URBNEBRBRREMSENAEEE-

Major Risks
Related to ESG
BIRIT  MHBR

ERERZ
EEEB

Product Quality
Control Risk

EmEBEERAR

Impact
(21

Product quality control risk is the risk of
quality control throughout the entire
business process from raw material
procurement and stock-in, product
production, product testing, stock-out to
products delivery.
EREEEZABRREZRMBRERE
MAE - ERAEE  E@Rl - EmilE -
ERERNEERREEEEENEAR -

e Some of the raw materials used by the
Group for medicine production are
materials from animals and plants,
including rare Chinese medicinal herbs
and endangered species which are
subject to relevant regulations. Any
change in the use conditions or quality
of the raw materials under the relevant
regulations will result in quality risks.
REBMBENT D RN RBEDM
# HBEWHEhENHEeRE 2
HEEREE - BEREBREMRHER
R REEHEF LG SEEERME o

e Distribution of problematic products to
the consumer market occurs as there
is product spoilage due to lack of
control over product quality or non-
compliance of storage environment
during transportation including stock-
in, stock-out and product delivery.
EEEMAE EmERERESN
REBET  REHERESLESE
RRRTEHRCINEREE  EHEM
BNERRLEEETS o

e Product quality problems arise from
lenient control of production process,
such as mistakes from production
technicians, obsolescence of
production equipment, quality issue of
production materials, manufacturing
operation errors as well as sub-
standard production environment.
EERMEEBREERETR SIBERN
BEME flw: EEFMAB R
K EERBERNEE - £EVHE
SREE - EEREFEER  EERR
W TEEESRHE -

e Products of poor quality, products
containing banned substance,
contaminated products and improperly
handled products are distributed to
the consumer market due to lack of
product testing procedure or lenient
testing.
HERZERBTERRERE - B
HmERy  BEEMEZER®G 25
R AEEREFENERRLEEED

2 o

Major Measure(s)
TEREIER

As for procurement of raw materials, the
Group will closely monitor the relevant
regulations and assess the impact of relevant
regulations on our production and operations.
In addition, the Group will conduct regular
inspections on the quality of materials from
suppliers to ensure that the quality meets the
Group’s requirements. At the same time, the
Group will comply with the Hong Kong Good
Manufacturing Practice Guidelines for
Proprietary Chinese Medicines to ensure the
quality of raw materials.

HREMHNERE  AEESRREREEE
REAEEEERHEEEENTE - B
AEEEERETHEIMBEERE  BIR
HESZINEEMNER - @ - RE(EEBHK
BEEEESTEREES)  UEIRMENE
EHRE °

The Group will strengthen quality control
during product transportation (stock-in,
stock-out and delivery) and strictly comply
with the conditions for product inspection and
acceptance and storage to ensure product
quality.

AEEMREDRE(AE - HERER)BRE
MESIEE  BREETERBUIRBNE FF
o BRERESR -

The Group will strictly comply with GMP (Good
Manufacturing Practice) requirements to
conduct quality control from multiple aspects
including production technicians, production
equipment and machines, production
materials, manufacturing operations and
production environment, in order to ensure the
compliance of production processes.
AEBEEREETGMP (EEEE2EHIRE)
TR REEBWAS £EERBES  £E
M EERE EEREZITHEEEH
BRICZEEERREER -

The Group will conduct testing on raw
materials and products according to local
product standards to ensure product quality
and prevent problematic products from being
distributed to the consumer market.
AEEREEHNERTE  HEMBRER
ETRA BFERRERE HLEBAEER
MHEEEDS -
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS 4y 35 i# 1@

We believe the participation of stakeholders is A H15 F¢ iy # 2 2 % %

an important part in the business development. R — AR B E W

The stakeholders’ opinion helps the Group to X
R B ARG S A A

AL 5 R W o

Materiality Assessment

To ensure the ESG Report reflects the issues of concern to stakeholders and the Group’s environmental and social impacts
regarding those issues, the Group conducted stakeholder communication and materiality assessment with the assistance
from independent consultant, to identify the important environmental and social issues.

G
establish a more comprehensive sustainability igﬁfg%gigggﬁi’fﬁfggggfg?ffﬁ;$iEﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%iﬁmgﬁﬁm%g RREEIE
o T )i 15 BAG ViR =

development strategy.
Senior Management

Confirmation and
Continuous

R B R B E D5

Regular Communication with Stakeholders

Improvement
The participation of stakeholders™ is essential to the Group’s business  FHEOVSHENAEBENEBLLERREEE S = i’;i EEASEIR
development. Understanding their views allows the Group to review BEZ -BHMEOENER  EHAKEEREBER
potential risks and opportunities so that the business practices of the WRKEKE SAEENEEEREWEMHMA Step 3 Identify Material Issues
Group can be more in line with their needs and expectations. HEEFMERE - SHRIMNEEREE

Analyse the importance of every issue upon

The Group’s stakeholders include groups and individuals who have AEEWFOESEHEERFTEASZE g stakeholders in the material assessment and
significant impact on the business of the Group. The Group is TERZENHBNEA XEERHIEBEAR

the Group’s impact on the environment and
community.
AMEEUFEPEERELHENENER
M URAEEHRERETNZE -

dedicated to establishing an open and transparent communication FHWBEBKE  XEEBSBREHEZHEER
mechanism. During the Year, the Group communicated with its B ARBOEENIREESRNAOT :
stakeholders through various channels. The specific types of

stakeholders and the communication methods are shown below:

, . Board, Senior
Government and Management and Shareholders and

Community Regulators Employees Investors

N R B A e EHE fé&%ﬂmﬁ R B A% H
BT

Step 2 Collect Stakeholders’ Opinion
SR2NEFHERER

Conduct questionnaires through online
platform to enable stakeholders to score
the importance of each sustainability
topic.

EBRMLFERBBSRE  BHHER
BIERBETD ©

Fostering community culture Regular communication Questionnaire Questionnaire
HEXLER ERER BERE BEERE
Support to underprivileged Compliance record Focus group Regular release of financial
groups AR =208 report and data
KBNS R RE EPBRE R BB

Policy documents Suggestion box for employees
Community services BUE X BIEE Shareholders’ meeting

HERE . - and activities
Response to consultation Training programme BEAR R

Bl fES TR Internal stakeholders conducted focus

group discussion to collect their opinion
and expectation regarding the Group’s
approaches on ESG.
ABFHEETERPENR  RKEESH
AEEERE HERERFHNERM
HE .

Staff activiti Corporate communication
aff activities SuE

BIEE
Investor relations
communication

E3EH, BEEWEER

Corporate communication
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g . Suppliers and Business Customers and

2 Trade Associations Partners Consumers .
@ 4= 3 o N
5 e R K 1 TR R o
gi Step 1 Determining the 1;
g Regular exchange Questionnaire Customer services hotline Subject
% EHRMR EERE EFRBRE SBI1ETSE -
g Participation in the affairs of trade Regular communication Product labelling Review the past results of A
= ﬁsﬁsfggzgﬁ ERRE R stakeholders’ participation and [
% I == Assessment an:l evaluation Mail the Guide on the Stock N
g il B Exchange to formulate the list of Gl

Infomja:ion sEharing Social mecii_a corTm?unication environmental and social issues. )
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™ “Stakeholders”, also known as “interested parties” or “interest holders”, refer to groups and individuals who have significant impact on the
business of the group, or those who are affected by the business of the group, including the internal Board, senior management and
employees, external customers and consumers, shareholders, suppliers, business partners, trade associations, government and regulators,
community organisations, potential investors and banks.

[50E] XBIFSERT I NEEA] EH - ECXNEBEEAFE AT XRHZEOHBENAA  EFABNESE SR
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Identification of
Key Stakeholders
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Change
Material over 2018
Issues Issues 22018 F

EEMEE 228 214

1 Air pollutant and greenhouse gas emission management _
ZRSRAMRBEREBHRER

2 Sewage treatment _
BEREERRE R

3 Waste management _
BEENER

4 Compliance with environment-related laws and regulations _
REMBAERERNER

5 Energy saving and efficiency enhancement 4
HiBE K 1R FHRE IR B

6 Water saving and efficiency enhancement 12
BRI AKREABAYE

7 Improvement of materials and resources usage efficiency 12
RARMBEEMBEROERA RS

8 Impact of management operation on the environment and natural resources 14
EEEBEHBRERAARERERNTE

Establishment of a comprehensive employment system

BYZEERHE
Anti-discrimination, equal and diversified employment environment
RIEE « FEMNZ TLERRERE
Healthy and safe workplace
REMNZEZNIERE

Employee benefits and well-being
ETIRAREVEE

Employee training

Ehet]

Staff’s sustainable development
EBIRERRE

Prevention of child labour
PritET

Prevention of forced labour

B 1L 58 /%5 T

Compliance with labour rights
SITRBGRME

(L (K

Operating Practices & E1& 5

18 Assessment and management of environmental and social risks on supply chain
R EEREENRER SRR

19 Implementation of supplier review system 8
BITHERERSIE

20 Management on product quality and sales service responsibility
EREERHEEREEEER

21 Customer complaint handling mechanisms and product recall system

B IR IRIE FE M ) I B Bl W

22 Protection of intellectual property rights

HEABERE

23 Protection of the interests of customers and business partners

REEFREBAEBFERS

24 Prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

B i-BERR - 1R - MEFRIERE

25 Compliance with operational responsibility
EESEARM

LK

Community Investment B % &

26 Business activities take into consideration of the communities’ needs and interests

EREB TR ENFTENFE

27 Community Investment
HERE

B AL e RO

Material Issues Materiality Analysis
A BB

In view of the average scores High
given by all the stakeholders, the ®
materiality analysis below was
concluded with a matrix showing
the materiality of 27 issues. The
position of the curve line

[}
o]
o
[e}
represents the average score of éﬁ
all issues. 14 issues shown on gg
the top right of the curve line are 24
the key “material issues” to the 8%
Group. g**‘
Q
X E
R

FEMERNETINGE §
HEATHEEME D dMLAER
ERR27TRBEENEEM - iR
REMERETONGE R

+ N14TEEE B Y = Low Impact on the Environment and Society High
HERMAEEA AR EEG e HEERGROTE =

BRNEEMEE] -

Response to Stakeholders’ Feedback

In order to fully understand the internal stakeholders’ opinion and expectation, we have engaged independent consultant
to conduct focus group discussion again. The stakeholders’ opinion was taken not only as the basis of the Report, but also
provided direction for the Group’s optimisation on the ESG strategy in the future.

Below are some issues of concern to stakeholders and their comments and suggestions:

[B] B 5 5 8

RERATHEARFVENERNBE  RMBAZABLEBERER METR BFOENER  TEHRARREEAREN
Ef ERAAEERRETERE HERELARKREHRLTMD -

UTH-LENERINER  URMMNFERER

Issues of Concern Comments and Suggestions
Areas to Stakeholders from Stakeholders
g BHEREINEE FHENTERES
Environment Greening e Trees and flowers are widely planted outside the Tai Po Production and
RIE EALIRIR R&D Base for greening purpose.

RRERHEEMREBIECEEREBTLEERARURCRIE -

e More indoor greenery is recommended in the office and retail outlets in
order to build a more pleasing working environment, such as cacti and
other plants which are easy to take care of.
EZTRHLAERZELRANIBMEARNRL  MUAZERSITENEY
EETERER -

e Employees working in the Tai Po Production and R&D Base are
encouraged to commute by public transport or bike.

SRR HEEMEED FNESREREARATBTARKATELT

Rl =S ﬁ I b ot E
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Issues of Concern
to Stakeholders
BFHEBINZEE

Issues of Concern
to Stakeholders
BFHEBIEINZEE

Comments and Suggestions
from Stakeholders Areas
BOENFERER g

Comments and Suggestions

from Stakeholders
BOENTERER

6102 Woday [enuuy ! paywi Auedwo) auoipaly asauly) Buel usy Buo] Bullleg

Disposal of wastes

BERYEE

Sewage and energy

The electronic office automation (OA) system was rolled out for the Year to
reduce printing and achieve a paperless/less-paper office. It is suggested
to continuously expand the use of the electronic OA system and the
document types covered.

XHEFILOARFERAFER LE  LUNDIHITE  SEETER
b/ REAEHD - EFHBEBAIMGESFLRENER  URERENH
5 o

Electronic communication has been extensively utilized in the head office.
Also, a set of video conferencing equipment was newly installed in the Tai
Po Production and R&D Base for the Year.
HEPLAZCETEEARASZINEFLLLIRNEBER  RFETRAFEEN
BEMIERRAEENEFLRE

The head office has arranged a waste paper collection company to recycle
waste paper from confidential documents for the Year.

BEPRAERAFERHERE R DT REER R ERE Y -

The possibility of installing solar panels in the Tai Po Production and R&D

Employment

&=

Employee training
and development
B THEIIEERE

Employee benefits
EIEA

Every year, the Group selects and arranges for staff to receive training at
Tong Ren Tang’s headquarter in Beijing, visiting manufacturing plants and
outlets as well as learning about corporate background, history and
culture.

FEESFYUERERZHETILRECEATNEZIZIN  2BEER
BEREE BREEESURELILE -

It is suggested to review the training strategies and plans, such as more
sessions of orientation training, provision of diversified staff trainings and
improvement of training contents.

B RAE R AR B - AN N SR A BRI BN B IR RS Tt
BT BIFIARE -

The Group has continued to provide benefits that are better than the
market average, such as annual health checks and additional Chinese New
Year holidays. During the Year, the Group has continued to exercise its
flexibility and give prime consideration to employees’ safety including
additional holiday, flexible working hours and workplace and allowance
and keep reflects the Group’s care for our employees as usual.

FEBEERETERTSTORTNER - ISFREERR - BINNEH

use Base was discussed preliminarily. Yet, it mlght not be a feasible plan for 1E§H~H ° Z,'S¢ s IEFEEW§%I1’FI%iﬁﬂﬁ5RW$EfﬁE’Jgﬁﬂ‘ﬁiﬁﬁ . gﬁ‘l‘il'ﬂzﬂ%&ﬁ
kR BETRE A the time being as the current production equipment fail to align with this Bt R A (R I AN WY E T A EHE o h

suggested measure. It is suggested to continue the discussion on the
feasibility of utilizing other renewable energy in the Tai Po Production and
R&D Base.

ENSHRIEARBEERRE MR RSB SR ATEEN - A - ERR
A ERBYREELERERES ARG ERSRE—EITAR &
REERSRAHEEMREMERAEM I BEERNATTE

Energy saving and emission reduction measures have been continuously
adopted in the office, for example, keeping the room temperature at
25.5°C, allowing more ventilation during no air-conditioning period after
office hours, and also recycling batteries and toner cartridges.

Rt A ZEERMEERER - 8 ERRERIFR25.5°C BT IR
EEFERRNER  URERE MR E

Use of phosphorus-free detergents is recommended to reduce sewage
discharge.

BREAERFRB IR B KR -

As the Group has implemented safety measures, the Tai Po Production

and R&D Base recorded zero safety accident.
AEBYITREEE  AFEEMREMZTE2EHRAT -

It is suggested to review the feasibility of offering additional holidays, such

as birthday leave and extra maternity leave.
EERTETHEMENTTE  MERBRRBEMER -

It is suggested to form a corporate volunteering team with the aims to
provide regular services to the community and cooperate with social
enterprises in organizing activities, such as forming a dragon boat team to
participate in festival competitions and other activities for boosting staff
morale and their sense of belonging.

ERASCEETER  THRBLE  WEMCESFESINEE - WASE
ABSHEHALESEE  UENET+R BB -

It is suggested to provide employees with computer eye protection

screens.
ERAETRMHERERRESR -

L
S

TT 30 o
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Issues of Concern Comments and Suggestions

Areas to Stakeholders from Stakeholders
gE BFOERINEE FHENTERES
Operating Communication of e The electronic OA system was rolled out for the Year to improve
Er?ctlces infor(ne}tion information transparency and communication.
& EED FRRE XHEFIL (OARBERAFER LRLUIENEEERERRBEM -
e |t is suggested to optimize the electronic systems and enhance the
production management system and the retail system.
ERELEFLLRS UMBEEEBRAGRTERS -
Production * |t is suggested to increase the warehouse space and set up our own
£E logistics team to meet the operational needs.
BEEENREEZBRIERESMRERLUAREERR -
Product e |t is suggested to improve the product recall system, including the
Rezpinsmlllty reporting and handling procedures in response to emergencies.
EmRfE EEEEEROURS  SEESERSHNERNEDRE -

e |t is suggested to increase relevant trainings on protection of the Group’s
intellectual property rights, which may include knowledge about the
Company’s trademarks.

EREMREEEABREENEREE > AR T EELAEHSAEEAR

Community Community e The Group has continued to organize free medical consultation activities
Investrtment ?ha”tai‘? activities and donations, and also encouraged its employees to participate in “Walk
HEBRE HEEELH for Millions”, the fundraising walkathon.

FEBEEASEY  BREED  NEBETISHE[FETISTER-

e |t is suggested to expand the target group to include teenagers and the

underprivileged in addition to the elderly.
EREMAEEHR  EXHEBREAN  CEREESIFRHELEH -

e |t is suggested to increase community investment activities, such as
voluntary education or book donation to poor mountainous areas, teaching
Chinese medicine knowledge and promoting traditional Chinese medicine

culture.
ERENTERETE  NETRISBEEFERLE  ZEPEBHARE
BB -

BUSINESS ETHICS [EE F=K¢

A business and working environment AP~ FETE A B S R B T

with equality, ethics and compliance is the Ve B B B A B L R R Y
foundation for the healthy development of

the Group.

Anti-corruption Practices BRI AE 36

Advocating the work attitude of “Virtue”, “Honesty” and “Integrity”, the AKBER[E] -#H1 - [EIWIEER T
Group does not tolerate any bribery, extortion, fraud and money AR PR -BFREBEZTHR LK
laundering. The Group has set up an independent internal audit REBUNRENM AEERAEENERT
department responsible for monitoring areas such as the Group’s B oEERRIFEREREIE  BILIZRB
business activities, corporate governance and workflow, as well as B REFERABEZRRGENERL  USE
independently auditing the effectiveness of internal audit regulations RARBEEZERRESTER °

and internal control system, so as to continuously enhance internal

supervision and anti-corruption management.

B AL e RO

The management and all department heads are required to sign anti-corruption statement and target liability statement to
ensure the Group’s anti-corruption requirement and corporate operating indicator are fully achieved. Also, the expectations
and responsibilities to employee are detailed on the internal audit manual and staff manual to provide guidelines to their
daily work. The Group does not allow any disclosure of trade secrets, abuse of power for personal gains, abuse or
infringement of the Company’s property or acceptance of advantages in the name of the Company under any
circumstances.

During the Year, the Directors, senior management, the department heads and related staff of the Group completed the
anti-corruption and anti-bribery training. Training includes anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws and regulations, as well as
case studies of past irregularities with a focus on exploring the proper handling of potential and actual irregularities.

Protection of Privacy and Intellectual Property

The Group respects customers’ privacy and protects intellectual property rights. During the operation process, we are
devoted to protecting and properly managing all the customer information from purchasing records to medical records.
Meanwhile, we prevent the infringement of intellectual property rights of other companies and individuals, and the staff
manual stipulates the staff’s responsibility in keeping information confidential. Disclosure of customers’ personal
information, unauthorized copying, retention and taking away of confidential information are not allowed without the written
consent of the Company. If customers or any third parties suspect that their privacy or intellectual property rights have
been infringed, concerns or complaints can be submitted through phone call, email, written request or make a visit to our
stores in person, and the case will then be investigated.

Prevention of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group respects human rights, rights of employees and business partners, and has no tolerance for the employment of
child labour or forced labour in our business operations. During recruitment, job applicants have to provide identification
documents for our verification and documentation. Employees are only required to perform their job duties specified under
the terms of employment contract and description of job positions with no forced labour involved. According to the
resignation procedure set out in the staff manual, employees may voluntarily resign with a notice period or payment in lieu
of notice prescribed under the employment contract. In the event that there is any employment of child labour or forced
labour, we will report to the relevant government departments in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, and we
will cooperate with the investigation to assist the aggrieved employee. Employees who have engaged in non-compliance
are subject to disciplinary actions.

ERERMENMIESFARERZBVNEAREMAE  UBERLAEERRERMNEELEERZETMR - RMTFRCAE
FFFMIR(EIFM PIIAEETHNHREUARREMR - AEHEIFRMHES - AEETAHFEIEEABER T RERER
7 BEAFZEABRERFAQTEE  BEARBRL MY RKWZFE -

RE - AEEES  SREEAS  EFMETERBEHEEIZR T RESRREREI - FIRAFEBERESRKBREER
ER G URBAEERTANEARMN  ETEERNUAZZRBEEENEREREBR -

DR R I % e il e

FEBEERFRALRBNBER - CTEEART KM IRERZEEENERBECRUAZTFENMSHEFEH -
B EMEESELEMQIBANBEANTRERE YE(ETIFMEATEIHERRENEMR - REEEFAT  IEET
HURBHIRBEEFEAER AREEN REIAFTHAIRZEN WEFREFNE=SERECHBALAITAEEZE
R ARBEBER EB EELARRBAATEE  FHRERSHREAAZ -

75 1k B T B 5 ) % T

AEEGEARE  EIRGHFEEBHNES  TAFCLETPEREIRRHE T - TREBEP  RMEREEBALIHNEH
FRXMHATEFE BMEERETIBTEBRESANGRRAEEUIBNEE  ZLREEH - STARBE(ETFM)
THEBERF  REBRSAMTNEAPIABNSEHERE NAKERRERETIARHL IHERBR  SRIEER
EEELROARBFIMERE  BAHET  BPHEEET  UHBEIEANSEIRMLEESD °

i~
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance with all applicable laws and regulations is the basic requirement for the Group’s operation. Given the

continuous implementation of various national laws, regulations and policies in relation to the TCM industry, the Group will
continue to regard compliance in operation as its first priority. To ensure a high degree of transparency, the Group reports
its compliance annually in this report in accordance with the Guide. During the Year, each compliance performance of the

Group is as followed (including the compliance performance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant

impact on the Group):

BIMEERNERERFARFAEENEETNEARER - BEPBETEXSFHEASEEAEARRTHALCER - AEES
BEGEEARAEEER - ARESEVE  FEESFRUEIDREAREERARER - 2F FREANZTHARKRR

NT (BEEFUAEERTEASENEBEERAMZERREA)

Issue(s)

Compliance performance
BRRR

Principal Laws and Regulations

(including but not limited to)
FTEERERBAL (BREETRR)
\N

Business ethic
BMEER

Anti-corruption
RES

No report, litigation and
non-compliance in relation to
corruption.
EFRESHWERMER - FH
RUYREFERMBER -

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of
Hong Kong
& 78 (Bh LE BRBR AR A1)

Principal Laws and Regulations

Operation
BiE products and

Health and safety of

No non-compliance in relation
to the quality and safety of

Areas Issue(s)
g &R

Compliance performance
ERRA

(including but not limited to)

¢ Chinese Medicine Ordinance TEER A (BEBTRR)

(rh B B AR

labelling of products

to advertising and labelling,

Bl FAREEEHESRER
BRE IR

services products, and no product e Regulation of Registered Proprietary . . . .
ERMBBREES recall for safety and health Chinese Medicines Employee Employment system  No non-compliance in relation e Employment Ordinance
& reason. R S AR BT EEHE to employment. &8 (R 1EEE))
BEPERREREZEMIEE ¢ Food Adulteration (Metallic BAEMEROELTERMER- o Employees’ Compensation
RERER UARBEAR2H Contamination) Regulations of Centre Ordggnce
{8 52 32 BR 1T 78 2 47 & & (B UK fE for Food Safety . ﬁ/ﬁiﬁfﬁﬂz Ordinance
£ 7 ZVN ®(eBHEE
B gﬂ?ﬁiqu PORTRR AR (RAE T EHHI)
* Pesticide Residues in Food
Regulation . ) ) ) i
(B R G = B e 8 5 Labour Standard. No non-compliance in relation e Personal Data (Prlvgcy) Ordinance of
e Food Safety Ordinance (prevention of child to |abOL’{r“ stgndard.‘== . H.ong. Kpng and va'\rlous
(B R 2EH) labour and forced BEBEE TEANELZERE discrimination ordinances ‘
labour) E CELAE R (FARR) 551D R & 1B IR 1R 1%
Advertising and No non-compliance in relation e Undesirable Medical Advertisements BIEA(BHLET il
RiRELT)

Ordinance and the Trade

;:%S;;\g(gsg tpiE :zs;:tci)s(;?nr:ﬂtalafz g:o duct %iznptlons Ol EEE e Health and safety of 1 case in relation to health e Occupational Safety and Health
labelling. 5 - 15 = employee gnd sefety of employee was Orginancg of Hong Kong
# s BT@ERZE  identified. After our B8 (R¥Z 2 R EBED)

investigation, the employee
has rehabilitated and has
been properly handled and

EFEALE

Customer privacy

No non-compliance in relation
to customer privacy and
intellectual property rights.
EEEEFABRABMERN
BREM -

compensated in accordance
with the relevant regulations.
1REREIRERZTZHE
RRBE - RERE BT S
BERE LERMEBERZ
ERERFLEE -

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of
Hong Kong

BB (EAER (FAR) 5RH61)

Environment Emission

=i B

No non-compliance in relation e Air Pollution Control Ordinance
to emission. (Z=R5 R E HIMERBD
BEBHERWHEELNERME o Ozone Layer Protection Ordinance
£ (RERERFSG)
e Water Pollution Control Ordinance
K55 B FI R B
e \Waste Disposal Ordinance

CREM R E RG]
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AN AL [ 40 B B 5 A B
NI o il R B S A
materials” and devote to the optimization of 1 JHSS A By 58 3 LG G

supply chain and product quality management, J% 2 fh fhE &8 > B & P 34
so as to offer diverse, safe and highly effective L TEA ~ B2 T B Rk i o 2

B il o

We adhere to the corporate motto of “Never
cut corners on labour and quality, no matter
how complex the process or how costly the

Chinese medicine products to customers.

e B 2 B

BCE-UBZRIHEAE HBARI|FRE
EEEROCER - AEERREBAHENEREAL
SEMBEMSEERPREGMP (A EEET
H IR E) R E - EMIZE%EI1S022000:2005 8 A&
2EREARHACCP(BRESNEEEHIZ) R
o AEEANEERBENPREERELEER
PRETEREZESSEM  WEBBREREAERES -

WHOLE-PROCESS QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Tong Ren Tang adheres to the principle of honest operation and
morality as core value of quality management. The Group’s modern
Production and R&D Base in Tai Po, Hong Kong obtained the GMP
(Good Manufacturing Practice) for Proprietary Chinese medicine
certification, 1ISO22000:2005 (Food Safety Management Systems) and
the HACCP (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points) certifications.
All Chinese medicine products produced and sold by the Group are
registered with the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong and
complied with relevant laws and regulations.

Major Quality Management System Certification of the Modern Production and

R&D Base in Tai Po, Hong Kong
ERERENERLEEMBELNTIEREERRARAR

PR —

Baijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Baijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Modl:llz Co., Ltd _ Medicine Co,, Ltd
AL FHC Rt R AL R SRR ]l

=

=

il |
| B |

GMP Certification for
Proprietary Chinese Medicine
BB REGMP R E

HACCP Certification

Certification N
HACCP R &

1SO22000:2005 52 &

To ensure the quality of owned products, we adopt a stringent quality standard. From material procurement, reception and
storage, production and even inspection, we formulate management and operational guidelines in accordance with the
quality requirement of each process, which stipulate the duties of responsible departments and key personnel. To
continuously enhance the quality management, we have updated the relevant guideline during the Year, as well as
distributed the guideline to and conducted training with the responsible officers.

AEREBFERNGE  BMURABRKEERE - “YBRE  BURESF £EUREBR  BERENESERGIE-
EERBMFES U AEEFMIREIZAESNREE -ABERAEEER  HMARAFEN T HBEES XCAABEAS
BEHIEEIRETIEI -

E
£

Process

ik

e Material
procurement
management
rules
YRR B B
Rz

e Material
reception
management
rules
YRR E R
Rz

e Material
storage
management
rules
MR FEER
bR

e Carry out field inspection for the growing, collection and
processing environment of raw materials, auxiliary materials
and packing materials
B EREME  WRANEEMHNEE  REREBRR

Upon arriving manufacturing plants, materials are subject
to preliminary inspection for its variety, specification and
packaging quality etc., and then quality checks by quality
department after passed

DHEBE  ASREHRELARNBREESE  SKEB
HEEMMETEERR

Distinguish and store qualified materials and unqualified
materials separately to prevent the use of unqualified
materials during production
BORBIFHREEMFSHEOTE  BLERSEDRTA
EE

Qualified materials will be labelled with the inspection date,
its expiry date and re-inspection date, and also stored in
normal temperature storage area, cool storage area and
cold storage area according to its serial number, nature,
toxicity and species, to prevent the growth of micro-
organisms and cross contamination
BREKNYHNEETRREY HERIRERES X
REmS B SHRRESE  25FRRERRBEFE -
BRFEFENSE  #RLEMENRRTHE

e Establish guidelines on temperature, humidity and storage
environment requirements for the storage of different raw
materials, auxiliary materials, packaging materials and
finished products
AYEFAREERME  HEH  8EMBANRIRNIES - &2
BRE RERESFFREER

e Materials will be re-examined one month before the review
date and those expired will no longer be used and will be
scrapped and destroyed immediately
DR FEERRA—EANETER - BBERANYH
BARBAEG R - 37 B 3RES 65 &

v

Major Guideline  Major Quality Control Procedures
FEES TEEERE

e Quality o
standard,
equipment
operation

and cleaning e
procedure
EERE .- &
BRERBR
B J

Production
technique
rules
EEISRE

Ongoing monitoring on the temperature, humidity, air pressure
and air cleanliness level in different production areas
SEERFREERENEE - BE - ZREBIRZERRTE

The production area is installed with cleanroom to avoid
contamination during production
LEBHRERFE  BARNEBREZITH

Operators should put on specific work clothes. Different
corridors for operators and materials to enter and exit the
production area to prevent micro-organism, particles and other
pollutants from entering the production procedure
REANBEZFZEEIFR REAERVBEALEEEEHAA
BRAREYRED  WREMREY  BNESTRYRARER
2

Clean the production equipment and measuring instruments
with filtered and purified water regularly and evaluate cleanness
EHREABBANEREERBRITERE - RETRFNMA

v

L
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Process Major Guideline Major Quality Control Procedures
V% FEHES TEEERE

AFTER-SALES MANAGEMENT AND
PRODUCT RECALL PROCEDURES
AR AT PR o (e AR

Stipulate internal quality inspection standard, set out the
requirements for the qualification of inspectors, inspection

Inspection e Sampling and retaining
B management rules

BEREEEERRE methodology and inspection equipment
AVANBRRESEE  JBERBRASER BREE BB
e Inspection management BREER
rules Customer query, complaint or request for product return or exchange received by retail outlet
BRBREBRRE o Set up laboratories with different functions to perform FEARZIEFBAIIRF - REJREHF

inspection on materials and environment

RETEDENERE  SFETUHRRERR v

e Conduct an comprehensive internal quality inspection on each
batch of finished products, and send the sample to
independent third parties recognized by the government for
testing to ensure the products comply with safety and quality
standard in Hong Kong

BEMANERRYABBEANEEESERR  WRETH

FRANBILE=FHERE  BREMEIEEZ2RRERE

Query about sales of Query about product

quality and usage will be

Regarding to the complaint of product
product information quality, request for product return or

will be replied directly transferred to respon- exchange, the production planning
by responsible staff or sible staff of production department and quality department will
conduct examination and formulate

transferred to sales planning department and

and business quality department to measures based on the actual
department for reply.
FHEREEREREE
FREMERNSHES £%H - BEREERAE
EHWHEH  SHEEA BREMEEHESTAR SEREDBRBIMEEBREETRE &
EEHERFRBRHH EE - BRERHEEEER  SERSRE -
EREBIPIBRER ERERE -

Facilitate Research and Development and Innovation E -

situations which include sample check
follow-up and reply. and product recall etc..

THEREENRE  BREFRERE

The responsible officers receive training regularly regarding all the procedures to ensure a comprehension of relevant
requirements. During the Year, the product quality training covers GMP, 1ISO22000:2005 Food Safety Management,
HACCP Risk Hazard Analysis, materials management, inspection management, medicine equipment and laboratory
management, manufacturing equipment management, quality standard, manufacturing techniques, equipment cleaning
and operation, cleanliness and hygiene as well as employee discipline.

We put efforts on the scientification of TCM by facilitating internal growth and upgrading our technology on a continuous
basis. The Group continues to reach cooperative intents with international high ranking educational institutes to commence v
joint scientific research on key products during the Year. The scientific research will provide massive quantitative data to
our future products for the internationalisation of TCM. In the meantime, it served as a knowledge base for foreigners to
understand, accept and apply TCM, as well as a solid technical assurance and data support for further expansion of Tong
Ren Tang’s overseas presence and potential market risk mitigation.

If the reason of return is If the complaint is related to a product causing a customer to

related to incorrect ordering, have adverse reactions, the production planning department

damaged packaging and etc., and quality department will handle the complaint under the

Improvement on Customer Consultation and Product Return

The Group produces every piece of product with great dedication and places emphasis on after-sales management, while
continuously values customer’s feedback on the products. After-sales consultation and complaint handling management : : _ o . . : :
rule, together with product return management rule are in place, which stipulate the procedural standards for after-sales LR IT investigation, testing together with meeting will be convened,
management. f HERERERBERTEHR
BERIBE  ERFRMERR
BRBEEHE -

product will continue to be adverse event of drug monitoring and report managing rule.

sold after passing of quality After confirming the suspected case is an adverse reaction,
and then batch production record, product packaging and
samples will be examined.
ERFETFHERELETRRERRH  £EAEBREMEER
AR (BEmTRREER -  RESTERRE) BE - CRRBEET
RRE%  HERSERMRAZSARE  BEREZMEELR
- EmBERELE -

N R

If there are any queries about product information and usage after the purchase, or issues relating to product quality,
durability, reliability, safety, effectiveness or defects in design, customers are suggested to make consultations and
complaints through phone call, email, written request or visit our stores in person as well as return the product to us.

The Group received 22 complaints on products and services for the Year. Following our investigation, it was confirmed that
there was no issue with our product, and we had taken appropriate actions and replied to the customers.

HEFRERE BEABATHESEIN UBREZS THREBERE - XF > ER@EFINREGMP  1S022000:2005
MZEEE - HACCPRBRBESH - MHEE RHPEE HERIELREHZEEE  HERNEGEEE CEBEE - 4£EIE.

A
[l
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BRBERRE  BRFLERABLELSHE -

HE B F 5% AR

BT BRENBLERZNH  EDHEERNEFINBNERENTEAR - AF  FEBAEFEABRAESERRERS
EER FAREXMEBRSNT -FAHEHONARR - #ARRAFKRETBEARCERAENELHE - HBIRRE—
SEBHEE EIPEE FATEBERMHRANER  RE-SPREALREETEITENEENNREEET S AMREMR
RENRIMREEBERE -

563 & 7 b o) B e i [ WAL

FEBACREE—MHER ERZSEREE  HEFIFFHEMRNER FEERE(ERERDARRFEZEER
BIMERREEERRE) THEHEREENEFRE -

EEFRBERYHERENREAFAEMERD  IRHEREE - MAM - TENE - 2% BRUERRFT LWRBEHE
EHBARKRS  HUEREFE BB FEHXALBEMIT R - RFHARE -

REAEERE2Q2REREMRBRBRG - LELR  BEERLRBE  YCXEEBEREBEEA

If the product is confirmed
to be harmful to the
public, the defected

products will be

destroyed.
HERRBEHAREE &
EEERENERS SR —

SHREHE -

Inform local regulators in
accordance with laws and
regulations and initiate
product recall.

BRERRESRBRABES

g BEERER -

Review all the findings and

the handling process, and

formulate proper solutions
and precautionary

measures.

RAEERRBFEEBRE

ETRE R ZENE
R RRFABGEHE
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REGULATE PRODUCT INFORMATION

The Group takes its responsibility in its advertising and product labelling to ensure that product advertising and promotion
comply with relevant regulations. Also, we do not tolerate any misrepresentation of drug labels and description. The labels
and description attached to the proprietary Chinese medicine we sold and exported are in compliance with the Chinese
Medicines Regulation, Guidelines on labels of proprietary Chinese medicines of registration regulation of proprietary
Chinese medicines and Guidelines on package inserts of proprietary Chinese medicines. The package insert and
description for proprietary Chinese medicine must be supplied with information such as the names of the main active
ingredient, the dosage and method of usage, functions or pharmacological actions, storage instructions, contra indications
or side effects and the expiry date. Hence, customers can choose suitable Chinese medicine products to safeguard their
health and safety.

Should we receive complaints related to product advertising and labelling, we will identify the causes and formulate
solutions and improvement measures to prevent recurrence of similar complaints. During the Year, the Group did not
receive any complaints in relation to advertising and product labelling.

In the future, the Group will continue to review and optimize relevant policies relating to product responsibility.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly procures raw materials and auxiliary materials for medicine production from suppliers. In respect of
supply chain management, the Group has established a clear procurement system and formulated supplier management
rules to illustrate the requirement and procedures of supplier assessment and approval.

The Group evaluates supplier performance regularly. The preliminary review on new suppliers covers areas including
corporate and production capacity, supply capacity, material quality and reputation. For new cooperation with raw
materials and auxiliary materials suppliers, we conduct small-scale trial production, record production process with details
and inspect the quality of finished products. In respect of suppliers who provide the Group with major raw materials,
auxiliary materials and packaging materials that greatly influence the product quality, the supplier evaluation group shall
conduct sample testing and field evaluation to ensure the material quality meets the Group’s standard.

The audit team is responsible for reviewing the suppliers every two years by reviewing various legal licenses, professional
qualified certification documents, etc. of suppliers, as well as assessing the supply capacity, production management level
and quality management level of suppliers. If there is problem in quality, we would perform re-assessment on the field and
request improvement from relevant suppliers. For the continuous enhancement of supply chain management, the Group
has updated the supplier management rules to improve the internal flow of supply chain management. Looking ahead, the
Group will continue to review and optimize relevant policies regularly such as management policies for environmental and
social risks in the supply chain.

During the Year, the Group had a total of 204 suppliers for procurement, which are located in Asia, Europe, Oceania and
the Americas to provide stable supply.

o

Suppliers of raw
materials, auxiliary

HL L E i R

AEEETEEREREBRIANER BREMESRESGERMBEEIR  TTRFEANERENEERFHANERBL -
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HEEN BEFENAETBEER  REARERZ2 -

B EHREREEREENRF  BRMEERRE  BIBRIERKEERLBREERFBERRE - KX AEERE
BERERAEEREMGERNRFE -

AR AEESFERI R TEEERSERBEEE -

3 e G 4 B
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MBELRMBEEREREERABOEET & -

RE - AEEERU 204 XHEEFHETRE - HEFIMRIMN - BUN - ZOFMNREN - UREBEME -

Asia
Eip)l
Europe
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oz 2019

Total £ :204

2018

. Total £ : 286
The Americas
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Africa
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materials and
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packaging review on . A

materials who first new suppliers Z%od;c\tgljon BmmAatk
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Field inspection and
assessment of the quality
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checks of suppliers
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Suppliers of Written information such as

general packaging
materials
—REBEM R

Preliminary

certificates and licenses
documents provided by suppliers

HEFRHEREEERIM4GEE
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Sample testing

Sample testing is

Conduct field assessment on the

q quality of suppliers bi-yearly
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Approve suppliers
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Evaluate and file
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We are committed to the concept of “people-
oriented and mutual benefits for employees and

KM EBF [PAANT A > N
BB o AARREAR - BIEK

the Company”. People-oriented thinking, team

culture and corporate responsibility principles

SCAY Be Al 3 B AL RS P RF 20 225K

urge us to pay close attention to staff development M B TR - % B T4l

and create a friendly, equal, healthy and safe

BAE - FHE - RERLZH

working environment for the employees.

TAEBRE -

B A LA IR
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STAFF HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group provides a safe and healthy working environment for

ISR 3 ety

FEBRETERYREZZNIFERE  BER

employees and adheres to the production principle of safety and hygiene. 2R AENEEF & ©

r

Planning

A 1

Health and safety hazard assessment

REHERZ2EETME

Labour Department and Department of Health conduct regular health and safety inspection
and check-up on employees at Tai Po Production and R&D Base.
ETERBEEEENRARABEEMBEM S TETRERRENRERRE -

Workplace and storage layout

THhER#EFSMHE

Inflammable items, poisonous and hazardous substances in the Tai Po Production and R&D
Base are stored in designated space and labelled. The storage space is equipped with good
ventilation, smoke exhaust and fire safety systems in compliance with safety standard. A
valid license has been granted to the Group and annual safety and electricity inspection has
been conducted through Fire Services Department to maintain safety.

ARBFLEEMBE®RN SRR RESEENETHAREENEBZH YR EET - ZFHERE
BREEZEZBREREWE HMARZEHARE FAEEKEERER 8- FEBHEHEE

TRERENRE UERE - y

~

Safety rules and guidelines

Z2RBRIES

Based on the requirements of different workplace and job nature, safety rule for our

employees has been developed to stipulate the safe operation procedure for each position,
aiming at minimising the risk of injury and occupational diseases.

REIESHRIEER  Z2ARBEASTEIFE MESHEURERERES WAL ZE
REZBEMERBHER »

~
Establish safety culture, enhance safety education

BERZE2X MERE2HE

To enhance employees’ health and safety awareness, we develop annual training plan which
includes monthly training with different themes in accordance with the requirements of the
Hong Kong’s Department of Health. Before the end of training, employees are required to
complete relevant assessments. We will also keep record of the training sessions and
assessment results for each employee to ensure each employee obtain necessary safety
knowledge for the position.

AMRETHREZEZEM  RMNSFUREBFLEEERFTEFIEIGFE  EREHEEZR
BOAREBENIZI - TRIFZIA > ETHAZSHBEZZ KMATSASNEIREMSHE
RiEdl - ZRERSEHBERNS  BREIEEERUMENZEAET IE -

Production employees are exposed to relatively high risk during the operation of the Group.
To ensure that they have sufficient knowledge about factory safety, regular safety production
training will be conducted including standard operation on equipments, safety and
emergency management, fire safety knowledge and system usage as well as traffic and
security management.

SESTIRAEELETHUBRSEBNEN AEREUMEABERENZ2HE - ZR24EES
S EHET UREEREERE Z2RBESEE  HHABMRREER  URBEM
BRERELE -

Investigation
¥

Regular inspection and accident investigation

EHRERSEHAE

Labour Department and Buildings Department conduct regular inspection on safety and
environment in Tai Po Production and R&D Base every year.
BIEREFTESFEENRABLEERNREBRNETATKEREREZREBEER

Health management and promotion

REEEREE

During the Year, we arranged 2 occupational health seminars for employees at Tai Po
Production and R&D Base. The seminar on work stress allowed the employees to learn about
work stress, its impact and appropriate treatment. In addition, we invited our Chinese
medicine practitioners to teach our employees on the prevention on cervical diseases, stress
relief, insomnia and emotion.

RE  BMAARBEEMBEBETIZHT2ARERRBE - TEBEHEEEEIRART
MIEERD HEXEREERELZE - B4 RMFEAFLARAFTEMDE THRRIZHMME
FrSEHESR S » AREFEB D - KRB o

During the Year, there is no case of work-related death, but received 1 case of work-related
injury. The work-related injury rate was 0.12% per hundred of employees, and the number of
working days lost was 7 days. Upon our investigation, the injury was caused by back sprain
in manual lifting of a retail outlet employee while handling garbage. The Group has
strengthened and provided promotion of safety training and operational guideline, and has
properly handled the case with compensation in accordance with the relevant regulations. At
present, the employee has rehabilitated.

AECAEEERNIRTCHEE EE1RIGER TEXR/REERET0.12% > ATHIBX
THEBHEAB7H REZEZ ITEREAZTELAREINRENNKREE AEBERE
BERMEFEAREEIRBREREIINESE  LREBEIRZIEZEBERFEFLEHE - BE  Z8
THBREREE-
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EMPLOYMENT SYSTEM

To enhance our competitiveness and retain capable staff, the Group believes that a friendly, equal, diversified working
environment with mutual respect helps the employees to capitalize on their strengths. The staff manual stipulates the
requirements related to remuneration, promotion, working hours and holidays, which provides the staff with an overview of
the employment terms and human resources policies. To ensure the Group’s policy meets the highest standard, the Group
is reviewing and updating the staff manual during the Year to provide guideline and principle to the daily work conduct of
the staff.

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group provides a fair and competitive remuneration and benefits to our staff to attract and retain talents. We regularly
assess and review the remuneration and benefits policies with reference to the industry level and practices of each regional
market. Also, performance-based bonus and awards will be issued according to staff qualifications, performance
assessment and individual or team performance for the year to support, recognize and motivate staff.

Apart from local statutory leave for the employee benefits, we also provide additional paid holidays, including marriage
leave, compassionate leave and home leave. During the Year, the Group exercised flexibility and gave prime consideration
to employees’ safety which included additional holiday, flexible working hours and workplace with allowance and keep
reflects the Group’s care for employees as usual. Meanwhile, we care for the physical and mental well-beings of staff and
their relatives. We provide comprehensive and regular medical check-up upon staff joining the Group. Staff and their direct
relatives are provided with free TCM consultation services. Basic medical, dental and accident insurance are also offered
to employees. The Group also distributes shopping coupons of different company products to staff and their direct
relatives.

Furthermore, we care about the leisure life of the employees. In order to create a relaxing and joyful working and living
atmosphere, the Group organizes various activities for the employees from time to time. The Company organised hiking in
the countryside for our staff at Tai Po Production and R&D Base during the Year. Also, on the Women’s Day on 8 March,
the Group invited the female staffs to participate in a “handmade fragrance wax plate” workshop. Also, a “butterfly pea
drink and bakery production” course was organised in summer so that they can enjoy the fun in hand-making during the
festivities.

0 {8 ) J5E

FEERGEEIELRE  ¥% Zaft BEHEEMNRET I BEEBEMR  URBSIETEEMEARMNBES D -
(EIFMBEERFH A THEHBARBRIEZER BEIERERGRIRADEREE - £F  AEBEETRIR
EH(ETFM)  AETITHEZFIFRIRHESIRAL  IRRAEERERAFTERSEE -

0t I % AR A

REARKBEESAT  AERAQEIREQITFEERZONFHNER - RESUETSOFM AT MTEEN  HMAE
BREFHREANEE - B EMNERETEE BTG - AARERFERR  URTSERSEZHRBSREE U
X - RERHBEFET -

EETRMNAE  REMRZEERBN  BMNOSIREBNEHEY  BEER REREERBS - AF FA5EREERZ
2THRRERRMEFAFEHEEEE  SEEHMNENMY EXTFEHHAEBIRBNES  BEERASEHETNEE -
B BMEIEIRZBE O RE SFAEIRHZEABRENSELE  RUBIREZARBRETEZARE - U
RETEASEE FRRAENENME AEETRBRERREHSELAIERBEEEFEIRERRE

A BM+2BEEIMIHRETE RTEEERMRNIHREESE  AEETEHERZTEIHRAISTSE - KRF X
NEABRHEENREMRETIMNER TR /\GRHRFLEISMIEEFIEHA | THES  UREREHFED K
ERFRREHAFN | REEHRAZBEEZFFENRE -

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

The Group promotes equal opportunity and does not tolerate any discrimination or harassment. On the principle of fair
competition and “merit-based selection”, the Group established the qualification and selection requirements for different
job positions, and assesses the skills, knowledge, experience and qualification of employees during the recruitment and
employee promotion. The Group follows the principle of “distribution based on contribution” and “equal pay for equal
work”. Employees are not paid differently due to their race, gender, age, religion or other factors that are not related to their
ability, qualifications and experience.

We recognise and embrace the benefits of a diversified working environment. Currently, the Group has adopted a board
diversity policy. Selection and appointment of new directors will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
gender, age, cultural and educational background, qualifications, skills, knowledge, business and related experience as well
as commitment. For details of Board diversity, please refer to pages 130 to 131 of this annual report. During the Year, the
Group selects trainees for learning and training through resources sharing and talent platform sharing within the Group as well
as the newly-established professional strategic overseas talent cultivation workshop so as to train different talents for
succession and conduct strategic overseas cultivation and reserve of talents. The Group will continue to participate in the job
fair organised by the Hong Kong College of Technology to assist the grassroots to work and encourage them to develop
self-reliance. Looking ahead, the Group will consider implementing more diversity and integration and policies measures.

Z e b S-P AR E
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GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION
OF STAFF
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Number of employees worldwide !
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EMPLOYEES RELATED
DATA OVERVIEW
FOR THE YEAR OF 2019
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© Calculated based on the number of
employee as at 31 December of
the respective years
RIEEF12A31BMETABGE

directors of the Company
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e ilpigii
2HRET

Male
B \

Female . 33%
it N\

Directors and senior o, o
management ) =)

EEREREBAR
Male
B
Female

it

Staff worldwide
Distribution of 2HAT
academic background

ERIE S 4fi

Postgraduate
and above O

MEERNE

Undergraduate
REARRBE O

Associate Degree
BIZLE{y4E O

Vocational education O
and below

PERUT

Directors and senior
management

EEREREEAR
Postgraduate

and above O
HRERME

Undergraduate
REARE O

Service year of
staff worldwide

ZERE T TIEEH
Below 3
o @
3-5 years
3-5%

6-10 years
6-10%F O

11 years and above
e @

Employees employment/turnover rate by region
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING Plague cleansing (complimenting) ceremony refers to the

ceremony of cleaning and cleansing the three ancient

Adhering to the concept of “business growth driven by talent”, Tong Ren Tang supports talent sustainability and career plaques including Tong Ren Tang (the main plaque),

planning to nurture talents and strengthen their sense of belongings. The Company formulates a promotion system and Secretly Imparted from Ancient Times and Medicine with
clear guideline is given to employees through the staff manual. In order to formulate a suitable development direction for Freshness and Preciousness (the two side plaques).
employees, we evaluate and give feedback on staff performance through regular performance appraisal and assessment. Cleansing, with its pronunciation similar to complimenting in
Mandarin, has become another platform for Tong Ren Tang
In order to continuously enhance the knowledge and skills for employee’s career development, we specifically design to convey the awe and respect from the brand and sense of
training programs based on the requirements of every position. We also maintain detailed training records for each
employee to assist and review their training and assessment results. We regularly collect opinions from employees to Chinese medicine culture. This is the first plaque cleansing
review and update the training programs. During the Year, the topics of training include corporate culture, behavior and (complimenting) ceremony performed by the Group and the
conduct, product and job knowledge, professional and management skills, and from which the overall quality of the first one for the Tong Ren Tang system outside the territory.
employees has been enhanced.

B KN

BCEFNERIATRERRINER XBESTFEXRRBERE  MUEEESAS REEINBER - A2RHE
T-EEAREHNE UBB(EIFM OIS TRMHAEES - REEHETANTERER  EMFEEINIFERAR
RERE AETRITSENRRELH -

cultural pride as well as develop a traditional Tong Ren Tang

Aim of the ceremony is to convey to the staff and the
community Tong Ren Tang’s spirit of the times.

FEEENX  DF - BE=REE — BCE(EE) - B
B EEIR(MREERE) — —&E&EX - F ARET
B UEARCEETEEREHRL XLASR HRE
BECERBEXCHSE -FE - WAERAEEERF (B
BN tRECERSEMENOFBEREX - EE@

ETFER ; ER AR AL - RIMIRSE 1 75 C FIET S M E I E - b= AEIIER N N
REEIRERAMERBEITNIRRE  AMRSITFEEUSFE  SFSENEIFE - SLETHEFAEIER - BT - M EE R o

BEMRMBENEIRERER - BEEHRESTER  HMBRTIREFNBIAET  URSHFIGTEH - KF  FJEEE
ERELEXL TART ERRIFEHNR EXREERESHIE URSEIGFSHEE -

Total training hours Directors®” and Senior

of employees h Management o
spaTeyesed BINN" =spsge=ia | /A0

Total number

of trainees 5 people
FEEE DN N

Total number

of trainees 357 people
BZANAE N

Training hours
per employee hours

P AL IIRE ] N

Training hours
per employee 3 4 hours
Fi98 AR E [] 2N

Male employees Female employees
SHET ZHET

hours
) INBF
Total number I /
of trainees people
T B4 (s

Training hours
per employee hours

P19 ASETIEF B [ P

Total number
of trainees

BEANAE

Training hours
per employee hours
TG A IR R [ ] aNE

Managerial grade General staff
This year marks the 350 years since the founding of Tong Ren Tang, which also marks the 15 anniversary since the ngﬁil%& h %ZFEI h
founding of the Group. The Group commenced a special plaque cleansing (complimenting) ceremony at the Tai Po B 5 IJ\(E:*: rs 'I B u /J\(E;I rs
y

Production and R&D Base on 8 March (2 February on the Lunar Calendar). The plaque cleansing (complimenting) ceremony
is a brand new form and vehicle for succession of culture and history by Tong Ren Tang in the new era. Being the ultimate
Total number

originator, the Dashilan outlet (as the origin of Tong Ren Tang culture) has organised 7 plague cleansing (complimenting) Total number | | |
activities since 2010 and generated great response from the community. Currently, the plaque cleansing (complimenting) of_trr_alnees 79 people of trainees 233 people
. . . L BEZINAE A BEAANE N
ceremony at Dashilan outlet in Beijing has become an important part of Beijing’s folk culture.
. N . o Training hours Training hours (V v \
EEAFRECEREISF  TRAKEMIIGEF - AEEHERSASH(BRE-AYD)RABEEM R EMETF(ED per employee hours per employee hours I
EEX B ERARACEEHKHERVLMNEEN —BEHFHHEIANEARE - FRABVREE  BCEERIRE XM F195 AR [ ] P Fi98 A SRR [ ] NEE

WEEB2010FR  ESEELERT7ROF(R)EFS  WEETBRALZEE - BT B ER D T AMMEEERF (B
ERERAERA T ERRANEZARID - o
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Forging the self-discipline of “Dedication comes from the heart in the steps that

no one else can see”, while we pursue excellence in Chinese medicine research

and development, we are committed to protecting the environment.

A= pdtor (e A AR > FAO0H KM BB R - 7E 0T 3 b g8 2 i J5 i
NG 2 R Y [ g > I 7R I DR s BR B2 A AT -
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Complying with the environment-related law and regulations, the
Group implemented measures on the administration of environmental
protection of production bases to regulate the emission of Tai Po
Production and R&D Base. Through standardising the emission
management, implementing resources conservation measures and
raising employees’ awareness, we monitor and continuously optimise
our environmental performance.

EMISSION MANAGEMENT

Carbon emission and air pollutant

During the Year, the Group also engaged an independent consultant
to conduct a carbon assessment for quantifying the greenhouse gas
emissions (or “carbon emissions”) generated from its operations. The
quantification process is carried out based on a set of guidelines
drawn up by the Environmental Protection Department and the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department™, the “Greenhouse
gas protocol: a corporate accounting and reporting standard”,
ISO14064-1 and other International standards.

AEBRBHBEABNEEER  HE(EER
HIRBREEERL)  RBOFEETREHBN
HRMEE - RMNEBEEHRYERRE - #
THNERERRRESEIRE  EBEREER
ERERR -

P A B
A % 22 535 ety

NE REFRETLBIEMETRTMG  UE
tEEEENBEREHER (B MmFERD 2
tHEERSEEBRABENKEIRERENE
SO (RERERERR  CEREHEBEZE)
R 1S014064-1 S HMERIZERET o

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS i % 5 H8 HF i

Emissions for year of 2019 (tonnes of CO2 equivalent)®

&) (4)5)(6)

Scope 1 emission

A 1 4 )

Scope 2 emission

A 4101

Intensity of greenhouse gas
(HK$’ million of revenue)

2 R HE U (y e sl )

20195 HiE (M—EtHE:e)?@

Scope 3 emission
A 3 ) L 2 SRR e

71.7

Total —

Total greenhouse
gas emissions

te

(7)

2,586.3

Notes ff 5 :

m “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional

Purpose) in Hong Kong”.

(BBEEY (FX - FEAAHAR) MBEZERBHERRABRNZEMNBREESD -

@ Due to the failure of providing raw data at some operating sites for the Year, it is impossible to calculate and cover their greenhouse gas

emissions.

HRE D EEHRERERRABEBREAERRELREREER -

@ Scope 1 includes direct greenhouse gas emissions from stationary source fuel combustion and mobile source fuel combustion.

HENVEFEREEERRERERADRERERHNERBEREHER -

@ Scope 2 includes energy indirect greenhouse gas emissions from purchased energy.

EE2BERAUMNEERNEEBEREIM

® Electricity data in December 2019 for factory in Hong Kong headquarters was estimated data based on the average monthly electricity

consumption in the same year.

ERABEE2019F 12 ANENHBERMGEERE  RAFEAFHIRAEEME -

© Some operating sites (failed to calculate the greenhouse gas emissions related to the purchased heat (hot water) due to the inability to obtain

information such as hot water temperature.

BREESRELEMANBESEN MRS EHEINEE D (BOK) HEABREREHN -

o Scope 3 only includes the electricity consumption derived from water and sewage treatment by the Water Supplies Department and the Drainage
Services Department, and the other indirect greenhouse gas emissions arising from plane business trip of Hong Kong business of the Group®.
HESABEREAEAEKOBRABBEEERARERBEESKBERAE N RASERKEBRTHWEMBZEEREHM -

® Hong Kong business includes Honour Essence, TRT Tong Xin Tong Le, Hong Kong headquarters (factory, offices, retail outlets and warehouse),

and TRT Fook Ming Tong.

BREBBEARES  LREACERVGEYE  FEAB(EE - HAZE  TELKXRNARE)  URECEEHE -

During the Year, the Group’s total carbon emissions were 2,586.3 tonnes CO, equivalent. The Group’s carbon emissions
were mainly from the use of purchased electricity in Scope 2, which accounted for about 90.4% of the total emissions,
followed by burning of fossil fuel in mobile combustion units in Scope 1, which accounted for about 3.8% of the total
emissions. In response to the major sources of carbon emissions, the Group will continue to assess, record and disclose
annually its greenhouse gas emissions and other environmental data, so as to review the effectiveness of ongoing
measures and help further development of emission reduction targets in the future.

Air pollutants are mainly generated from emissions from gasoline and diesel burned from vehicles operating in each
operating sites, liquefied petroleum gas consumed by cooking herbs in Asia, and natural gas produced by cooking herbs in
America.

RE AEBENABRERH2586 3 M _ALRES - AEEANHIREIEZEREHE2ZHBELES  HRAEREN
90.4%  HARHWE1 2 BBRNCARBME  DEAHRENI.8% ~ SFHBMPFBNEBERER - REBBBETME - L8
REFREAREREHRREGRERE  RMRIRITHEERN  BEYERE-SHERHFER -

ZRGRANIBFEEASEBEUNEHEME VAN TNEERNEEMERRCOBR  UAREMNEBHRENRE
AARREELENTER -

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (By Sources)

2 SR A R (B D 4y )

Fossil Fuel Combustion — stationary source
L BEREIRE — BER

Fossil Fuel Combustion — mobile source
{LRBEIRE: — BEIR

Purchased electricity

SNEE R

Water consumption

RKEA

Sewage discharge

SEIKEER

Business travel by air

b TEE YN

ONNON NN

Air Pollutant
22 RI5

“ EMISSIONS #E84
—

Emissions for year of 2019
201958 E

~

Respirable Suspended
Particulates

AR AT

Sulphur Oxides
ALY

Nitrogen Oxides

"D

93.9

kg T3

511

kgT3
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Waste

The Group, being well aware of the potential impacts of waste on the environment, employees and the public, cautiously
treats solid waste arising from its production. Based on our business nature and operational requirements, solid waste
generated during the operation is divided into hazardous waste and general non-hazardous waste. In this regard, we have
implemented regulatory actions and treatment measures for each category. This Year, a total of 0.37 tonnes of hazardous
waste such as acupuncture needles and cotton generated by the Group were handed over to and handed by qualified
companies. At the same time, 340,954 liters of non-hazardous waste such as domestic waste, about 177.2 tonnes in total
were handed over to, as well as collected, cleared and processed by the local government.

Hazardous waste 5= EEY

Limited chemicals and other hazardous wastes are generated from the Group’s production process while a small
amount of medical waste is generated from the Chinese clinical services at retail outlets. Paying attention to the
risk of improper disposal of hazardous waste, waste will be disposed of with proper supervision and disposal.

FEENEEBRESVECEREEERRY  MEEXARNPELERBTIRAELELBBEEYN - RMNBEIEIFE
EEREEEERVMNWEAR ZBZEEERRE  BERERHEERY -

Chemicals and other hazardous waste

tE2RRAMESEERRY

Understand that the chemicals we use in experiment and
production pose a potential threat to the staff and public
health and pollute the environment. Therefore, the Group
implemented control measures, which are administered and
supervised by laboratory management, in accordance with
Hazardous Chemicals Control Ordinance of Hong Kong.
RALENETERBEANLERHYETIRARBRERNK
WEBERKR  TEHRBERSR  Blt AEEXRBEE
(ESEEREFFRM)FIEESER LHERZEEEASR
BEANTREE -

Chemicals and other hazardous wastes such as chemical
containers and waste oil are disposed to specially-marked
collection containers, which are stored separately in the
leak-proof and explosion-proof facilities. Licenses from the
relevant government authority were applied and waste is
sent to qualified recyclers for handling. The amount of
recycling for each time will be recorded.
LEREESEEEREY  WERDRE BEHE A58
EENBIEZEBNBERSE  BYFHRERRE - BHER -
B R 5 K B 1R 5 T BE YRR e o F M E o AE B IR AT #4448 R AR B
B WERMEEZEYESERBRENEE  §RETER
RisEEIlE o

Medical waste
BEEY

The acupuncture needles used in Chinese
medical consultation fall within the scope of
medical waste Group 1 — Used or Contaminated
Sharps. The medical waste treatment methods
prepared by the Group complies with “Waste
Disposal Ordinance” and “Codes of Practice for
the Management of Clinical Waste”. Our staff at
retail outlets are required to recap and properly
placed used needles in disposal bin with special
marks to separate from other waste and avoid
contact with human. The sealed medical waste
will be transferred to a licensed medical waste
collector for disposal. Meanwhile, we will submit
a relevant application to the Environmental
Protection Department for follow-up actions.
REREDRRE S RATANS BERENE —
BRIl — [RERARZTSRAE | AEERBER B
(BEYMEBEGRID) R(EREYERET/ETA) HH
(BEEVEERE) ZELXARETRERREMN
SEEN  FETHREBEERER FUERE - WK
HMEY AR HOBEAEBHRE S TEHE
BEDNE BREMRBEERYUEREE - B -
EINEMRREERMERS » UERE -

Looking forward, we will further improve measures for recycling, including the installation of separate waste recycling
boxes in Taipo Production and R&D Base and offices and the implementation of separate collection of food waste. At the
same time, we also consider requesting third parties to provide waste data when approaching and entering into a contract
with a garbage recycling company in order to assist the Group in improving relevant disclosures and continuously
improving management.

RERK  BRMBE-—SEEERDKWIER  EERAFEENRELNPLAENR I EERERETHHRIEEKR - [
B BRMFAZRESREAKATRARILARF  BEREFRHERNEE  HHrEEATEHRRERSEREER -

JEFEY

AEBRABRNHERE - ETINRARNEESE  EHEBELEETELENEREY  BRMGSXRUEMNEETR  KEE
EENERBERNIAEEERMR —RESTERY  UHHZERVITLEEREERE - AF  REBEENH N
WIESEETEEPHOI7LM - YRAAERLARE  AREENEFUREREERYH 340,954 7 - Y1772 2K -
R EMBABIIWE  BFEMEE -

Non-hazardous waste #EZEEY)

The waste generated in the Group’s daily operation mainly includes non-hazardous waste, such as packaging
materials and domestic wastes. By reducing waste at source, recycling and reusing resources, the Group strives to
reduce the non-hazardous waste generated by the operation.

FEENEELEELERBENREFUREBTERY - RMNEBETHRERE  XHERBAREREY - B
EERMTRNEEERY -

Waste generated from the production Domestic wastes

process and packaging
EERBEMIR

The Group adheres to the approach

of “purchase on demand”, where we
purchase packaging material based

on the production volume.

HSE N AR

Kitchen waste generated from the kitchen of the Tai Po Production and R&D
Base is collected and stored at designated bins to be sent and disposed by
collector. Qualified collector will regularly collect and handle sewage and
waste oil being discharged from the kitchen to the grease traps.

Employees at Tai Po Production and AEEUEBNRBUERBEEABEEMREMRENEE > YAKE
R&D Base are encouraged to reuse BEE -BHEHRE BN S KR EHEERRETEHRERZER
and prevent willful discard of I o

recyclable waste such as
newspapers and paper box.
Employees are required to collect
and separate recyclable waste,
which will be sent to waste collector e Establish new electronic system, adopt paperless communications
for recycling. to reduce printing

AEERFREEEINERE > RE BUNNEFRGE  BTEFLEE B
MEEERBHERENGRME - «  Use double-sided q ingle-side printed

AEEG B AR AR ETE se dou ;ESI ed papers and reuse single-side printed paper
BER FLESZRTERER RRSELE  RREES

o MR R ALRE - B FERE e Collect paper, ink cartridges and used battery for further treatment
THWERDETERERY  BRXH by independent professional recycler

R MEE KRR o WERR 2kE - BEETHE  XHBUEXCWEHFERERE

1l l WASTE Ji$ 54

Generation for the Year 2019

20195 ES
(} 7 it
Total

Non-hazardous waste
generated intensity

JEH B R

Meanwhile, office staff are required to reuse and recycle:

B HBBRAEETYEEARSEEIR :

' Total Ej
Hazardous waste

generated intensity

HHE BRI

Total hazardous
2
waste generated”

i e A A A )

Total non-hazardous
waste generated”

o 7 A fo g e s )

177.2

tonnes A Mg

0.1 0.37

tonnes A Wi

0.0003

(tonnes/HK$’ million of revenue)

(O /¥ BTN )

(tonnes/HK$’ million of revenue)
(W / FHEEITTHA)

™ The Group counts the amount of non-hazardous waste produced by volume (liter), and estimates the weight of waste at 0.5 kg per litre of waste.
AEBUEE () AEURTEEERZYELSE  REAUROSTREFLRES -

@ Data was not comprehensive and only included several countries and regions, and we will consider to further improve relevant data collection in the future.
YEIR2E REFETHEBRREER  $E-FEETERRIHERE -

L
o~

TT 30 o
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PACKAGING MATERIALS ®##1E

Consumption for Year of 2019
20195 AR

" Total —

Total Packaging
S Materials
Plastic %8} b

76.9 297.2

tonnes M tonnes W tonnes W§

Intensity of packaging materials
(tonnes/HK$’ million of revenue)

LSRRI E (w1 i TN

Note Mt & :

™ Only includes the operation sites involved consumption of packaging materials.
REESREBEMBERENEER -

Wastewater

Polluted water discharged by the Group is mainly sewage from production and domestic sewage. In order to minimise the
impact of sewage discharge on the environment, we perform sewage tests at our Tai Po Production and R&D Base every 5
years to ensure the standards are complied with. Sewage is discharged to specified sewage treatment system via
government pipes, and it is collected, sampled and tested by government authorities on a regular basis.

The production equipment, containers and tools are cleaned and sterilized with self-produced purified water and
formulated alcohol. The cleaning and disinfection of medicine containers are processed without the use of detergents. The
water discharged are “residue-free, pollution-free”, which minimise the pollution damages to the environment from the
production process. We adopt food-grade lubricants on production equipment which are easily degraded and
environmentally friendly.

RESOURCES EFFICIENCY
Energy Consumption

During the Year, the Group’s total energy consumption was 5,198.8 MWh equivalent, and the power consumption was
4,398.8 Mwh. Other energy consumption included liquefied petroleum gas, natural gas, gasoline and diesel. The Group’s
electricity consumption is mainly derived from its business in Hong Kong, of which the electricity consumption of Tai Po
Production and R&D Base accounted for approximately 36.5% of the Group’s total electricity consumption.

157K
AEEELNSAKISREEEREERAK  BRESKEHEBEERDTE  BASsERABEETREH MR  BE
ATEE R BB RN EER RS KEERSAEBRES L AB T AEEE SN ER SR

EENRE AR ITEYEABEARAKKRCHABEFRENERETERERES EBERNRRABEARESARRS
TREAEMABRE  BRAFHWAKIZRE TR CRHEBBRHRBSANEEEERIBE -MEERBETFRAR
ZOBNRREHBELURDITR -

HEJEBE

AE S KEBWRREAEESS,1988KEBEE AR EEH4,3988KEE - Hg REABERIEEHRRE - XAR A
SRS c AREENRESETEREEBELE  HPABEEN R EMNASHEELESEN36.5% °

M

411
‘T' | ENERGY USED s i

Consumption for the year of 2019 '
2019F AR ME

Total

Liquefied Total energy
Gasoline” Diesel” petroleum oas Electricity® consumption
Yy y 1 &5¢ D A E S =N
. G (e (EYYE s I

1 TH 3R S

242 M| 4063 M| 43988 M 51988

MWh equivalent

MWh equivalent MWh equivalent MWh equivalent MWh equivalent MWh JEECEF [y
KERFEE

KEEFEE KEEFEE KEEFEE KEEFEE

Energy Intensity
(MWh equivalent per HK$’ million of revenue)

REVR R B (g 1 v 6 B AT TR 2548

Water Resources Usage

The Group’s total water consumption for the year was 22,329 m?, and the water consumption intensity was 15.6 m3/
revenue (HK$’million).

KB WAE
RE > AEENBIEKER22320 UK RABER1561T K HEBTHA o

WATER CONSUMPTION Hj7k

Consumption of year of 2019
2019 FAES

o
- Total

Total water consumption

HAFE K B

22,329

M3z 53K

Water consumption intensity
(m3/HK$’> million of revenue)

FEAKBEE Groik/ B ssEkA)

Notes Fff3F :

™ Only includes the operation sites involved gasoline, diesel, liquefied petroleum gas and natural gas emissions.
REESRAME - 58 REBERRERRRARERNEELY -

@ Due to the failure of providing raw data at some operating sites for the Year, it is impossible to calculate and cover their electricity consumption.

HRBEERRERHERBHBRREFTERREEE N HRE -
© Due to the failure of providing raw data at some operating sites for the Year, it is impossible to calculate and cover their water consumption.

HRE D EEHREREAREBEBCREAERREHEKE -

D T 3 0 =

o b @ at
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Resources Reservation

The Group fully understands that energy and water are valuable natural resources shared among humans. This year, each
operations of the Group obtained water from the government, and had no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. We
pay great emphasis on electricity and water conservation and require the employees to be prudent in the use of electricity
and water resources without wastage. The Group has implemented a series of measures to enhance resources efficiency.
As energy consumption is the primary source of the Group’s greenhouse gas emission, we will continue our focus and
strive to enhance the energy usage efficiency at the Tai Po Production and R&D Base, office and retail outlets.

FEERAERRBADRABBENEERRER  TRAENAZER - AF  AREFLERTBUFEK - XERBEA
KREEEABE - RMERPYAERAK  EREIRFEEER - #BRENFRA - ARECER - RIIBALRME
HEE - B EREREERAEERERBHRNEIERR  EMSEERIY S IRARNFLEERNRES. PLAERT
R I REIRE A R o

Primary measures to enhance resources efficiency and minimize carbon emission
RABRRBRBOBERNEERE

Tai Po Production e The air conditioning and lighting system of the Production Base are set at day or night
and R&D Base modes to reduce the energy consumption during night time
RFEEWEE SEEMNZARRARSARABREEER - B REERER

e Install timers along the corridor, the surroundings and the concourse of the Production Base
REEEMER  ARRAERIKEE

* Maintain energy consumption at a reasonable level based on the production requirement
RBEEER  GEBTHASE

e Turn off all electrical, air conditioning and lighting appliances before leaving for the day or
when not in use
RTURBAERSEEAERE ZARRARS

e Regularly check and maintain energy-consuming production equipment to sustain its energy
efficiency
EHRERBEFRELEERR  URSHERNE

e |nstall information card for production equipment to make it easier for professionals to
perform regular monitoring and follow-up
REERBRERBERES  HESZASTEHEIRRE

e Taking into account the actual needs, timers are installed for outdoor advertising signs so
that the signs are only turned on for a designated period at night
ZERER[TE  AFNBREHRIFEE  REETRERFREAR

e Maximise the use of natural light and adjust lightings based on sunlight conditions
BERAAAKX AEBRARBHAGRZEZE

e Adopt energy-saving lamps with higher energy efficiency
EASRERNENESEER

e Regularly perform inspection and maintenance to ensure proper functioning of water
equipments and pipes
ERRENREAKREREE  BREFERE

* Regularly collect and inspect the electricity and water usage for analysis and response
EHREMBE AERFAKELED R E

e Deliberately selected and planned the plant species for greening Tai Po Production and
R&D Base

REEERAIRFAAEEMREL DR RCEYNER

Primary measures to enhance resources efficiency and minimize carbon emission

RAERKm ROED R E EiE

Hong Kong office e The air conditioning and lighting system of the office are set at day or night modes to

and retail outlets reduce the energy consumption during night time

BEERAER MAZEMNZARBHRRSERBBRREER - B REERERE

TERIR

e Air-conditioning temperature of office is set at 25.5°C
REZHABEFENRE25.5°C

e Regularly educate the employees on the importance of energy and water conservation and
saving
EHEE T RAEEHKNERY

e Place different green plants in office to adjust the air quality and relieve the monotony and
weariness from work
RRLAEREEBHEEEY  UBATEZRREMR ITETRNVEFDER

* Remind employees to turn off all electrical, air conditioning and lighting appliances before
leaving for the day or when not in use
RTIEBINTURBEAEASGEEMERE ZARBARES

e Maximise the use of natural light and adjust lightings based on sunlight conditions
BERAAAKX AERRARBHAGRZEZE

e Adopt energy-saving lamps with higher energy efficiency
EASERNENEHREER

e Regularly collect and inspect the electricity and water usage for analysis and response
TE R SR A ARIR A E & Ak 8 UME D T IR 68

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

In compliance with the laws and regulations, the Group regularly supervises each operation site in its daily operation to
ensure the emission complies with statutory requirements. During its daily operation, there is no direct impact of material
nature on the environment and natural resources. The Group, in view of the growing attention of all stakeholders in
community on sustainability, intends to lower the ecological impact of product life cycle by reducing waste generated from
the use of products.

BB R R AR E IR

FEBTHREETPETERRENERER  EHERSLEN  BREAFRVUFESEEER - BEAKENRFEER
FERYRERAREREREAYE  EREFLS L EFOEARVEITHERRE  FRENHIAREREDBRAE -
ZEHEHERRENEE NI ERREEENERY -

L
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SERVE THE COMMUNITY: HEALTHY LIFE GLOBAL CHOICE

We are committed to the corporate spirit of
“Nurturing kindness and virtue, Preserving
tranquility and wellness” to promote healthy
life and TCM culture in the community.

As a time-honored enterprise with centuries of history, Tong Ren Tang
has always upheld the mission and vision of “Healthy Life Global
Choice” to improve the wellness of the community and actively
promote TCM culture across the world. While providing quality
medicine products to the Chinese medicine market, the Group also
actively participates in social welfare business. The Group fully carries
out the responsibility of a corporate citizen and gives back to the
community. We leverage our expertise in TCM to facilitate cooperation
among different sectors of community and encourage employees to
care for and serve the community. We promote community investment
in four aspects, including “caring for public health”, “supporting the
grassroots and the underprivileged”, “promoting TCM culture”, and
“boosting TCM education”.

This year, the employees of the Group participated in community
activities for around 719 hours, and charitable donations exceeded
about HK$0.1 million. In the future, the Group will continue to
understand and focus on the needs of the community, improve policies
related to community investment, and create shared value for society
and the environment.

BTk [ B8 > Fiih %
B IRy SRR A - R AL I A R
il 3 A 4 % A A v B B A o

ERA—REFEFE  RCE-—BUTRERE -
E2RAZ |AEGES  BEAMBREEXT - UE
BREBERETEEL AEEESTEHEE
THERUEBEEQNER  HEBRRENEEA
BEX 2AIBTLEARFBEANEMR EE
HE - HMEATBENER BREBELEE
RoOGRETHENREHLE - RMBECSEE
BHERE BREIHELAREER) [HKEER
EE] TshishBEL IMMEFTEERE |-

RE . AEENETZHLBFHBHH719/)
B ZEBROBBOIEEBT KRR AL
BESEETRREIMESE  TELEBREMN
BHE  AHERRRAEHZEE -

Tl B4k 7 RS AR R - B ERIL

O e R

Promoting Chinese medicine healthcare, spreading health knowledge and enhancing health awareness
EEPESL  EREREIBRESRESRE

Care for Public Health B %

e Organised Chinese medicine healthcare seminars and free medical consultation activities to offer Chinese medicine
services for employees at various enterprises and organisations
ERTEBLREFAERZRDED  AZHCERABESTRHUTERK

e Organised seminars and provided free Chinese medical consultation services to promote health knowledge and
treatment approach in Hong Kong and overseas from time to time
REBRBISHTIENLZHEERREREDRE  ERREAR  BRAEFE

e Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC sponsored Dubai Holding Burj Al Arab Swim in April 2019
tRECEBEFRABN2019F 4 B2 HE B EFAMBEEikLEED

e This Year, the Group provided free consultation services to more than 1,510 people
RE AEFHLAEB 1,510 \RERDRE

B E e TT 30 o =
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SERVE THE COMMUNITY: HEALTHY LIFE GLOBAL CHOICE

Supporting the Grassroots and the Underprivileged $k 58 [F 3% g

Providing assistance to people in distress and performing acts of kindness

KEAR - FREO

Donated to various charities, including the Community Chest of Hong Kong and the Polish Food Bank
ZERBTZHZERE  QEEBRABRERRERYRT

Participated in “The Community Chest 50th Anniversary Walk for Millions (Central — Wan Chai Bypass)” activity
organised by the Community Chest
SNMBEEERRETPNAB L0 BFEEBT(MREREFEZB) | STERED

Participated in “Christmas Greetings for the Chest 2019” activity organised by the Community Chest
SNMBAEEARS TRV ERTERARAH2019]1FH

Participated in the job fair organised by the Hong Kong College of Technology to provide more job opportunities to
the grassroots and underprivileged
SHAEBEEEBERENNBESURHESHERSTERERE

Organised as well as encouraged employees to establish corporate volunteering team and actively participated in
social volunteering services. During the Year, our volunteering team joined the “A Day with Food Angel” activity
organised by the Mingxi Charity Foundation Association and Food Angel teams. Under the thorough explanation from
the working staff, the volunteering team visited the central kitchen of Food Angel in Chaiwan. The team tried the food
processing and meal box packaging tasks as well as assisted the working staff to finish the subsequent recycling,
sterilisation and cleaning works. From that they personally understood there are still poors not receiving adequate
nutrition in developed communities where food wastage and food shortage co-exist
HBRHBETIRYCEZTEN  BESHERBRAMEZIRB -AF  AQAFZTEBSNTHABAEESEMN
(MERE|EBEASN ERRBRA I AZETH RTIEEEBIFASHAER SBIEREIUREENTRESE -
URBRESEHBMER BRAI UHHIHFASTHREEERERIESERT/F  EHERIELBRENLE
RPARFE-LERALTEESIEZANEERE  THRRYRENRYERLFHER

e s
) ‘h". 4.\‘2,

Jie B5 AL - AU B BE > 2 BRIL

Promoting TCM Culture to benefit mankind
BB EX (L - BRAR

Organised the Belt and Road Initiative TCM international development symposium cum overseas working conference
2019 in January 2019 and introduced the deep thoughts on international transmission of TCM and overseas’ core
development strategy

M2019F1 AR —H— R | PEEEARCERMASE2019F 8N IHFE  NATFBEARSBENTLEZSEEH
Hh D B R B

Opened the Tai Po Production and R&D Base for public viewing through “The Fourth Capital State-owned Enterprise
Open Day”. The Chief Executive of Hong Kong, Mrs Carrie Lam was invited to attend the opening ceremony and gave
a speech on the open day. Hundreds of people from Hong Kong visited and attended the open day
ZBIENEEHECHMAE I BRAHEERRERFARSE -HRABEXRTFAFINEBERINTHEERMBAR
WRFARXAE ARSI THESEETRESZE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Company Limited organised its first “Capital State-owned Enterprise Open Day”
activity which included healthcare seminars and free Chinese medical consultation services. Officials from the Macao
Special Administrative Region Government, members of the China People’s Political Consultative Conference, the
press and citizens of Macao were invited to attend the open day

EREECECRPMD ERADEERTIECHKRB | RIES  BEEEELBERLEBTERZYRE -ARAEXRE
BEIRMENTHERNEERTFEARBAGEEZ2EZESZEERLEE  RERRMATRERE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC exclusively sponsored “Dubai-Macao TCM exchange program launching
ceremony cum TCM and CAM Expo” opening ceremony in May 2019

ETRECEBERTRARN2019F5 ARBKHNEE20198F — BPIFEEALRIRASMBEIETEECAMREES |
R

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) Company Limited co-organised the 2019 “China Tourism and Culture Week —
Recommendations for Traditional Chinese Medicine Culture and Health Tourism in New Zealand” held in Wellington,
the capital city of New Zealand, in June 2019. Free TCM consultations were provided and many activities were
carried out, including TCM seminars, TCM workshops, TCM culture and product exhibition

EREMCE (R BRARAN2019F6 AGMENANEHRBEEETHN2019F [PEKEE — FEEM
BEREFRARENTD | WRHFEMELRETHEBE FEETHY  PEENLCERRTEEDY

In October 2019, Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Company Limited joined “The 24th Macao International Trade and
Investment Fair MIF 2019” in Macao to further promote TCM and overseas reputation of Tong Ren Tang

EREM-ZE R BRDOBSMMA2019F 10 AERMBERN [E-THREEMEKREZRERESMIF 2019 LE—
SEMMERTPBENECENBINDNSE
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SERVE THE COMMUNITY: HEALTHY LIFE GLOBAL CHOICE

Promoting TCM education and development

EBTHEEYE  XRESHRE

Jie B5 AL - AU B BE > 2 BRIL

Organised various theme-based talks and public health education seminars to support Chinese medicine
development
XRHBERR DNENSEEERERARREREEE

Supported students of excellence from School of Chinese Medicine, Hong Kong Baptist University and Western
Sydney University. Encouraged students to actively explore TCM and give back to the community and help patients
with excellent medical practices in the future

EBBENFAZBEBEREAREPEHEER T Western Sydney University WEFE 4 FESLEBEBFRERHE
2 OERLUBENEN DELS - EBRA

I b ot B bk TT 30 ot =
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Subject
Areas
TEEHE

Description
AR

A1: Emissions
BB
General

Disclosure
—RIEE

Information on:
Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
FEEBRRBRZEREHM RARLTHNHES BEREZBEEYNELES
B
(@) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BIFHBITABEAZENEELZERRANER -
The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BB ER AR -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.
BERERASNERTE -

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FELEEREPRERTE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FELBEREPRERTE -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
HAUREPE ENIERRAERR -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,

reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HIREEERBEEREYNG L REELEENBRREMAEBHE

Page Index
=R

49,64

65

64-65

66-67

66-67

64-65, 68, 70-71

66-67

A2: Use of Resources

EREMA
General
Disclosure
—RIEE

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials.

BERERER (BIEER  KREAMREME) BBUER -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.
REABINEER SEEEREAEEREE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BEKEBEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

M EERE AN BT R RAEHRE -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

B SREGE AR LT B A RIE - URBHBKRBTFEIRFBRR
Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to
per unit produced.

HRGBAABRMBNBERBEEEMUHLE -

64

68-69

69

68-71

69-71

68

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BERRA

General
Disclosure
—RIFE
A3.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.

BEBITABRERRRERERERFENHE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and

natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
B ERZTHHBRRARERNEAFERERNEEEHAFLENTH -

64

71

Subject
Areas
TEEHRE

Description
AR

B1: Employment

=R

General
Disclosure
—RiEE

B1.2

Information on:
Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
FRETHRAE REREA ITHARKE - B FERE 2l RER
UREMEFERERNN
(@) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BIHBTABEALENEBREZERRINES -
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
region.
7R ERER FRANRBESINESEH -
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
MR FREBRBBESNEERKLLER -

Page Index

HB%S

49, 58-59

60-61

61

B2: Health and Safety

RERZR

General
Disclosure
—RiEE

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

Information on:
Relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
FHRHEZE2THFRERRERERABMEMREN
(@) the policies; and
BER R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BFUBRTABEALENHEBERRBGINER -
Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
AIERAERMETHAZKELE -
Lost days due to work injury.
EAIEERTFEAH -
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they

are implemented and monitored.
BT ER AN RRE T 2R 0 ARMEBERTRESRS % -

49, 56-57

57

57

56-517

B3: Development and Training

BERIEI

General
Disclosure
— R E
B3.1

B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training activities.
FHRAEESETIEBRENABREENBEER - #HMEIED -

The percentage of trained employee by gender and employee category.
B RESEMNESNZIEETSL ©

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

EMRREERMNE S  SEEETHI VN TG -

62-63

63

63
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Subject
Areas Description Page Index
TEHE AR BB RS

B4: Labour Standards
& T
General Information on: 47, 49
Disclosure Relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RIKE BHBLEETREHETH :
(@) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BFHBTABEAZENHEBERRAGINER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and | 47
forced labour.
MR REENNEREAREET REBHLT -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 47
BHERRERBREERBEABRTRRNTRE -

B5: Supply Chain Management

e s E
[CENETE]] Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 54-55
plelosler | BEMEERNBRERITERBECR o
—RIKE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 55)
ZimEB D NHERHE -
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of 54-55

suppliers being implemented with relevant practices and how the
practices are implemented and monitored.

W EEEAEEENES  mEHTEREFNMEREE - URBEERENM
AT REEER T3 ©

B6: Product Responsibility

EREE
General Information on: 47-48, 50-55
Disclosure Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
—RIKE relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
ERFREHERANBRENRENRSZSE BS  EBRLABSEUREBRL
"y :
(@) the policies; and
BE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BFUBTABEAZENHEBEERRBGINER -

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety 48
and health reasons.

EERCEXERAETRR2HERREHMBRKNES

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they 52, 55
are dealt with.
EREBARERRRENIRFEE UAREHFE -
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 47
property rights.
MR R RE AR EREHENVED -

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 50-53
HiEEREREREREKER
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are 47

implemented and monitored.

B BEEENRERARBEE  UREBEHTRESELE -

B g R IR

Subject
Areas Description Page Index
TEHE AR BB RS

B7: Anti-corruption
REF
General Information on: 46-48
Disclosure Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RIKE BN  $R - MEFMKREN
(@) the policies; and
BR R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BIFHBITABEAZENEELEREHNER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought 48
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERBAHBHTASIHEEERBLCEENESHARMNEE RFAER

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how 46-47
they are implemented and monitored.
MBS R R BRER  URBBERITRERGE -

B8: Community Investment

HERE

General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 72

Disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into

—RIFE consideration the communities’ interests.
RN E2ER T REEMELEEENRREESEDSZRULEFNRN
BUK o

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 72-77
EXERIEE -

B8.2 Resources contributed. 72

EEIHEMBAER -

A
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT
BEH R

MULTI-CHANNEL INVESTOR COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

We believe that expanding our diversified channels of effective communication will help us to streamline our
communication with individuals, institutional shareholders and public investors (collectively named as “Investors” in this
investor relations report), facilitate, open and transparent exchange of information. Investors’ understanding and
understanding of the Company’s corporate mission and vision, development strategy, industry competition and operational
and financial performance will enable investors to make investment decisions in informed circumstances. The Company is
responsible for fair, accurate and timely disclosure of company information to ensure a high degree of transparency,
enhance the Group’s attention, stabilize our relationship with investors, and strengthen the mutual trust of each other.

In 2019, the Group continued to maintain a positive and effective communication with investors who are concerned about
the business development of the Company in a positive and responsive manner. The Group is committed to providing
investors with convenient communication channels and endeavored to ensure that all published data are true and accurate
and clear and balanced. The Group also collects feedback from investors and analysts and reflects the views to the
management and the board of directors. We are committed to maintaining healthy and two-way communication to ensure
that investors can fully understand the Group’s long-term development, strategy, industry competition and financial and
operational performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

The Group strictly follows the principle of fair disclosure to ensure fair communication with investors and the media and
does not selectively disclose significant non-public information to any person. We are very supportive of investor relations
activities. To facilitate the two-way communication with investors, the Group has adopted different ways, including local
and overseas non-deal road shows, investor meetings, annual general meetings, corporate meetings, conference calls and
e-mail consultation, to closely and frequently communicate with shareholders, analysts and potential investors.

During the Year, our management also participated in the investment summit organized by the world’s leading investment
banks in Hong Kong and Beijing and also organized one-on-one and group investor meetings, teleconferences and non-
deal roadshows in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shenzhen and Shanghai, communicating with over 200 investors.

The Group has made use of a number of channels to interact with investors and keep them abreast of the Group’s latest
developments.

Non-deal roadshows and investment forums

We hold non-deal roadshows after the interim and annual results announcement so that investors can obtain first-hand
information on the latest release from the management. The Group also actively participates in several investment
conferences organized by investment banks of which the management of the Group directly talks with investors and
analysts to share our financial results, business strategies and etc..

Major investor conferences participated and roadshows held in 2019 are set out below:

Month B % Event =18
January — A China New Economy Summit / Bl $ &€ 7 12 &
March = B Non-Deal Roadshow X 5 &

Non-Deal Roadshow kX 5 8&&
Non-Deal Roadshow X 5 &
Non-Deal Roadshow 3% 5 &
Non-Deal Roadshow 3R 5 ¥ /&
August \ B Non-Deal Roadshow 3% 5 &
Non-Deal Roadshow 33X 5 &
Non-Deal Roadshow 33X 5 &
Non-Deal Roadshow 3% 5 &
Non-Deal Roadshow 33X 5 &
October + A Healthcare Corporate Day BETE LT ATHEN B

% YB3 i R

EMBEARZACHNAERNEBRE  BYRREEMEGA  BERRRAZRKREE (R
BREERFREABIREEDETHE 5 AHMNBEANERIR  ERNRRE
EHAEEzLEEGRES  BRER  EARFIERUAZLERVBRRIAIABER
B RMBEREERENBZBERTFERERE - AEEULQT ERREFREQT
ARBEME  UBRRARSERE  RBAXKENREIE REXMEREENEE UK
RELHTHRBNEE -

2019%F  AEERERAEYN UTEERKENRE - BREE  BARSHEEIQREL
BRINREENFEENER - ARER N AREERAFEENBERE AR/ IREMD
NEHYEIREEERLBHFEHLES  TERERE - AEBTREREERD T
BENRESR  IRZERRRRAEEERESE - RMBINREREREANEE -
BRAREFEZEURBHERIEENRABEMRR TR TERFHARAZHBERE
BRH

P& B ARG B

FEEBREBRATRERE  BRUATHAXNEREEREEEE  BTSREEM @
EAALEBEERFQAMER - BMYUREZFBRIFD TOXE AREEREEZBNE
EEE AEEBBRHREANMMIERZRE REESTE RREFKAE - AREHE -
EFRERNEBBASTEANRE  HRR  OMAREEREZFRERBEENIR

RE > APAEEESMAL AZZRERTREERLTEBRIREERS  FEABKTE
HEMNMBREESS EE23 URERER 7 - BIIRLENIEXRSKEE  HE
200 B EEETHEB -

AREEBSERERBAEEHN  SRAZCELRBEFNVBRDE -
FERR Ty B e BE Wt &
BMRA MR FERARGEBIERBE - AERREOE RIS ARR B RA

MER - AEBEBRBEBRSNARERTEABNREZERE - AEEEEBNRELERREE
RotE  BMM2EZFAKEMBEE  EBRRBERHFEN -

R2019FRT2HERSEIABREEESNT :

Organizers 18 Location it 2
Morgan Stanley EE#R+ &7l Beijing &t
Morgan Stanley EER =+ f3F Hong Kong & &
CICC #&2AH] Shanghai £i&
First Shanghai 5 — L& Shenzhen Z&3I
China Securities R{E&E&K Beijing 1t %X
Industrial Securities ¥ % Hong Kong &8
Morgan Stanley EEAR =+ £} F Hong Kong &/
HSBC EZ Hong Kong &8
CICC & AT Shanghai &
First Shanghai 5 — E£i& Hong Kong &8
Industrial Securities E %% % Hong Kong &
GF Securities B3 5E % Hong Kong &/
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT

Ongoing communication with the investment community

The Group actively arranged various investor relation activities, including telephone conferences with analysts and investor
meetings and etc., in order to keep investors abreast of the Group’s latest updates and business operations. Through such
activities, we not only maintain close contact with investors so that investors can get more in-depth and meticulous
understanding of the Company’s situation, but also collect valuable advice from investor’s on the Group’s business
strategy.

Timely response to investors, analysts and media

Our investor relation representative provides detailed and accurate information in a timely manner in response to various
forms of enquiries from Shareholders, investors, analysts and the media via email, fax or telephone.

Factory visit

Factory visit is one of the best ways for our investors to understand our business operations. Upon receiving requests of
investors from time to time or at the annual general meeting, the Group will arrange the relevant itinerary and reception as
soon as possible, facilitating investors taking full advantage of this opportunity to understand the Group’s products,
historical development, shop display and sales management and other first-hand information.

Besides the above systematic communication activities, the Company website also contains an updated investor relations
section to reach out to the investment community and public with the latest information on the Company. We also promote
proactive communication through direct contact with our investor relations team via email at ir@tongrentangcm.com.

Share Performance R {EZH

Closing price as at 31 December (HK$ per share) 11.76 12.32 1062 10.48 9.88 10.78 10.18
K128 31 BT E(BRET)

Highest price during the year (HK$ per share) 1586 17.94 12.00 12.20 14.82 12.50 14.90
FERSE(BRET)
Lowest price during the year (HK$ per share) 9.88 10.54 9.98 7.55 7.71 9.09 4.70
FEHEE(BRET)
Average daily trading volume (thousand share) 854 925 469 424 883 1,120 4,200
SAFPHAXE(TR)
MARKET DIVIDEND PER SHARE
CAPITALISATION® AND DIVIDEND YIELD"
HiE® (534959, I
HK$’billion HK$ o %
1050 | THEET BT 19 20 EAK
10.31 0.25 20
10.00 9.84 020 16
950 015 1.2
9.00 8.95 8.89 0.10 0.8
8.77
8.50 8.45 0.05 0.4
I 8.27
8.00 I . 0.0
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
M Market capitalization and dividend yield are calculated [ Dividend per share @ Dividend yield
based on the closing share price of the Company BREE BRE=

as at 31 December of the respective years.
TERBREERBEEF12A31 BNALARHREE

@ Not included 2019 Special interim dividend (HK$0.72 per share).
FEIE2019F 455 FHRE (BR0.728T) °

P& B RS

PR LB R
AREIDHRALMRAERBED  AESNOTHGN  BAETHS  REARE
ENBASHAFDHNCENR - BALSED  AMBTREEELBREWE BB
AEEMAAEHOBRATER  FTUERAEH FEMEHRBOAREE -

Ko bhg [l BE BB~ 0 A B A

REEZDREBEAZBER FHEREFHFX  REEERRE - REE  IMEREENS
BEH URHEABADRERFRNESY -

T2 B

BB IRERREEERRAMESLCEBINRES A2 — AEEEEERRAEHR
BRIAREESBEIFMNERE  SEEABRRTHMETRERES  BEPREEZIAA
Ele BEAEENER BERE - EERY  HEEESEFE-—FER -

BRTYUELRAGHENBBREHIN  AORAABNREEFERELETEHEN  BBERARM
BEARABALTRUEAQRAGEFHESERENELEIE - B0 BT HEANZHBEEER
SEEER  AQTANEBREEZBESE FHFH ir@tongrentangem.com E2 1% & & 11T H B 5

EEE

A
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM is a platform for face-to-face communication with Shareholders. Our Board members, senior management,
lawyer and external auditor will attend and answer questions on the performance of the Group raised by the Shareholders.

The 2019 AGM was held at 3 Dai King Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong on 7 May 2019, for
approval of, among others, the re-election of retiring Directors and the general mandates to issue and purchase shares.
Particulars of the major items considered at the 2019 AGM are set out in the circular dated 2 April 2019. All proposed
resolutions were passed by way of poll voting at the 2019 AGM.

The 2020 AGM will be held at 3 Dai King Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong on Friday, 12 June
2020 at 10:30 a.m..

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

This Year, the Company participated in presentation activity of the “2019 China Enterprise Excellence Award” jointly
organized by Hong-Kong Mainland International Investment Society, Porda Havas International Finance Communications
Group and AMO Group. We stood out from hundreds of renowned Mainland and local enterprises and have been awarded
“The Best Enterprise”.

Beijing Tol >N
“iedicine Company Limited
S sl {4 bR AT A28 W)

2019 4 Jit 33 4E K
2019 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

P& B RS

BERB AR

BRRBEFASR—EARFERRIANTE  KMNESEHE  SREBASE - AREM
ROMBEZHMISHE  TURRRELERAAEERRWEEFELERE -

2019 FRRBFERENR2019F5 B 7TABEE BN A RNBIENASHIFEIT - 2019F
BREBFASLIBEBR-EE HPEEEREAESURRTRBEARA 2 - REESS
Ho2010FRRBFAR I KEZE 2T EEHFBEHANRBHA2019F 4828 2EBRA °
FIER0MI9ERRBAFAGLREZRER  WUREFRNEBEB -

2020 FMRBAFARERMN2020F6 512 (EHR) R L10RBI 0D BEESBHRHIE
TWPASH 3GELEIT o

JRHE R 5

AE AQRREAZEHHETBERRELS BERERARIKSENEERAMORERS
EREO 2019 EIEEBR | HRE  REOIEARIINBLEDFEMNL KB HED
EmkE %A -

EoaR i I ﬁ I b ot B bk TT 30 ot =
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
HHELEREHAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ding Yong Ling, aged 56, is an executive director and the chairman of the Board of the Company. She is mainly
responsible for leading the Board to determines the development strategic direction of the Group and the high-level
oversight of the management. Ms. Ding was appointed as a managing director (now namely as chief executive officer) of
the Company in September 2004 and the chairman of the Board of the Company on 11 March 2019. Ms. Ding resigned as
the chief executive officer of the Company on 18 April 2019. Ms. Ding joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in 1984 and
was formerly the head of the foreign trade division of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, manager of the import and export branches
and the executive director and the deputy general manager of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and the director of Beijing
Tong Ren Tang International Co., Ltd., and also is currently the director and the deputy general manager of Tong Ren Tang
Holdings. Ms. Ding graduated from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in August
1997 with a bachelor’s degree in major of economic management, and she further completed an on-the-job postgraduate
course in international business administration at the Business School of the University of International Business and
Economics in April 2002.

Zhang Huan Ping, aged 59, is an executive director and chief executive officer of the Company and is mainly responsible
for our day-to-day operation and management. Mr. Zhang joined the Company as a deputy general manager in May 2008.
He was appointed as a Director on 1 February 2011 and was also appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company
on 18 April 2019. Mr. Zhang joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in May 1979 and formerly served as the deputy manager
of Tong Zhou Medicine Factory and Medicine Wine Factory of Tong Ren Tang Ltd., and an executive director of Tong Ren
Tang Technologies. Mr. Zhang graduated in major of economic management from the Correspondence Institute of Party
School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in December 2000. He is a pharmacist-in-charge
conferred by the Beijing Intermediate Professional Technical Titles Evaluation Committee in November 2002.

Lin Man, aged 44, is an executive director, the chief financial officer and the company secretary of the Company and is
mainly responsible for finance management. Ms. Lin joined the Company in 2004 and was appointed as the company
secretary in 2005 and the chief financial officer in 2008. Ms. Lin was appointed as a Director on 1 February 2011. Ms. Lin is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Lin obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts in Polish
from Beijing Foreign Studies University in July 1999 and a bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance from the University
of Lancaster in July 2004.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chen Fei, aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 24 March 2020. Mr. Chen currently
serves as the manager of Operational Management Department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Mr. Chen joined Beijing Tong
Ren Tang Group in August 1994, formerly served as the general manager of Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co., Ltd., the
deputy manager of Economic Operation Department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings and the deputy manager of Pricing
Department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese medicine from School of
Chinese Medicine of Beijing Union University in August 1994.

BT

TKE 565 RNOFUTESRESSIE FEEEFHEERETAEEBRERKE
FEOREESEABEEEE - TLTNR2004FARZIAXQRAESHLE (BREEE
HITE) XR2019F3A 1M AEZEARARESEEE - N2019F 48180 Tt
BEARAEEHTE - TZLTA1984FENMALRTRECERE  BERCEEE QR
NEEER - EHOAQALE  ALCENRPTESRALLE L RZECEEARERD
AEEAKERRARCEEBARESRAIALE - TLL 1097 F8 A EER PR
EREBEEEHLETEESAEERF  HEN2002F4 TR BIEBES KEEREHER
BBt EREEEBMEERE -

RIBFE 595 AAFRHBTEESREEITE TEEEARQFANBELEEREEER -
FEER22008FES AMARDAEMERNRAEE  R2011E2B1BEZEEAERATES
WHR2019F 418 HEZEALRRTAEEHITE - RAEAEMI197TIFS AMALREACESE
B -BERCERCENREFIBEREOARIBE  URBCEREHITES - RAE
HR2000F 12 AE2EXENPHIRERRITER » FELEESE - A2002F 11 AEILREH
BEMBEICZEERETFEE PELM -

ME 445 KRR TESRUBLERQAAME  TETEEWKEE - ML 2004
FMARRDET » R2005FBEZERARAWE > R2008FEZEAMBRE  N20115F2
B1AEZIAEE -MLTAETESHMAEREE - ML LR1999F 7 AL TIHINEE
BERFEEENEETEN > N2004E7 AEFFHEAER TS HEMBE LS -

Jan
FEHITEE

BR » 495% » M2020 F 324 HEZRXARQATIFTES  RERCEEEQARELEE
EHMIMBR  -REER194FAMALZBCEEE  FEELRECE(ZR)BRAAA
&I ECEEEARKSEETHRSRE  RECEEEATTESYEEEDRRIRE - BE
ER1994 F8 AL AR EARETBEEBREFHFBEEE LB -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, G.B.M., G.B.S., J.P., aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 12 September 2017. Mr. Tsang is Honorary Professor of the Faculty of Social Science of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and the Convenor of Hong Kong Vision Research Programme. Mr. Tsang currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company Limited (Stock code: 135) which is listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Tsang held a number of posts in public service, including the President of the Fourth and the Fifth
Legislative Council of the HKSAR from 2008 to 2016. Prior to his election as President of the Legislative Council of the
HKSAR, Mr. Tsang served as a member of the Legislative Council from 1998 to 2016, representing the Kowloon West
constituency from 1998 to 2008 and the Hong Kong Island constituency form 2008 to 2016. He served as a member of the
Executive Council of the HKSAR from 2002 to 2008. From 1992 to 2003, he served as chairman of the Democratic Alliance
for the Betterment of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang was actively involved in the establishment of the HKSAR. He served as a
member of the Preparatory Committee established by the Standing Committee of the Chinese National People’s Congress
in 1996 and a member of the Provisional Legislative Council of the HKSAR from 1997 to 1998. Mr. Tsang was a member of
the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 1993 to 2013, a non-executive
director of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission from 2001 to 2007, a member of the Executive Committee
of the Commission on Strategic Development from 2005 to 2008, a board member of the Airport Authority Hong Kong from
2005 to 2008, a member of the Independent Commission Against Corruption Complaints Committee from 2003 to 2008
and a member of the Disaster Relief Fund Advisory Committee from 2002 to 2008. Mr. Tsang also served as a member of
the Council of The Open University of Hong Kong from 1996 to 2005 and a member of the Standing Committee on
Language Education and Research from 1996 to 2000. Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree at The University of
Hong Kong in 1968, Certificate in Education at the University of Hong Kong in 1981 and a Master of Education degree at
the University of Hong Kong in 1983. Mr. Tsang was appointed as a Justice of the Peace (J.P.) in 1998 and was awarded
the Gold Bauhinia Star (G.B.S.) in 2002 and the Grand Bauhinia Medal (G.M.B.) in 2015.

Zhao Zhong Zhen, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 15 April 2013.
Mr. Zhao is currently a professor of the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University. Mr. Zhao has been
an associate professor of Hong Kong Baptist University since April 1999. Mr. Zhao is currently a member of the Chinese
Pharmacopoeia Commission. From 1985 to 1987, Mr. Zhao was a research assistant of Institute of Chinese Material
Medical China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences. From 1987 to 1988 and 1991 to 1992, Mr. Zhao was a visiting
scholar of Tokyo University of Pharmacy and Life Science. Mr. Zhao was a research director of a laboratory for Chinese
medicines in Japan during the period from October 1992 to April 1999. From July 2009 to January 2010, Mr. Zhao was a
visiting scholar of Osher Research Centre of Harvard Medical School and was a member of Chinese Medicine
Development Committee from February 2013 to January 2019. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree and a

master’s degree, both in Chinese medicine, from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in March 1982, and from China
Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences in December 1985, respectively. Mr. Zhao obtained his doctorate degree in
pharmacy in Tokyo University of Pharmacy and Life Science in March 1992.

Chan Ngai Chi, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 15 April 2013. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Chan had more than 20 years of financial management, compliance and auditing experience.
Mr. Chan worked in the audit division of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong and various listed companies in Hong Kong
and the U.S.. Mr. Chan worked in Tong Ren Tang Technologies as the financial controller and company secretary from
2004 to 2007. Mr. Chan worked as the principal financial officer of Gushan Environmental Energy Company Limited, which
was a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange since December 2007 and privatized in October 2012. Mr. Chan is
currently the principal financial officer of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (Stock code: 1636). Mr. Chan is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and also a Chartered Financial Analyst Charterholder. Mr. Chan graduated from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in business administration in accounting in 1994 and also obtained a
master’s degree in Science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2003.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Hua Ji Hong, aged 45, is a deputy general manager of the Company, and is mainly responsible for the brand management,
marketing, as well as sales and business management in traditional markets of the Company. Ms. Hua joined Beijing Tong
Ren Tang Group in 2000. Ms. Hua obtained a bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree, both in Chinese medicine, from
Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in June 1997 and July 2000, respectively.

Li Xia, aged 53, is the chief engineer of the Company, and joined the Company in 2008. Ms. Li has been in Beijing Tong
Ren Tang Group since 1990 and is mainly responsible for research and development of Chinese medicines and healthcare
products. Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese medicine from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in July
1989.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The change in the information of the Directors and senior management of the Company since the publication of the 2019
interim report of the Company which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set out
below:

Name of Director and Senior Management Detail of Changes

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Fei Appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 24
March 2020.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Kunlun
Energy Company Limited on 27 August 2019, a company publicly

listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen Not served as an associate dean and held the administrative post
of the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University
since September 2019.

Senior Management

Mr. Anyang Ma, J.P. Resigned as the deputy general manager of the Company on 10
October 2019.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules. The updated biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the preceding section headed
“Directors and Senior Management”.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
FE

The Directors are pleased to present the report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and
healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages
150 to 151 of this annual report.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.23 (2018: HK$0.23) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2019. Such final dividend will be proposed for approval by shareholders at the AGM to be held on Friday, 12 June 2020
and if approved, will be payable on or before Monday, 29 June 2020 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on Monday, 22 June 2020.

Details of the dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the dividend policy of the Company are also set out in the below section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following periods:

(i) from Monday, 8 June 2020 to Friday, 12 June 2020 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell
Centre,183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 5 June 2020;
and

(ii) from Thursday, 18 June 2020 to Monday, 22 June 2020 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement the proposed final dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at the address as set out in sub-paragraph (i) above
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 June 2020.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, no transfers of shares will be registered.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had borrowings of HK$1.1 million (2018: HK$1.2 million), details of which are set out
in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
in notes 31 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 156 to 157 of the annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the reserves of the Company available for distribution amounted to HK$1,772.1 million (2018:
HK$2,012.0 million).

DONATIONS

Cash charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to HK$0.1 million
(2018: HK$1.9 million).

SEVEN YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last seven financial years is set out on pages
6 to 7 of the annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue received/receivable from the top five customers in aggregate and the
single largest customer accounted for approximately 51.7% (2018: 46.0%) and 22.6% (2018: 17.1%) of the Group’s
revenue, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, purchases paid/payable to the top five suppliers in aggregate and the largest
supplier constituted approximately 54.2% (2018: 70.1%) and 28.4% (2018: 37.0%) of the Group’s total purchases,
respectively.

For the years ended 31 December 2019, among the Group’s top five customers include a subsidiary of the ultimate holding
company and subsidiaries of the intermediate holding company. In addition, the Group’s top five suppliers include the
immediate holding company, the intermediate holding company and their associates.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the top five
customers and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values the contributions of employees. The Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. Details are set out below under the section “Emolument Policy” and note
2(v) to the consolidated financial statements.

To maintain its core competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the Chinese
medicine products and service to its customers. The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its customers and suppliers to fulfil its long term goals and carefully select (including and taking into
account their financial position, credit history and other factors) our suppliers to ensure that our commitment to customers
of quality and ethics. As at 31 December 2019, majority of the Group’s trade receivables are due within 90 days from the
date of invoices, and credit periods granted to distributors, including fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
normally range from 30 days to 90 days. Details are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its customers and/or
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ding Yong Ling (Chairman) (appointed as chairman of the Board on 11 March 2019)
Zhang Huan Ping (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed as chief executive officer on 18 April 2019)
Lin Man (Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Non-executive Directors

Mei Qun (Chairman) (retired on 11 March 2019)
Chen Fei (appointed on 24 March 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
Zhao Zhong Zhen
Chan Ngai Chi

In accordance with Articles 81(B) and 97 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chen Fei, who was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 24 March 2020, shall hold office only until the conclusion of AGM and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the AGM. Accordingly, three directors, namely, Ms. Ding Yong Ling, Ms. Lin Man
and Mr. Chen Fei shall retire from office by rotation respectively at the forthcoming AGM and, all being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

With effect from 11 March 2019, Mr. Mei Qun has retired as the non-executive director and chairman of the Board of the
Company as Mr. Mei Qun has passed the retirement age.

Ms. Ding Yong Ling was appointed as the chairman of the Board with effect from 11 March 2019.

Ms. Ding Yong Ling also wishes to focus on her role as chairman of the Board of the Company to lead the Board to
determine the strategic direction of the Group and is responsible for the high-level oversight of the management. She
resigned as chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 18 April 2019. Mr. Zhang Huan Ping was appointed as
chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 18 April 2019.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors, a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent. A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries can be found in the Company’s website
(www.tongrentangcm.com) under “Investor Relations”.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

All executive directors, Ms. Ding Yong Ling, Mr. Zhang Huan Ping and Ms. Lin Man, have entered into service contracts
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 15 April 2019.

Non-executive director, Mr. Chen Fei, has entered into a service contract with the Company for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 24 March 2020.

Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi, being all our independent non-executive
directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 12
September 2017, 15 April 2019 and 15 April 2019, respectively, unless terminated by either party giving at least two
months’ notice in writing.

None of the Directors has entered or proposed to enter into any service contracts with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 88 to 93 of the annual
report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with reference to market terms and the performance,
qualifications and experience of the individual employee. The remunerations of the Directors are determined with reference
to the economic situation, the market condition, the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director as well as their
individual performance. Details of the fee and emolument of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates various retirement schemes. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note 2(v) to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interest and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)) of Directors
and chief executives of the Company which would have to be notified to the Company pursuant to of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and required to be entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules of the
Exchange, to be notified to the Company and the Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares

Types of interests

ERME
The Company X2 7]
Ding Yong Ling T k¥ Personal f& A
Lin Man # 2 Personal @A
Tong Ren Tang Technologies [E1= % &} &
Mei Qun 8% (retired on 11 March 2019 #2019 3 A 11 HiEfE) Personal f& A
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. E{- & &%
Mei Qun &% (retired on 11 March 2019 12019 F 3 A 11 HiEfF) Personal f& A
Notes:
™ These shares represent 0.46% of domestic shares of Tong Ren Tang Technologies.
@ All represent A shares of Tong Ren Tang Ltd..

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in shares” above, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2019 was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective associates has any competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

To ensure that the business classification between the Company and the Controlling Shareholders are properly
documented and established, each of the Controlling Shareholders entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) in favour of the Company on 18 April 2013, details of which are set out in the Prospectus, mainly to the
effect that at any time until their collective beneficial interest in the equity interest in the Company is less than 30%, each of
them shall not, and shall procure their respective subsidiaries (except through its interests in the Group) not to, without
prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly:

(i) engage in the research, development, manufacture and sales of any products containing ganoderma lucidum or
ganoderma lucidum spores as raw materials in the Non-PRC Markets;

(ii) engage in the research, development, manufacture and sale of any products with “Tong Ren Tang” brands in
Non-PRC Markets, except for the manufacture of the Chinese medicine products for the two independent third
parties in Japan; for the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the Deed of Non-competition,
except for the current excluded business in Japan, engage in arrangement with any other parties in the Non-PRC
Markets similar to the excluded business in Japan;

(i)  carry out any sales or registration (new or renewal) for Angong Niuhuang Wan in the Non-PRC Markets;

(iv)  engage in the distribution of any Chinese medicine products in Non-PRC Markets, except for certain existing
arrangements as disclosed in the Prospectus; and

(v) carry out any new overseas registration of “Tong Ren Tang” branded products ((i) to (v) are collectively known as
“Restricted Business”).

In addition, under the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders has also undertaken that if each of
them and/or any of its associates is offered or becomes aware of any project or new business opportunity (the “New
Business Opportunity”) that relates to the Restricted Business, whether directly or indirectly, it shall (i) promptly and in any
event not later than seven (7) days notify the Company in writing of such opportunity and provide such information as is
reasonably required by the Company in order to enable the Company to come to an informed assessment of such
opportunity; and (ii) use its best endeavours to procure that such opportunity is offered to the Company on terms no less
favourable than the terms on which such opportunity is offered to it and/or its associates.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive directors) will review the New Business Opportunity and decide
whether to invest in the New Business Opportunity within thirty (30) business days of receipt of notice from Controlling
Shareholders.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings has also granted the Company rights of first refusal to acquire its interest in Beijing Tong Ren
Tang Hong Kong Medicine Management Limited, Beijing Tong Ren Tang (UK) Limited and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tai Fong
Co., Ltd. on terms which are not less favorable than the terms it wishes to sell to other parties.

In this connection, the Group adopted the following corporate governance measures to manage any potential conflicts of
interest arising from any future potential competing business and to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company:

(i) the independent non-executive directors shall review, at least on an annual basis, the compliance with and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders; and

(ii) the Company will disclose the review by the independent non-executive directors with basis on the compliance with
and enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition in its annual report.

In monitoring the competing business of the Parent Group, an executive committee (the “Competition Executive
Committee”) comprising two disinterested Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Huan Ping and Ms. Lin Man, has been established
with the following major responsibilities:

(@)  conduct quarterly inspection of the distribution channels of the Parent Group, including retail stores and wholesale
customers, to check whether any products containing ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw
materials (other than GLSPC) is sold in Non-PRC Markets; and

(b)  conduct quarterly communications with representatives of the Parent Group to confirm whether their research and
development portfolio has any products which contain ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw
materials.
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A supervisory committee (the “Competition Supervisory Committee”), comprising three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman), Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi, has been
established, with the following major responsibilities:

(@) meet quarterly and review the quarterly inspection record and daily communication records by the Competition
Executive Committee (if applicable); and

(b)  report findings during its review of the records provided by the Competition Executive Committee to the Board which
will be published in the Company’s annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Competition Executive Committee, they are not aware of the distribution channels of the
Parent Group selling any products containing ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw materials (other
than GLSPC) in Non-PRC Markets for the year ended 31 December 2019.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2019, the interest of the persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the Company, in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO and entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to
the Company were as follows:

Long Position in Shares
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Name of shareholder Capacity Number of shares EERITREAKN

BRRERE -27) RHEE BMAOBED

Tong Ren Tang Technologies [E{=E &H% Beneficial owner Bm G A 318,540,000 38.05%

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. ® E{=Z & © Beneficial owner B A A 281,460,000 33.62%

Interest of a controlled corporation 3 15| T A 318,540,000 38.05%

Tong Ren Tang Holdings @ @{—E&£E A 7@ Interest of a controlled corporation 1% & 5] fy 2% 600,000,000 71.67%
Notes: T

(1) Tong Ren Tang Ltd. directly holds 46.85% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Accordingly, Tong Ren Tang
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in 318,540,000 shares of the Company held by Tong Ren Tang Technologies.

) Tong Ren Tang Holdings directly holds 52.45% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. which in turn directly holds 46.85%
of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Tong Ren Tang Holdings also directly holds 0.74% of the issued share
capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Accordingly, Tong Ren Tang Holdings is deemed to be interested in 318,540,000 shares of
the Company and 281,460,000 shares of the Company held by Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd., respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the Company, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, certain of these transactions also constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of connected transactions/continuing connected transactions with the connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules (applicable to the Company prior to the
Transfer of listings and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (applicable to the Company immediately after the Transfer of
listing). Details of the non-exempted continuing connected transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2019 are as follows:

(1)

PRC Distribution Framework Agreement

On 14 December 2016, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a PRC distribution framework
agreement (the “PRC Distribution Framework Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Group (collectively refer to Tong Ren
Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its associates, other than Tong Ren Tang
Technologies and its subsidiaries) act as a non-exclusive distributor of the Group and would purchase the Owned
Products (as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 14 December 2016) from the Group and then
distribute the same to retailer or end users in the PRC for a period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected person
of the Company under Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the PRC Distribution
Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 are HK$200,000,000 (exclusive of
value-added tax in the PRC), HK$230,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$270,000,000
(exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively.

As the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a renewed
PRC distribution framework agreement on 2 December 2019 with Tong Ren Tang Holdings (the “Renewed PRC
Distribution Framework Agreement”) to renew the procurement arrangement for a further term of three years from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The annual caps for the transactions under the Renewed PRC Distribution
Framework Agreement for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are HK$273,000,000 (exclusive of
value-added tax in PRC), HK$296,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in PRC) and HK$322,000,000 (exclusive of
value-added tax in PRC), respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5% and
the annual caps is more than HK$10,000,000, the Renewed PRC distribution framework agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements as
well as the independent shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules.

The Renewed PRC Distribution Framework Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company in the extraordinary general meeting held on 30 December 2019.

Exclusive Distributorshi]ﬁFramework Agreements with Tong Ren Tang
Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd.

On 8 November 2017, the Company entered into new exclusive distributorship framework agreements (the
“Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements”) with each of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang
Ltd. whereby TRT International Natural-Pharm, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was appointed by each
of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group (refer to Tong Ren Tang Technologies, its subsidiaries and its associates
(other than the Group)) and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group (refer to Tong Ren Tang Ltd., its subsidiaries and its
associates (other than Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group and the Group)) as the sole distributor of Tong Ren Tang
branded products in Non-PRC markets for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. TRT International
Natural-Pharm would purchase Tong Ren Tang branded products from Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group and
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group and distribute them to the Non-PRC Markets.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. are both the controlling shareholders of the Company and
hence are connected persons of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps in respect of the
transactions under the Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements with Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 and the year ending 31 December 2020 are HK$58,400,000,
HK$76,400,000 and HK$99,200,000, respectively. The annual caps in respect of the transactions under the Exclusive
Distributorship Framework Agreements with Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019 and the year ending 31 December 2020 are HK$87,600,000, HK$114,600,000 and HK$148,800,000,
respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5% and
the annual caps is more than HK$10,000,000, the Exclusive Distributorship Framework agreements and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements as
well as the independent shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules. The Exclusive Distributorship Framework
Agreements were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 1 December 2017.
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(3)

Procurement of Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder from Tong Ren Tang Ltd.

The Company and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. entered into the Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder master purchase agreement
on 6 December 2018 (the “Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement”) whereby the Company
would purchase Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder, being the raw materials for production of Angong Niuhuang Wan,
from Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is our controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Angong Niuhuang
Wan Powder Master Purchase Supplemental Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 and years ending
2020 and 2021 are HK$31,000,000, HK$42,000,000,000 and HK$55,000,000, respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 0.1% but
less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder
Master Purchase Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Master Lease Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings

On 25 January 2017, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a master lease framework agreement
(the “Master Lease Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which, Tong Ren Tang Holdings has agreed to lease and
procure other members of the Parent Group to lease certain premises to the Group for its productions and
operations so that any member of the Group may continue, amend or renew the Existing Leases with any member of
the Parent Group from time to time and as necessary for the future business needs of the Group for a period from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Master Lease
Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 are HK$6,200,000, HK$6,900,000
and HK$7,000,000, respectively.

As the Master Lease Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a renewed
master lease framework agreement with Tong Ren Tang Ltd. (the “Renewed Master Lease Framework Agreement”)
on 30 December 2019 to renew the lease arrangement for a further term of three years from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2022. According to HKFRS 16 which was effective for the Group from 1 January 2019, the Group is
required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, which are measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate in the year of entering into the
lease where the Group acts as a lessee. Correspondingly, the Group is required to set annual caps on the total value
of right-of-use assets relating to leases to be entered into by the Group as a lessee in each year under the Renewed
Master Lease Framework Agreement. The annual caps for the transactions under the Renewed Master Lease
Framework Agreement for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are HK$21,000,000, HK$16,000,000
and HK$11,200,000, respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio and equity capital ratio) of the annual
caps exceed 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Master
Lease Framework Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

(3)
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Details of the above continuing connected transactions are further summarised as follows:

Name of connected party Nature of transaction
L AR REMEE

(1)  Tong Ren Tang Group Sales of the Owned Products

B{EKE SHEBEEm
(2)  Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group Purchase of Tong Ren Tang branded products for distribution
BE{ERKEE BEARSHENECEREER

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group
B{-ZRHEE

(3) Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group Purchase of Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder

B{ERGEE BEZE4EAY
4) Parent Group Lease of premises
BEH MEHE

The price and the terms of the above transactions have been determined in accordance with the pricing policies and
guideline set out in the relevant announcements.

Confirmation of independent non-executive directors:

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(1)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(8)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group on pages 104 to 111 of
this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Exchange.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the
Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries. There is no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Details of Directors’ interests in contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business are set out in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report. Other than as disclosed above, there was no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries, or its holding companies or
any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRFERERSFEE-SRANT

Transaction amount
for the year ended
31 December 2019

R RS

Annual cap
for the year ended
31 December 2019
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. A permitted indemnity provision (as defined
in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout this year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and believes business development and environment affairs
are highly related. This year, the Group implemented certain environmental protection measures to save energy and reduce
the consumption of resources. These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented effectively. The Board of
the Company has also reviewed the 2019 ESG Report. For more comprehensive information, please refer to the ESG
Report on pages 32 to 81 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As a listed company engages business in Hong Kong, the Group is subject to various laws and regulations including
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter
112) and Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57). Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of the
same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in certain jurisdictions, compliance procedures are in place to
ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact on the Group. Any
changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units in the Company and subsidiaries from time to time.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance which it believes is
crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the Company. Information on
the Company’s corporate governance principles and practices is set out In the Corporate Governance Report on pages
114 to 143 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution for their re-appointment as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM. The Company has not changed its auditor in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Ding Yong Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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CorPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

e SRR &

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK

EERERNRE

BOARD GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

EEEEOER

SHAREHOLDERS
JBesie

BOARD OF DIRECTORS #H &

EREEETLHE

BOARD COMMITTEES

Gl

MANAGEMENT

responsible for overseeing
the day-to-day management
and operation with Board’s
delegated authority, and
implementation of the
Group’s strategy and policy
RIBEEESRTFHENES
HEHRBEENEE > Bif
52 [ SRR R BUR

O
responsible for the communication
with external auditors and review of
the Group’s financial information,
AUDIT financial reporting system, internal
ol COMMITTEE 1 control procedures and risk

BHUREE management system
BEEINEZAMBRL B RAER
MBER « MBRER% « AEER
B KREREERIE
responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board,

ing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors
hé%hﬁﬂ?g_}gg and making recommendations to the
ui — | Board on the appointment and

REZAE re-appointment of Directors
SEBREZTEE - ABURMER
FHMEBILIFMITESRRI R BIE
REBEFESREESIRIERES
responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the policy and structure
of the remuneration of all the Directors

RO AUINIZEAIIOLY and senior management for approval
4 COMMITTEE ]

HHERE uebere -
BERARBDEFRESREEASN
BRFINBCRRAERESZIRHE
HEESIHE
responsible for review of findings by the

COMPETITION competition executive committee on
S(:Ugﬁl;/[‘gs,?g 1 competing business of the Parent Group
SREEEES AEBIRINTEANENRS RN

REEBIRE
nggzg_gg%N responsible for monitoring of the
LH COMMITTEE —} competing busieis of the Parent Group
SFHHEHG AEBRASEARI LS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board as a whole and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Group firmly believes that strict
corporate governance can enhance the Group’s credibility and
transparency, thus strengthening the confidence of the shareholders
and investors in the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had complied with
all applicable provisions of the CG Code with an exception of a
deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of CG Code during the interval
from 11 March 2019 to 17 April 2019 which provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be performed by separate
individuals with details set out under the paragraph “Chairman and
Chief Executive” below.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIRED
STANDARD OF DEALINGS IN
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules of the Exchange. Having made specific enquiries to
all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company during the Period.

Directors

EH

Executive Directors
HITES Zhang Huan Ping
Lin Man

Non-executive Director Chen Fei
FHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
BYFHTES Zhao Zhong Zhen

Chan Ngai Chi

e XSRS

EEE2RESRAQXAEEFRIEFREN
LEERFRERF - AREBE X BREOLE
ERBARMBAKEANEERBEAE » #MiE
ARRERBREEZHAREENED

BZE2019F12A31ALFEE AEEB—HEBT
CEERTRNFAEEAGKGI  HER2019F3 A
11BZ2019F 4 817 BB Y RFEBEE R T A
A TFAMRIEAARIEEEEREEDTERE
ATRALER HBEREREHFIRTIIES
SEIFRESTHRAE] —&-

MAF LW BT N2 E RS
77 Ty WA < 1

ARTRCHRMEEWRAM B0 MONESET
BERHGNWEETH - KHEEHR 2RES
BRARABACET TRETRRIENRER
RARRMNBERESETESIZNTRATE -

Ding Yong Ling (Chairman) T k¥ (X&)

e

R R

Nomination Committee

RUTHT

Chan Ngai Chi®
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
Zhao Zhong Zhen

Chan Ngai Chi
Ding Yong Ling

Competition Supervisory Committee

BFEELEY

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper®” B
Zhao Zhong Zhen PR
Chan Ngai Chi PR 2% Bt

Being the chairman of the respective committee
RAZEBEXRE

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper" & &g ™

Zhang Huan Ping  R/&¥F
Lin Man m"e

Zhao Zhong Zhen™ HEHRRO
R % Bt Chan Ngai Chi F5R %% Bt
TXK®E Ding Yong Ling TXx®E
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DIRECTORS
Board composition

The Board consists of 7 Directors, comprising 3 executive directors, 1 non-executive director and 3 independent non-
executive Directors. Details of the composition of the Board and the Directors’ biographical information are set out on
pages 88 to 93 of the annual report, respectively. One-third of the Board are independent non-executive directors of which
more than one have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board are reviewed from time to time to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The independence of the
independent non-executive directors is assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors including the names of the chairman, the executive
directors, the non-executive director and the independent non-executive directors, is disclosed in all corporate
communications by the Company. The Company maintains on the Company’s website and on the website of the
Exchange, (i) an updated list of its Directors identifying their respective roles and functions together with their biographical
information and whether they are independent non-executive directors; and (ji) the terms of reference of the Board
committees to enable the shareholders to understand the roles played by those independent non-executive directors who
serve on the relevant Board committees.

Board and Committee Meetings

Regular Board meetings are usually scheduled towards the end of the immediately preceding year to give all Directors
adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the meetings. At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each
regular meeting. Board meeting documents including supporting analysis and related background information are normally
sent to the Directors at least 3 days before regular Board meetings.

The Board meets regularly each year and held meetings in March, April, August and December during the year ended 31
December 2019. In consultation with members of the Board, the company secretary of the Company assists the chairman
of the board in preparing the meeting agenda, where applicable, matters proposed by other Directors are included in the
agenda. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has arranged for an individual meeting between chairman
of the Board and non-executive directors (including independent non-executive directors). The senior management
members are also invited to join Board meetings if necessary, to enhance the Board and management communication.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors actively participated in meetings and a summary of the Directors’
attendance records in 2019 are as follows:

Members of the Board

BEEEHRE

Executive Directors | {TEE

Ding Yong Ling T k%

Zhang Huan Ping 3R /&

Lin Man # &

Non-executive Directors #{TES

Mei Qun 5% (retired on 11 March 2019 R 20194 3 B 11 HiE{F)
Chen Fei R ¢ (appointed on 24 March 2020 %2020 £ 3 B 24 H EZ(F)
Independent Non-executive Directors & E#{TEE

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper Gk

Zhao Zhong Zhen #H 1k

Chan Ngai Chi R ZREt:

Note: Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board met the independent non-executive directors in the absence of the
executive directors.

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps records of substantive matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board and Board committee meetings. These meetings minutes/resolutions:

o contain sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board/Board committees and decisions reached;

. are sent to the Directors for their comments;

o are sent to all Directors/Board committee members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days) after such
meeting; and

. are available for inspection by Directors/Board committee members.

4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4

HH
AL

EETH7EEREN  BRESEUTES 18 FITESRSEBUFYTES - ESS
HEREEEBEF BB BNAFRECSEZNVE -EEE =S —WRERBIFAT
EE TE1EREEBHBEXER  SHRNEBRYREREXAR - A RRATHBNE
FENRBE AB EAEKRZRt BREBALAEBEFFEZXAE  HERERNOT
o ARRRE EHRUNERRNEREFEBIFATESNE LM -

ARABCRAEARBRRESENRBE (BEERE BITES  FUTESRBIEY
TESNHR)RBESSNAR - FDADREA R AMBRBXAABEE () — D&
EXEE JHESAC BEEBEEIZHEABIFITES RMESFEZESTEA
BESE UERRTHRBEUFITESNERESZES SRR -

ER S P eI L

EEEENERNEHRNEABERA - FEARAZY  UEXRESAARHEARIY
F-REHEREARAEREEL UREXNBY -ESEXH (BRI MEARBEEE R
HBEFRESECHERAMAMELIREL -

EEEEETHBHEE MAERDAIN3E 48 - 8ARI2EBHEH HEEEHK
EREE  AAFARUNERPESEIFEFTEEZER  HOESEZNSELRIAZR
(MEA) - BZE2019F 128431 ALFEE AR ECRHESEEIREIPTES (BES
VHPTEB)EBIEE NERETEBFAaAEEABSNESSERUNRESS
HEREBHRR °

HBZ2019F12A31ALFE  SESTEHESNERE  HEN20190F HESENLHEMM
mE

Attendance/Number of Meetings HE R E &3 K&

Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual General

Extra-ordinary

Committee Committee Committee Meeting General Meeting
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Important matters are dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than written resolutions only. If a Director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if appropriate, an independent Board committee will be
set up to deal with the matter. Directors must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the resolution, if
applicable.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities undertaken for the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2019, no claim was made against
the Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Ms. Ding Yong Ling, the chairman of the Board, who was appointed as chairman of the Board on 11 March 2019 and
resigned as chief executive officer on 18 April 2019, leads the Board in terms of formulating policies and is responsible for
business strategic planning and day-to-day management and operation of the Group. The chairman of the Board determines
the board strategic direction of the Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for the high-level oversight of the
management. With the support of the executive directors and the Company Secretary, the chairman of the Board ensures
that all Directors are properly briefed on all key and appropriate issues in a timely manner. The chairman of the Board
promotes a culture of openness and encourages Directors with different views to voice their opinion and be fully engaged in
the Board's affairs so as to contribute to the Board’s functions, and she may meet and/or communicate with the independent
non-executive directors without the presence of the executive directors. During the Year, an individual meeting between Ms.
Ding Yong Ling, the chairman of the Board, and independent non-executive directors was held without the presence of the
executive directors.

The roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer were performed by Ms. Ding Yong Ling at the interval from
11 March 2019 to 17 April 2019, during which there was a deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of CG Code, which
provides that the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer should be performed by separate individuals,
but due to the following reasons, Ms. Ding Yong Ling was considered the most suitable person to take both roles at that
interval. Ms. Ding Yong Ling has made great efforts on oversea business of Tong Ren Tang, and was responsible for
business strategic planning and day-to-day management and operation of the Group. She has a rich experience in oversea
business operation and is a veteran of the Chinese medicine Industry. The Board considered that vesting the roles of
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer in the same person was beneficial to the business prospects and
management of the Group. In addition, out of 6 Directors of the Board, there were 3 independent non-executive directors
on the Board offering their experience, expertise, independent advice and views from different perspectives. The Board
was therefore of the view that there was adequate balance of power and safeguards in place.

On 18 April 2019, Ms. Ding Yong Ling resigned as chief executive officer, and the Board appointed Mr. Zhang Huan Ping
as the chief executive officer to be responsible for business strategic planning and day-to-day management and operation
of the Group. The Board believes this segregation of duties helps to supervise and balance the power and authority of the
Board and enhances the independence and accountability of the Board.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The procedures for appointing and re-electing directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The appointment of a new
director must be approved by the Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship taking into account factors such as appropriate
professional knowledge, industry experience, personal ethics, integrity, personal skills, gender, age, cultural and
educational background.

Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those Directors
who have been Directors longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.

By virtue of Articles 81(B) and 97 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chen Fei, who was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 24 March 2020, shall hold office only until the conclusion of AGM and shall then
be eligible for re-election at the AGM. Accordingly, three directors, namely, Ms. Ding Yong Ling, Ms. Lin Man and Mr. Chen
Fei will retire at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, would offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has entered into service agreements with each executive director and non-executive director and also
appointment letters with independent non-executive directors. The tenure of all Directors is 3 years.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for sustainable development of the Group. The Board is responsible for
formulating the overall strategies as well as monitoring and evaluating the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or reappointment, approval of
major capital transactions and other significant operational and financial matters. All the Directors carry out their duties in
good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and pursue excellence in the interests of the
shareholders at all times.
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Our executive directors, non-executive directors together with our independent non-executive directors offer diverse
industry expertise, serve the important function of advising the management on strategies and ensuring that the Board
fulfils high standards of financial and other mandatory reporting requirements as well as providing adequate checks and
balances for safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The non-executive directors and the independent non-executive directors not only exercise their independent judgment
and advise on the future business direction and strategic plans of the Company, but also review the financial information
and operational performance of the Company on a regular basis.

Every executive director has hands-on knowledge and expertise in the areas and operation in which he/she is charged
with. Appropriate attention to the affairs of the Company is measured in terms of time as well as the quality of such
attention and the ability of the Directors to contribute with reference to his/her area of knowledge and expertise, and his/
her global perspective. There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their appointment and from time to time thereafter the number

and nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments, identifying the public
companies or organizations involved.

Continuous Professional Development of the Directors

All Directors receive comprehensive information on appointment, so as to ensure understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and Directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Company also updates the Directors on the latest developments and changes of the Listing Rules and the applicable
legal and regulatory requirements in the discharge of their duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all the Directors actively participated in continuous professional development,
by attending external training or seminars, attending in-house training and/or reading materials on the various topics
covering regulations, corporate governance, finance and business, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills,
which ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors have provided records of
training to the Company.

Directors

BEE

Mei Qun 1§ %% (retired on 11 March 2019 #2019 3 5 11 HEfE)

Ding Yong Ling T k&

Zhang Huan Ping 3R /&

Lin Man # &

Chen Fei R (appointed on 24 March 2020 #2020 4 3 F 24 A EZ (L)
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper G £/

Zhao Zhong Zhen #H 1k

Chan Ngai Chi [ &t

Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has complied with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive directors representing more than one-third of the Board and they
possess professional qualification and experience in the three areas of financial accounting, social science and Chinese
medicine industry, respectively. All independent non-executive directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Each of the independent non-executive directors makes an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company is of that view that
all the independent non-executive directors meet the independence guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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Supply of and Access to Information

Board/Board committee meeting documents with adequate and reliable information are circulated not less than three days
before the regular Board/Board committee meetings to enable the Directors/Board committee members in making
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board committee meetings.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and senior management of the Company, with a view to ensuring compliance with the Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations.

The Company Secretary acts as the bridge between the Directors and business units of the Group to ensure that queries
raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and that further supporting information is provided, as
appropriate.

Directors have been advised that the Company Secretary can arrange independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company should such advice be considered necessary by any Director or any Board committee.

Delegation to Management

Executive directors are in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in accordance with their respective areas
of expertise.

For matters or transactions of a material nature, the same will be referred to the Board for approval. For matters or
transactions of a magnitude requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules or other applicable rules or regulations appropriate
disclosure will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and shareholders’ approval will be obtained in
accordance with the requirements of the applicable rules and regulations. Specially, the Board has had in place Guidelines
for Investments stating the authority approval limits and procedures.

The Board led by the chairman, is responsible for the Group’s future development directions; overall strategies and
policies; evaluation of the performance of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of a material or
substantial nature. Under the leadership of the chief executive officer, management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board has delegated the responsibility of performing the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee, and is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties according to the Code Provision D.3.1, which includes:

—

(

) developing and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group;

(2)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors
and employees; and

(5)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination Committee on 28 March 2013
with written terms of reference which are available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Exchange. Board
committees report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations at the Board meetings.

Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of the
Listing Rules and the CG Code. As at 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee has 3 members (all of them are the
independent non-executive directors) comprising Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (Chairman), Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper and Mr. Zhao
Zhong Zhen.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to communicate with external auditor; to review the remuneration,
terms of engagement, independence and objectivity of the external auditor; to review the accounting policy, financial
position, the financial reporting system, internal control procedures and risk management system of the Company and
making recommendations thereof.

Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary are circulated to members of the Audit Committee within a reasonable time
after each meeting. Audit Committee meetings were held in March, August and November of 2019.

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during 2019:
(1) Review the financial reports for 2018 annual results and 2019 interim results;

(2)  Review the findings and recommendations of the internal audit department on the work of various departments and
related companies;

) Review the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems;
4) Review the external auditor’s audit findings;
5) Review the auditor’s remuneration;

(6) Review the control mechanisms for the risks of different business units and advising on action plans for improvement
of the situations;

(7)  Perform the corporate governance functions and review the corporate governance policies and practices; and
8) Review the connected transactions with the Parent Group.

On 18 March 2020, the Audit Committee met to review the Group’s 2019 consolidated financial statements, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor. After
review and discussions with the management, internal auditor and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed the
accounting treatment adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosure of the financial information in the Annual Report 2019 complied with the applicable accounting standards
and the Listing Rules.

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2019 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee therefore resolved to recommend for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for 2020 and that the related resolution shall be put forth for
shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2020 annual general meeting.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company during the two years
after he/she ceased to be a partner of the auditing firm.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 to
Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee has 3 members comprising Mr. Zhao Zhong
Zhen (Chairman and independent non-executive director), Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (independent non-executive director) and Ms.
Ding Yong Ling (executive director).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to make recommendations to the Board and review the
terms of the remuneration package of each Director and member of senior management of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof in accordance with the Group’s corporate goals and
objectives; and to review and evaluate the performance of individual Directors. No Director shall participate in any
discussion about his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee did consult the chairman of the Board and/or the executive director about proposals relating
to the remuneration packages and other human resources issues of the Directors and senior management of the Company,
including but not limited to, succession plan and key personnel movements as well as policies for recruiting and retaining
qualified personnel. The human resources department provides administrative support and implements the approved
remuneration packages and other human resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their respective experiences, responsibilities with the
Group and general market conditions. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee had held a
meeting to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management of the Company. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with the code provision
A.5.1 and code provision A.5.2 as set out in the CG Code. The Nomination Committee has 3 members comprising Mr.
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman and independent non-executive director), Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (independent non-
executive director) and Ms. Ding Yong Ling (executive director). During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee held a meeting to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity) of the Board, and also recommend the re-appointment of the Directors standing for re-election at the upcoming
annual general meeting.

For the nomination by the Board of Mr. Chan Ngai Chi to stand for re-election as an independent non-executive director at
the annual general meeting in 2019, explanatory statements were included in the circular accompanying the relevant notice
of meeting to set out reasons why the Board considers him to be independent.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and to make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become the Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection and/or
re-appointment of individuals nominated for directorships of the Company and to assess the independence of independent
non-executive directors. In reviewing and recommending the appointment of new directors, the Nomination Committee
would seek to identify the competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. The resume or document
of the nominee or candidate will be given to the Nomination Committee for consideration.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to diversity of members of the Board and the
Nomination Committee shall review such policy periodically. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
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CRITERIA FOR NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS HRRG LR

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following criteria should be considered: EFERBBRBEAETESN  REAZE88R RESEEEZETHEL

. Character and integrity. . AR B (E o

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the D B BEEEER RD MEREXQAFREERREEENSR  URESEMN
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy. EZTEBEMRRANZ TILEE -

. Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board. . AERESENESNEtMEMNNEAATFEEEZ -

D Requirement for the Board in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would be considered o RELTRBNKRE UARSELTHRARNIIBRBEAREHREABINIES -

independent with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

. Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, o REANTEER 17 &5 - BIMt MR ERCtTHTAEEETRN
independence, gender and cultural diversity. ERBEER -

D Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board o REEBRRARARN EARNEETIRESEREREIESEETEEENE
committee(s) of the Company. ENEE -

. Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan and where applicable, o HthBARAAAEEREETTENEMZTERE  RBEZEER HEEETHE
may be adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for nomination EEERBGIEEREZ -

of directors and succession planning.

NOMINATION PROCEDURE OF DIRECTORS
EHRRART

Nomination Committee and/or the Board @

REZEER RESE

Appointment of New Director ZE#HE=

e May select candidates for directorship from
various channels, including but not limited to
internal promotion, re-designation, referral by
other member of the management and
external recruitment agents.

AREEREBBEESAR  BEETRRR h}
MEA BE AEREEEMKEMINIEE
RIEANIERE -

Nomination Committee 22 Z8 &

e Should recommend to the Board to appoint
the appropriate candidate for directorship,
as applicable.

REACEAEREIEET —SNESSFRE
EE(WEA) -

The Board EE¢&

¢ Should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

e Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and
the biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate,
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to
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fiig EHERIFTEZIRBA  UAEZRRBARDAEREREES -
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—\— — ¢ If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the EAREAE FMEFEESWEEEAATREEHESE(IEA) - %
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by -
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and =
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).
MBRIR—EAAZEBEBENREA  BREAQXANEERESN =
REANIZHES (WER) HIIBMHELRF - w
Shareholders & X g
Re-election of Director Siz&%= ® Proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a :
S ¢ Should review the overall contribution and candidate as Director at the general meeting. 129
service to the Company of the retiring Director EARANBRRAETEREIRERRRES - B
and the level of participation and performance -
on the Board. -
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By Gender
BOARD DIVERSITY &»yﬁ,gugjﬁ

Selection and appointment of new directors will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, qualifications, skills,
knowledge, business and related experience,
commitment, ability to contribute to the Board
process and such qualities and attributes that may be
required by the Board. The ultimate decision will be
made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

@ Male Bt @ Female %t

By Age Group EE X EW (4

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business activities and key financial information on a regular
basis and the management provide all members of the Board with monthly updates of the Company’s performance.

The Board has included the separate statement containing a discussion and analysis of the Group’s sustainability strategy
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Stable and sustainable returns to Shareholders to be our goal of the Company. The Board considered that it would be
prudent and appropriate to target a dividend payout ratio not less than 30%. In deciding whether to propose a dividend,
determining the dividend amount as well as to provide relatively steady dividend payout ratio, the Board takes into account
the Group’s earnings performance, financial results, cash flow position, investment requirements, business conditions and
strategies, future operations and earnings, future operations and earnings, and any other factors that the Board may
consider relevant.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Company and the Group. The Board has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies
have also been used and applied consistently. The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 144 to 149 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

Details of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 100 to 101 of this
annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lin Man is an executive director, the chief financial officer and the company secretary of the Company, as well as a
full-time employee of the Group, discharges the functions of Company Secretary of the Company with her professional skill
and extensive experience. To update her skills and knowledge, Ms. Lin complied with the relevant professional training
requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019. The appointment and removal
of the Company Secretary is subject to Board approval in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Company
Secretary reports to the Board and also to the Chief Executive Officer on day-to-day duties and responsibilities. Company
Secretary is responsible for supporting and advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access to the
advice and service of the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of the services
rendered for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out as follows:

Serviced rendered to the Company £74<2 & FriZ IR %

Audit services #ZH AR #%
Non-audit services FE#% B RS
Total #5t

Fee paid/payable to other auditors were approximately HK$2,968,000.

Non-audit services mainly include tax consultancy services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Internal Control and Risk Management System

The Group has set up a risk management regulation and internal control procedure to establish a clear structure and
procedures for risk management with a systematic and rigorous approach. The Group’s risk management and internal
control systems are aligned with the internal control framework of international body consisting of the five elements,
namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and monitoring. The
Group’s risk governance structure is based on the “3 lines of defense” model comprised of day-to-day operational
management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and independent assurance.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and reviewing its
effectiveness. The management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a robust risk management and internal
control systems to protect the Group’s assets and interests of stakeholders. The Board annually reviews the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, and staff training programs together with its relevant budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal auditing and financial reporting, and also the satisfaction with the adequacy of the parties concerned.
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Identification, Evaluation and Management of the Significant Risks Procedure

The Board is responsible for determining the Group’s risk profile within the acceptable tolerance levels for significant risks,
overseeing the Group’s risk management framework, reviewing the Group’s significant existing and potential risks and their
response and ensuring risk management effectiveness. The Company has set up a risk management committee, which the
team members are mainly composed of the management of the Company. The risk management committee discusses and
collects risk monitoring report through meeting to review the management of these risks and effectiveness of response,
and to constantly monitor the changes in risks.

Risk assessment is the identification and analysis of existing and emerging risks which identifies, filters and prioritizes the
significant risks faced by the Group by the likelihood and degree of impact of the risks to identify risks. The Group has
adopted a top-down approach to review and assess if risks are comprehensively identified and prioritised, and properly
addressed by the management to accomplish the Group’s objectives.

This Year, ten major risks were identified by the Group, which included business/strategic risks, operation risk, and also
compliance and regulatory risks. Certain response measures for ten major risks were established, and the relevant
functional departments and operation units performed daily monitoring on the identified risks pursuant to the established
risk management workflow and response measures, and then submitted a “Risk Control Report”, which summarised the
overall status of the risks and risk management activities, to the risk management team. The risk management team
prepared “Risk Management Report” in accordance with the monitoring status of the ten major risks and the internal audit
department reported to the Audit Committee.

The Group’s risk management programme is a structured mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, evaluating,
responding, controlling, monitoring and reporting of the risks that the Group faces. The significant process of the Group’s
risk management is illustrated below:

all il ~ BEAG KA BT R B R
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Distribution of the
Top 10 Identified Risks
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Risk
Identification

L K e 1

Identify potential risks which
affect the Group’s goals

achievement through seminars,

interviews or questionnaires as
well as the Group’s strategic
direction and business
development condition
BRWNE - B A

R - &&

BERBRMR - 5
HEZHBERRE

Assessment

R By

Evaluate, sort and prioritise the
risks faced by the Group
according to the possibility and
degree of impact
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Response

J o M

Formulate the response
measure to the significant
risks assessed
RAPTRTAL 2 B R BB I E R
it

Risk
Monitoring

Jo gk B e

By monitoring the implementation
of risk management, examine its
effectiveness and improve in a
timely manner based on the
change of risk as well as the
def|C|enC|es in risk management
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Risk
Reporting

L i

Prepare the risk management
reports in line with the risk
monitoring results
RIBRABEZNER  FRER
EEMEERE

O Business/strategic risk
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(@) Operation risk
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@ Compliance and regulatory risk
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Top Risks of the Group Impact(s) Control Measure(s)
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Change of Global
Economy, Commercial
Environment and Market
Demand Risk

REE  WERBEELER
5 EREK

Counterfeit Risk
BRERRE

Rental of Property Risk
HEWERR

From a macroeconomic perspective, the Group’s business covers PRC mainland,
Hong Kong and other overseas regions. If there are changes in economies, social
environment, politics, laws and regulations of the relevant areas, the Group’s
business, operating results and financial condition will be affected.

REBEBAEEE  AEENEXBESTERG SEREMBIIME - HEES
W - HEIRIE - BUR  EEERSTREREL  FELEENEY  KEXE
K BAFEGARIAL

From a microeconomic perspective, if there is no much improvement on the
awareness and demand of Chinese medicine, and the business development fails to
keep up with the consumers’ changing needs and preference, as well as failure to
expand the product portfolio in time or to develop new products or technologies
which applied and marketed quickly, it may cause the decline and product shrink of
Group’s competitiveness and the market share respectively.

RAUBLBEAEZE - BN TSHPEIANMEERERAREAKRLE - ERHRUOR
KRB DHBETHESNERNEY  BEREERERESIEMBHERIRK
i EA R EEm LAY ETHSHE  THEEINAEEBRFZ O THRNERT SN
FELR/N o

Counterfeit appears in the form of imitation of trademarks, brands, trade names,
goods packaging, labels or styles. It may make poor consumer experiences and even
pose a threat to health, thus adversely affecting Tong Ren Tang’s reputation, brand,
legitimate business equity and market share.

BRENEGER mE - E58% Entf  ERIXAENFEALER - RETEEE
HEEWHERRE  EEHRRERRE  EtMHECENEE  RiE - 8EKE
ERMTSHEERERNTFEE -

Due to the reasons of market expansion, expiration of lease agreement and the
increase of shop rental etc., the Group will close, remove, newly open shop and make
rental adjustment. If there is no suitable shops or the rental cost is too high, it may
affect the Group’s business and profits.

FEEEUREETSRRE  HESRESBREHES LRERE - FEHEHE - RE -
FRBMEHRARES - EAEEEERESENEHIHERTBS - TRIEL
SENEBMET -

The Group assesses the changes of economy and business environment
of the relevant regions and their impacts on the Group’s business
through evaluation of results and new project investment.
AEEEBRNEERREFNEE  ANEHEEINKENERRENES
URHESHEBNZE -

The Group maintains close internal relationship, understands consumer
demand in real time, adjusts product structure in a timely manner,
adapts to market change, and maintains the Group’ s competitiveness.

FEEREAMZRZHE BEREREEERR REKARERSHR HE®D
SR BEREBRF D -

The Group reinforces the brand protection for Tong Ren Tang,
formulates relevant brand management systems, and strengthen efforts
in fighting against fake registered products, trademarks, font and
companies.

AEBMBERCERENRE  SIEHBEREEESNE  MAHSEEIMER -
A FRRAAMNITELE -

The Group fights again counterfeit with Parent Group, government,
judiciary, professional organizations, business partners to maintain Tong
Ren Tang brand’s reputation.

AEEBBRIEE - BUTIPT - RUEHKIE  EXEMIE - SFERSS1F 0 HEITER
B EERCERBREE-

The Group regularly monitors the ratio of rental cost and profit. If there
is a need of shop closure, removal and newly opened, the Group will
conduct detailed assessment and comprehensive consideration.

AEBEHEEHERAMERNBESLLA - MEEEM - MESFBHEHR - A
EESHATRLREESE -

Under the suitable regions and conditions, the Group will consider

purchasing property to eliminate the risk of fluctuations in the rental
market.
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Evaluation on the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems twice a year, covering the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, the ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external environment of the Group, the effectiveness on the measures of
significant risks, the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems,
the duties of internal audit department and its effectiveness, and etc..

Based on the results of the above review, for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board considers that the risk
management and internal monitor systems are well effective. Such systems of the Group are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Internal Control

The Company has set up an independent internal audit department which regularly reports directly to the Audit Committee.

The internal audit department is responsible for reviewing all aspects of the Group’s activities, risk management, corporate
governance processes and constantly supervising the work flow and risk assessment of each department of the Group,
and to independently assess the effectiveness of the internal control systems and risk management process in order to
seek continuous improvement.

Being an integral part of the risk management to provide assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
process and system of internal control, the internal audit department carries out assessment on the risk management
progress. When developing the annual project plan, the internal audit department identifies, prioritises and formulates the
audit works by a continuous risk assessment of the Group’s business activities with significant risks. The Audit Committee
reviews and approves the annual project plan and approve all subsequent major changes (if any) during the regular
meeting. In the individual audit project, the internal audit department will further assess the key areas of financial,
operational, compliance and fraud risk to evaluate the control effectiveness and the response measures adopted by
management.

The internal audit department reports significant risks, material changes and the associated mitigating actions and
highlights to the Audit Committee regularly to enhance the accountability and quality of the risk management process. The
internal audit department will communicate with management in details on all findings and recommendations on internal
control deficiencies identified from each audit work. Management will establish remedial plans to improve those internal
control deficiencies within a reasonable time period. The internal audit department will report significant deficiencies of
individual engagement to the Audit Committee. During the Year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings with the internal
audit department. The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the works done and reports submitted by the internal
audit department and reported the results of review and discussion to the Board.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong and the Listing Rules that inside information should be announced to the public as soon as reasonably practicable.
The procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

o The Board shall take reasonable precautions for preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication;

. Before the relevant information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group should ensure that all inside information
must be treated strictly confidential; and

o Disclosure must be made in a manner that provides the public with an equal, timely and effective access to the
inside information disclosed, such as through the electronic publication system operated by the Exchange.

EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance and position in
all shareholder communications. The Board is aware of and updated with the requirements under the applicable rules and
regulations about timely disclosure of inside information or matters regarding the Company and will authorise the
publication of such announcements as and when the occasion arises.

The Board adopted a Shareholder’s Communication Policy on 8 May 2013 which provides that the Board should
endeavour to maintain an ongoing dialogue with the shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage their participation. Such policy is being reviewed
from time to time to ensure its effectiveness. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company establishes different
communication channels with shareholders and investors, including:

(i) printed copies of corporate communications (including but not limited to financial reports, notices of meetings,
circulars and proxy forms) required under the Listing Rules;

(i) the annual general meeting and other shareholders meetings provide a forum for shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board;

(i)  updated and key information on the Group is available on the website (www.tongrentangcm.com) of the Company;

(iv)  the Company’s website (www.tongrentangcm.com) offers a communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and stakeholders;

(v) meetings with analysts are arranged from time to time to update on the performance of the Group;

(vi)  the executive directors and senior management of the Company hold meetings with institutional investors and
analysts and attend investor forums in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas countries from time to time;

(vi)  the Company’s Registrar deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters; and
(viii)  the investor relations department of the Company handles enquires from shareholders and investors.

In 2019, the Board members, the Company’s senior management, external auditor and legal advisor attended the annual
general meeting, and were available to answer questions. The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2019 annual
general meeting of the Company was sent at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

At the annual general meeting held in 2019, the chairman of the meeting (i) explained the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll, and answered questions from shareholders; (ii) exercised his power under the Company’s Articles of
Association to put each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll.

Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes
cast at the annual general meeting held in 2019. Poll results were then posted on the websites of the Company and the
Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be determined by the Board.
Any general meeting other than an annual general meeting shall be referred to as an EGM.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Listing Rules and the Company’s Articles of Association, an EGM
can be convened to consider proposals in accordance with the following provisions:

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an EGM, and EGM shall also be convened on such requisition, or in default
may be convened by such requisitionist(s), holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a right to
vote at general meetings. If at any time there are not sufficient Directors capable of acting to form a quorum, any Director
or any 2 shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may convene an EGM in the same manner
as nearly as possible as that in which a meeting may be convened by the Directors.

The requirements and procedures as set out in section 566 to section 569 of the Companies Ordinance are summarised as
follows:

. The requisition must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, and must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the Company which is presently situated at Room
1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

o If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the meeting is given, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the said date.

. Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to convene a
meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

In addition, shareholders are requested to follow section 615 of the Companies Ordinance for including a resolution at an
annual general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(i) Any number of shareholders representing not less than 25% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the annual general meeting to which the requisition relates, or not less
than 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the requests
relate, may submit a requisition in writing to put forward a resolution which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at an annual general meeting.

(i)  The Company shall not be bound by the Companies Ordinance to give notice of the proposed resolution to
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of an annual general meeting unless a request (a) is sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (b) the resolution of which notice is to be given is identified; (c)
is authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d) is received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The Company welcomes shareholders’ views and concerns relating to the Group’s management and corporate
governance. The Company’s website (www.tongrentangcm.com) provides email address (for enquiry purpose only), postal
address, fax number and telephone number by which Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board.
Shareholders may also put forward their enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of the Company.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no change to the Articles of Association of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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To the Members of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 150 to 263, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is impairment of goodwill.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of goodwill We evaluated management’s impairment assessment including
cash flow forecast, and the process by which they were drawn up,
Refer to note 4 (Critical accounting estimates and tested the underlying calculations.

and judgements) and note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements. Specific work we performed over the impairment assessment
included:

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a

goodwill of HK$49,419,000 and it was significant comparing management’s short-term forecasted sales and

to the consolidated financial statements. profit margins with historical performance;

Management prepared the value-in-use o comparing the management’s key assumptions for discount
calculation based on cash flow forecast of the rate and long-term growth rate in the forecast with industry
cash-generating unit that included this goodwill data; and

to determine whether there was any impairment.
We focused on this area due to the size of the
goodwill balance and the significant judgments
and assumptions the management used in
preparation of value-in-use calculation.

obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis over the key
assumptions of the cash flow forecast to analyse the potential
impact of a range of possible outcomes.

We found management’s assessments that there was no impairment
Management has concluded that there is no of goodwill is supportable by the evidence we gathered and
impairment of goodwill. consistent with our expectation.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME A s E
STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F12A31 BIEFE
Note Fff&E HK$’000 Tt HK$’000 T & 7T
Revenue WA 5 1,432,632 1,513,873
Cost of sales $HE R 6 (419,836) (435,452)
Gross profit £ 1,012,796 1,078,421
Distribution and selling expenses 7 #4 & S5 &5 X 6 (199,097) (233,154)
General and administrative expenses —f& & 17 BB = 6 (164,824) (148,326)
Other net gains E A5 — F58 3,111 1,073
Operating profit &% 758 651,986 698,014
Finance income 81 7% Uk 2% s 43,4%.‘:3 --------------- 23,3:éé-
Finance costs 817 tH 9 (4,207) (19)
Finance income, net JF 17K 39,208 23,373
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method fE{L IR ER E AR 2R EEE 0 ( 1,é'-lé)- S (Aéé)-
Profit before income tax B 715 %1 A1 Rl 689,222 720,898
Income tax expense AT %1% 11 (112,370) (119,575)
Profit for the year % E & 576,852 601,323
Profit attributable to: L~ A + FE45 FI5H :
Owners of the Company A2 B # A A 556,118 580,720
Non-controlling interests 3F1Z % & 20,734 20,603
576,852 601,323

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company for the year (expressed in HK$ per share)
FREQABHEEARLERERN (UBKREBTIITR)
Basic and diluted earnings per share &R EA K #E2 7| 12 0.66 0.69

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. LA & B Uk 2 3% FE B BE R B 5 — OFBIGE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF Al b s
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F12A31 BIEFE
2019 2018
Note Fff&E HK$°000 T % T HK$’000 F & 7T
Profit for the year FE & 576,852 601,323

Other comprehensive losses: Hfti4 & &8 :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss FJEEE# 7 EE 18219 E B
Currency translation differences &% i & 2= 48 (1,469) (14,386)
Release of exchange reserve upon liquidation of a joint venture — & & (255 8 M B > [E 5 (1 (961) 1,703
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss & E# 7 B2 1525 978 B
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

UAREBENEAEEBT AAMGRERENEREEAREBEED 17 (4,485) 150
Other comprehensive losses for the year FEEMAgSEHE (6,915 (12,533)
Total comprehensive income for the year £ E 7S W45 569,937 588,790
Attributable to: JA T A L FE{Y :

Owners of the Company A2 B#EE A 549,119 571,784

Non-controlling interests FF#2 % 25 20,818 17,006
Total comprehensive income for the year &£ E#= & W45 569,937 588,790

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. L EEptmE RS R ERE BN T — R -
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CoNSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AHPEEAEE

As at 31 December 2019 72019612 831 H
Note Fff&E HK$°000 T % T HK$’000 F & 7T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ¥R E) & E
Leasehold land A& 1 i 2(b) - 15,465
Property, plant and equipment ¥ + BE K& 1E 15 194,869 286,303
Right-of-use assets {£ S E 14 195,057 -
Intangible assets E & = 16 60,669 72,487
Investments accounted for using the equity method IRIEZ E AR ZIRE 10 18,544 20,181
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income LA A ABEFEBESEH T ARLMSERENERERE 17 10,983 15,468
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment BBEY % - BERRENS FiEE 5,447 2,866
Deferred income tax assets, net IEFEFTSFHEE - FE 18 8,937 11,851
494,506 424,621
Currentassets REVEE
Inventories 7 & 19 318,187 244,535
Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 FEIFIB R HiiRBIE E 20 357,262 236,489
Short-term bank deposits % #i$R 1T 177X 21 911,655 1,715,609
Cash and cash equivalents & R IREZEY 21 1,056,711 549,831
... 2643815 2746464
Total assets B EE 3,138,321 3,171,085

Equity and liabilities #% & & &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &< 1 # A& A E{h &%

paywi Auedwo) auoipaly asauly) Buel usy Buo] Bullleg

Share capital Bz 4~ 22 938,789 938,789
Reserves f#f& 23
— Other reserves H 1t 1& (26,982) (19,983)
— Retained earnings & B &= 1,747,694 1,986,821
2,659,501 2,905,627
Non-controlling interests JE 2 i %5 106,135 118,600
Total equity & #8 2765636 3,024,227
Liabilities & &
Non-current liabilities 37 81 & &
Borrowings fA & 24 833 1,053
Lease liabilities HE & & 59,395 -
Deferred income tax liabilities, net IEEFTEH A » FE 18 5,376 4,874
I 65604 5927
Current liabilities 7 E) & &
Borrowings f& & 24 220 166 it
Trade and other payables & 5 & H b fE {78 25 142,832 119,011 =
Lease liabilities HE & & 39,427 - E
Current income tax liabilities &8 FTiEH & & 124,602 21,754 =
,,,,,,,,,,,,, 307081 140931
Total liabilites &/ 372685 146,858 2
Total equity and liabilities # i & & &4 5 3,138,321 3,171,085 i
A
The consolidated financial statements on pages 150 to 263 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2020 58150 Z263 HM GG RN 202053 A 24 AEEREH A UHATREREE - -
4 and were signed on its behalf. 155
Ding Yong Ling Lin Man TKE e ;}
Director Director EE EE e
b3
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The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. LU EEHEERBEREEMEMNME—OIBIE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF GO B %
CHANGES IN EQuiTy

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F12A31 BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAARAANER

Non-

Share Merger Other Statutory  Exchange BEENED controlling Total
capital reserve reserves reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity

kx  AtiREE  HeRE  iERE  ENERE  RELE aF FEREE 0 RnEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Note ff&E TR TERL TR TR TR TR TR THT TR

paywi Auedwo) auoipaly asauly) Buel usy Buo] Bullleg

At 1 January 2018 R2018 1518 938,789 (13,124) 2,360 6,229 6,512) 1,565,150 2,492,892 115,285 2,608,177
Comprehensive income %4 %
Profit for the year FE I - - - - - 580,720 580,720 20,603 601,323
Other comprehensive losses H 4 &8
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income SR o BE B BEZHH AEMES RENEREELAABELED - - 150 - - - 150 - 150
Release of exchange reserve upon liquidation of a joint venture —fI& &t EERMALE 2 E X {4 - - - - 1,703 - 1,703 - 1,703
Currency translation differences &% 52 £ 58
— Group A58 = = = = (10,693) = (10,693) (3,597) (14,290)
— Joint ventures A& ¥ - - - - (96) - (96) - (96)
Total comprehensive income 3 & Wi 4 5 - - 150 - (9,086) 580,720 571,784 17,006 588,790
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners EEZfIE & NEREENERETHRS
Dividends paid B3 & - - - - - (159,049) (159,049 (16,404) (175,453)
Capital injections into subsidiaries B B2 FE & - - - - - - - 3,152 3,152
Liquidation of a subsidiary — K& 2 FHIE 4 = = = = = = = (439) (439)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners BEZEFIEENEREEN IR ETHRENAE - - - - - (159,049) (159,049) (13,691) (172,740)
At 31 December 2018 A 201812 A 31 B 938,789 (13,124) 2,510 6,229 (15,598) 1,986,821 2,905,627 118,600 3,024,227
At 1 January 2019 A 20191818 938,789 (13,124) 2,510 6,229 (15,598) 1,986,821 2,905,627 118,600 3,024,227
Comprehensive income & &
Profit for the year £ [ /8 - - - - - 556,118 556,118 20,734 576,852
Other comprehensive losses £t A&
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income SR BB EBEEBH ALMGERENSREELABEED - - (4,485) - - - (4,485) - (4,485)
Release of exchange reserve upon liquidation of a joint venture —fI& & ¥ BB MEE 2 B & s = = = = (961) = (961) = (961)
Currency translation differences &% 5 £ 5
— Group A& @ = = = = (1,888) = (1,888) 84 (1,804)
— Joint ventures A& % - - - - 335 - 335 - 335
Total comprehensive income & K& 48 - - (4,485) - (2,514 556,118 549,119 20,818 569,937
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners EERFIEENEMEENSFNDETHNRS
Dividends paid {1 & - - - - - (795,245) (795,245) (33,283) (828,528)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners BEZFIEZNEREENFHETHR B NAHE - - - - - (795,245) (795,245) (33,283) (828,528)
At 31 December 2019 R 201912 5 31 H 938,789 (13,124) (1,975) 6,229 (18,112) 1,747,694 2,659,501 106,135 2,765,636 it
7
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. P EAOtES S e R e S — S o @]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HHB ST EE
CasH FLows

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F12A31 BIEFE
Note Fff&F HK$’000 37T HK$’000 F & 7T
Cash flows from operating activities L& EZEELENRERE
Cash generated from operations &% &4 HIR & 26(a) 557,155 710,857
Income tax paid 21 FriE%i (6,145) (133,154)
Interest paid B 3% 5 = (19)
Net cash generated from operating activities & & E B FIE L MRS H5E 551,010 577,684
Cash flows from investing activities BEEBFEEWRSHE
Interest received & WA S 48,274 23,392
Dividends received B W& 2 195 165
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank deposits with original maturities exceeding three months
FEARR B =18 B U £ Z R ERITIE R0 (g hn) 803,954 (568,271)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment & - BiRE R RIBFTER 26(b) 108 10
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E % « BE K& E (11,478) (47,215)
Deposit paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment BB % - BIERRENC RS (5,512) (6,013)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities R EEBI FFESE, (i) W& B4 835,541 (597,932)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZBMELWRSTE
Principal elements of lease payments H & FFEH A E D (45,775) -
Capital injections by non-controlling interests JE4% iR 253 & = 3,152
Payment to non-controlling interests upon liquidation of a subsidiary — &It /& 2 &)/& 88 1 [@) FE 1= R e A =X - (439)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders I 2 TR R KA S (795,238) (159,049)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests &1+ JF 12 IR FE 25 A AR 5. (33,283) (17,314)
Interest paid 2147 5 (4,207) -
Proceeds from borrowings f& & 15k - 1,165
Repayment of borrowings && & & (166) (622)
Net cash used in financing activities @& & & i FA 38 & /548 . ersee9)  (173,007)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents RE& R B ESE YL, (R ) FHE 507,882 (193,255)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £¥1 2 R & RN EZEEY 549,831 750,443
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents & R IR &S EYE K8k (1,002) (7,357)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year SR 2 HER B L ZEY 1,056,711 549,831
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. L EEHIRETREREEEM M —OrRIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are engaged in manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products
and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The immediate holding company of the Company is
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (“Tong Ren Tang Technologies”) which is a joint stock limited company
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The intermediate holding company of the Company is Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited.
(“Tong Ren Tang Ltd.”) which is a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC and is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. The ultimate holding company of the Company is China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd.
(“Tong Ren Tang Holdings”) which is a company incorporated in the PRC.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is Room
1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange starting from 7 May 2013 and were
transferred to be listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange starting from 29 May 2018.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2020.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income, which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

(i) Adoption of new standards, interpretation and amendments to standards

The Group has adopted the following new standard, interpretation and amendments to standards which
are relevant to the Group’s operations and are mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1 January

2019:

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 cycle

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result of adopting HKFRS 16 “Lease”. The Group
elected to adopt the new rules retrospectively but recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying
the new standard on 1 January 2019. This is disclosed in note 2(b). Most of the other amendments
listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected
to significantly effect the current or future periods.

Except for the impact for HKFRS 16 which have been disclosed in note 2(b), the adoption of the above
new standard, interpretation and amendments to standards did not have any significant financial impact
on these consolidated financial statements.

o R S 2 R B i

— B E R
LRACERAEARAD(RAR)REWBLAR (ABIAEE ) HEREERN
REGNEE TERUBYRETELE - AATEZBRATLRE - ERER
RROARAD(ACERZDBRAEARLNE (RE)RINRAERAT -
REBHERBFARAAEMES « AAARHERATLRACERGERAT
TAECERGDARFERINREERAT RESESRBMLEH - KAAARK
ERAFTELRACE (EE)EREEAD(ACEEEAT ) BROBEMR
THATE .

ARAREEBIMRINERAF  EMRERGUBFBLFBLE1RERE
B DKRIE1405-1409 F -

AATRBNR2013FE5 A7 BEBHTFAGEM £ » IR 2018F 5 H 29 HEERER
FrERLE ©

MRBEFPEN ZEEHTBRRABT(ELTDIR ZSEEHTERERECR
2020 F 324 AEEESMMETIR -

E R BOR M

RAEZZEHTBREMRANEIESEABRNT - BRE BB ZEHXERE
RAREJINAEFE -

(a) #mBdHEHe

BHMBBRRCREBUBRELEN ([FBYBIREEL ) REE (R REH)
(622 )R - GHMBHREARBELEAERE  USHUL REEAE
BESEFAEMGERBENESREENE[IELBT -

AN EERYBBRSENNYERRFRAETHERS G - HTFERE
AEERAXRSENSHBERTEAE SREEHEHNEHENER - X
BRACHUBEHRRBEABRRGETNEECS R E4WE -

(i) SRAWHT AT S ~ PR e e 2 BT

REBFRMNEREBEBKEBAN2019F1 B1 B2 BB WK
FEABHRAIMTED  HBEBRERZBITOT -

EBEEERE 195 (BRTA)  STEMELE - MRSEE
BRERTERE28 (BFTA) HERLXRASEZRBES
EBUBMELENEORUETAR) BEEMENEMERREE

BRPBRELERE 165 HE

EBMHMEERFEFE 23 AEREENFEEM

EBIBREERES BB IR EAER 2015-2017 F
BHIKFESE

FEERRA(EBRBRELERE 165 — HE)MFEHT SEHES
B AEBEEREENRAHELN  BE2019F1 A1 BBERNRERH
ERWRAEE - FRMT20)WIKRE - LM EMETHAMARESHE
REAARE B CTSHERIRRBBELEERZE -

BRTERMEF2L)METHENEBHBREERE 167U - KA L
MEFTRER - FRBRERZETHZESH P BERRLEETEKRY
e o

e

p—
=)
—

L
S

TT 30 St

18 Mok

i
R

I b E at

EHHT W




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

2 FHEEEBORME ()
(a) AL ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
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(ii) New standard, revised framework and amendments to standards which are
not yet effective

The following are new standard, revised framework and amendments to standards that have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
or later periods, but have not been early adopted by the Group.

Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting™
Financial Reporting 2018

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Material®

(if) AR A AT AT B~ SR AG TAE 2R R o B 2 AT

TOHETER ST ERRER 2ETEAEEN2020F1 A1HH
ZERRBHNEHHABRRMERHET  EAEENERERM -

BISIRE o B3R5 2018 AT MR 2 B S REO

ERETTEAE1RRESFKUETE) EANERD

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business!" BB HRELERE 35K (BFTAK) TENERO

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and BERMBEMELEAE 105 R REERHBERGE
its Associate or Joint Venture® EREFERE 285 (85T 4) MWEEHERRAC

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BB BREERE TR REane

™ Effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2020

M R20205F 1 B 1 RS HIBENR

@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2021 @ R2021F1 A1 BFRBNEFTEHBEN
@ Effective date to be determined @ £ PHEE

The Group will apply the above new standard, revised framework and amendments to standards when
they become effective. No new standard, revised framework and amendments to standards is expected
to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

(b) Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Lease on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

The Group elects to adopt HKFRS 16 without restating comparatives. The reclassification and the adjustments
arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 are therefore not reflected in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2018, but are recognised in the opening of the consolidated balance sheet on 1 January 2019.

The Group is a lessee of various properties. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as “operating leases” under the principles
of HKAS 17 Leases except for short-term and low value leases. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
January 2019. The lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019
ranged between 4% to 6%. The remeasurements to the lease liabilities were recognised as adjustments to the
related right-of-use assets immediately after the date of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EEFFBORME ()
(b) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (b) ErEHBOREH (4)

The reconciliation of operating lease commitments to lease liabilities is set out below: REHEREHEAEEENHERENNT ¢
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Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018

HK$’000 & 7T

2018 F 12 A 31 B BHEEHERIE 113,543

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of at the date of initial application

BRHAT B ERABANEE BRFIRERR 105,825

(Less): short-term leases recognised on a straight-line basis as expense

CRl) t REGEFRAEREANESREE (18,078)

(Less): contracts reassessed as service agreements () : W EH T EBREHBENHEEER (663)

Add: adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and termination options

i EEERRERENLLREERATRN S REEMETRHE 33,997
121,081

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 201951 A1 HERANEEERE

Of which are: EHE4E :

Current lease liabilities R EHEE & 40,124

Non-current lease liabilities 3E;REIFHEE & 80,957
121,081

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively, but has elected not to restate comparative information. As
a result, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
previous accounting policies.

The adoption of HKFRS 16 Lease from 1 January 2019 resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The new accounting policies are set out in
notes 2(aa) below. There is no impact on the Group’s retained earnings as at 1 January 2019 and no
restatement is made.

The associated right-of use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2018. There were no onerous lease contracts that would have required a
significant adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

FEBECEHNEATBYBRELEAE 165  EREFEMEREE - At -
AEBREERBRZANSTRRERHNERBISETSEE -

H2019F1 A1 R ERAB BV B RELENF 16N HEEHSTHRENES
MEFHBRABERSENARE c HEHERIAN T XM 2(aa) - FFHBERE
BHAEER2019F1 A1 BENRERRRELETE  BERETEL -

MEEENEBECAEEERBEEEESEHESNSHETE - XHE2018F 12
A REEEBERABRANZEERENANIFRNEESRETURE -
AEENEESESRAFEEAR  THEEEERITRHEAREEETE
REVRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
The adoption of HKFRS 16 affected the following items in the consolidated balance sheet at 1 January 2019:

Non-current assets 3ER B & E
Right-of-use assets £ & E
— Leasehold land F& 1 ith
— Buildings ¥¥#i &
Leasehold land & 1-ith
Property, plant and equipment #)3£ « B = K& & &
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 FEUFE R EiR B & E
Non-current liability 3R BN & &
Lease liabilities HHE& &
Current liabilities i B & 1&
Lease liabilities & & &
Trade and other payables & 5 & H b FE{S 7k
Deferred income tax assets (Note) dEZE 15 ﬁﬁé P k)
Deferred income tax liabilities (Note) JEZE 5% & & (FiF)

Note: pursuant to set-off provision, deferred income tax assets of HK$23,819,000 was set-off against the deferred income

tax liabilities as at 1 January 2019.

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an alternative to performing an
impairment review, there were no onerous contract as at 1 January 2019;

the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases;

the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application; and

the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

Subsidiaries

(1)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations

Except for business combination under common control, the Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

T fF B 2 e i e

2 FHEEEHBORME (4)

(b)

A B o ()

R20195F1 A1 HEMBBUBRELNE16RTESHEELBRTHEE ¢

Increase/

(decrease) by

B CR)

HK$’000 F & T
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80,957
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(710)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(1)

Consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint ventures or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes directly attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary, joint ventures and associates in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwiill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of profit/loss of investments accounted for using equity method”, in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its associate
are recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the income statement.

In the balance sheet of the Company, its investments in associates are stated at cost less provision for any
impairment losses. Income from associates is recognised by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

In the balance sheet of the Company, impairment testing of the investments in associates is required upon

receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the

associates in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwiill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in joint ventures equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the balance sheet of the Company, its investments in joint ventures are stated at cost less provision for any
impairment losses. Income from joint ventures is recognised by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

In the balance sheet of the Company, impairment testing of the investments in joint ventures is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
joint ventures in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwiill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in 2 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Company’s executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(111) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-

inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

- all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly a factory, offices and retail shops. All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 25 to 50 years
— Leasehold improvement Shorter of remaining lease term or useful life
— Plant and machinery 3to 12 years
— Motor vehicles 5to 8 years

— Furniture, fittings and equipment 2.5t0 12 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(k)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Leasehold land — accounting policies applied until 31 December 2018

Leasehold land classified as finance lease is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
— Leasehold land held under finance lease Over the lease term of 34 to 47 years

In the previous year, the Group only recognised leased assets in relation to leases that was classified as
“finance leases” under HKAS 17 Leases. The assets were presented in leasehold land and leasehold land

under finance lease as included in property, plant and equipment. For adjustment recognised on adoption of
HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, please refer to note 2(b).

Intangible assets
(1)  Goodwill

Gooduwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Gains and losses on disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

(ii) Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected
life of the customer relationships of ten years.

(iii) Other intangible assets

Within the Group there are two types of other intangible assets: management contract and exclusive
supply contract. These intangible assets acquired have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over their expected
useful lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Financial assets

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”);
and
. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which

the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

(@) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(b) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classified its debt
instruments into financial assets at amortised cost:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see note 3(a) for
further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade receivables and other current assets

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. Other current assets include prepayment, deposits and other receivables. If
collection of trade receivables and other current assets is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables and other current assets, excluding prepayments, are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts (if any).

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their

intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(1)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(ii) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

(iii) Offsetting
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(V)

Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes which are defined contribution plans and are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds. The Group has adopted a
provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, and has also participated in employee pension schemes organised and governed by the
relevant local authorities for its employees in the PRC and overseas countries/regions.

(i) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

(ii) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition
(i)  Sales of goods

The Group sells healthcare products and Chinese medicine to wholesalers and individual customers.
Sales of goods are recognised when control of the products has been transferred to the wholesaler or
customer, being when the products are delivered to the wholesaler or customer.

Wholesales

For wholesales, the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Sales are recorded based on the
price specified in the sales contracts.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term within 90 days,
which is consistent with market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered at the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional, which only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Retail sales

For retail sales, the Group operates a chain of retail outlets for selling products. Sales of goods are
recognised when a Group entity sells a product to the customer. Payment of the transaction price is
due immediately. Retail sales are usually in cash or by credit card.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(11) Service income

The Group mainly provides Chinese medical consultation and treatments in retail outlets. Service
income is recognised over-time in which the service is provided to the customer and it is settled in cash
or by credit card.

(iii) Royalty fee income
Royalty fee income is based on pre-determined rates on the total turnover of overseas entities for them

to use the “Tong Ren Tang” brand name. Royalty fee is recognised in the income statement on an
accrual basis upon sales recognised by the overseas entities.

(iv) Financing components
The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the

promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income statement as part of finance income, net.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 9 below. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

Dividend income

Dividends are received from a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”). Dividends are recognised as other net gain in consolidated income statement when the right to
receive payment is established.

(aa)Leases

As explained in note 2(b) above, the Group has changed its accounting policy for leases where the Group is
the lessee. The new policy is described below and the impact of the change in note 2(b).

Until 31 December 2018, leasehold land where the group, as lessee, had substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership were classified as finance leases (note 15). Finance leases were capitalised at the lease’s
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, were included in other short-term and long-term
payables. Each lease payment was allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost was
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. Leasehold land acquired under finance leases was
depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there
is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
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Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

(i) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(ii) variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

(i)  amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;
(iv)  the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

(i) where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

(ii) uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party financing; and

(i)  makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the

liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ab)Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and cash flow
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. Risk management is carried out by management of each individual entity within the

Group.

(i) Market risk

U]

]

Foreign exchange risk

Each individual Group entity has its own functional currency. Foreign exchange risk to each
individual Group entity arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Group entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. The Group manages its foreign currencies risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

At 31 December 2019, if Renminbi had strengthened/weakened by 5% against Hong Kong dollar,
with all other variables held constant, the profit before income tax for the year ended 31
December 2019 would have been HK$10,590,000 (2018: HK$6,726,000) higher/lower, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Hong Kong dollar-denominated trade
payables held by a PRC subsidiary whose functional currency is Renminbi. Whereas, the
exposure arising from the other foreign currencies is not significant to the Group.

Cash flow interest rate risk

Other than short-term bank deposits and bank balances, the Group does not have significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk associated with the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of the market interest rates on its cash flows are not
deemed to be substantial in the view of the Directors based on the nature of the assets and
liabilities.

At 31 December 2019, if the interest rates on bank deposits had been 50 basis-points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, profit before income tax for the year would have been
HK$9,837,000 (2018: HK$11,319,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest income on bank deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and trade receivables (including trade receivables from fellow
subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate) and other current assets.

U]

2

Risk management

All the bank deposits are placed with banks with good credit ratings to mitigate the risk. For trade
receivables (including trade receivables from related companies) and other current assets, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the counter parties by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Management also regularly reviews the recoverability of
these receivables and follows up on the disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The management is
of the opinion that the risk of default by counterparties is low. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

Majority of the Group’s trade receivables are due within 90 days from invoice date. As at 31
December 2019, 69.7% (2018: 78.0%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due within 90 days.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of trade receivables
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Impairment of financial assets
Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

Trade receivables — related parties

The Group considers the credit risk characteristics and the days past due to measure the
expected credit losses. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the expected credit losses rate
for related parties of sales of goods is minimal, given there is no history of significant defaults
from related parties and insignificant impact from forward-looking estimates. The assessed
expected credit losses for trade receivables are not material.

Trade receivables — third party

The Group measures the expected credit losses on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

The receivables relating to customers with known financial difficulties or with significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually for provision for impairment allowance. As at
31 December 2019, the balance of loss allowance in respect of individually assessed receivables
was HK$2,727,000 (2018: Nil). Please refer to note 20 for details.

Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised were written off against the
provision when there was no expectation of recovering additional cash.

Expected credit losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining receivables from third party
based on shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for the likelihood of loss
allowance, taking into account the nature of the customer, its geographical location and its
ageing category, and applying expected credit loss rates to the respective gross carrying
amounts of the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Credit risk (Continued)

2

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis (Continued)

The expected credit loss rates are determined based on the historical credit losses experienced
of up to past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group
adjusts the historical loss rates based on corporate bond default rate of the countries in which the
customer carried out a business.

At 31 December 2019
A2019%12H831H

Current EHj

Past due less than 60 days i} 60 X LA A

Past due within 60 days to one year #IHi60 X & 1 F
Past due within one year to two yeas B 1 £ &2 5
Total #5t

Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised cost, including deposits and other receivables,
management considers that its credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical default rate and current financial position. The
impairment provision is determined based on the 12-month expected credit losses which is close
to zero.

Impairment losses on other financial assets at amortised cost are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ili) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its working capital
requirements. The Group has steady cash inflow from operations and has adequate financial resources
to fund its operations and future expansions. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial liabilities
were mainly trade and other payables amounting to HK$101,647,000 (2018: HK$83,915,000), lease

liabilities amounting to HK$98,822,000 (2018:Nil) and borrowings amounting to HK$1,053,000 (2018:
HK$1,219,000).

The analysis of the financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities is set out below. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
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3 T B B (%)
(a) B2 LB R =K (1)

(iif)

T B 4 L
AEENBEREBZRNESRBESSEYUREHEEESESR -
AEEFEEBENECLEEEBERARTEUEER  TAHEXRKRK
BEREMES . N2019F 128318 A EBNEREBTES
101,647,000 7t (2018 4 : 83,915,0008 ) 2 E 5 R H M FEA FIE ;
98,822,000 7t (2018 : ) 2 & & & L ) 1,053,0003% 7t (2018 :
1,219,0008 ) 2 °

BESEHRNSBEEIHAERNITUT  RENESERBRRT
RRENE HRBRFEFERN R12BAARIBNEESEEER
HIRME A8 o

significant.
Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Over 5 years
DPR—F —E=F —ERF ZREF
HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 ¥ % T HK$’000 F % T HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 ¥ % T
At 31 December 2019 720194 12 A 31 H
Trade and other payables & 5 & HE i fE {4 58 101,647 = S S 101,647
Lease liabilities fAE& & 42,646 23,860 32,359 8,004 106,869
Borrowings f&5X 220 166 498 169 1,053
Total #% 144,513 24,026 32,857 8,173 209,569
Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and
1 year PAYCES 5 years Over 5 years
DR—F —B=F “ZERF ZRAF
HK$’000 &t HK$’000 F#& 7T HK$’000 F#7T HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 T &t
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12 A 31 H
Trade and other payables & 5 & H fth FE{S 718 = = = 83,915
Borrowings &% 220 498 335 1,219
Total &5t 220 498 335 85,134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Fair value estimation

The Group’s financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value as at 31
December 2019 by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.
The Group’s financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income is included in level 1.

Details on the fair value measurement for financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The rest of the Group’s financial assets are classified as financial assets and are measured at amortised cost.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets, including short-term bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivables and other current assets, approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, borrowing and
lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

3

Fr DR B A i

b 25 J B B ()

(b)

A B
FEEEREAECEREARAETRENESHACLERHELE  BRRFR
B FAESHMESHEARS  YEFEBLNEREBURDESHE -

BEABREREERBRATESE |  AEFIAABRELRER  FEERTHE
BRFRCTOREESHE  ARFRBBEES - BITHRDILEEEURDEH -

O SRR AEAG E

AEMN2019F12 531 BHNA R EET B ALBDH AL BRERHNS
BARBRGERTEFERINHANEABEANTZE -

. EREERAECEETSHEE KRR (F1E) -

. BRTHE1EMEENREN  ZEENEENTEENEMEA > Th
HiE(FImER) REE(BRBER) (F28) -

. EENBBYFREUTRETSHENBA (BETBRRBA) (FE3F) -

FRAZTER 2ELEEE -
AEENUAABENEERZBF ARUGESNENEREERBREIRE -

UARBEFTEEEEH T AEMECRENESREENIABEFBHIRN
FsE17 o

FEENEREESIERETREE  REFEALTE - BEHRER  ~5H
TRHEE(BRESRTER RERRESEVUARE S BERFREE MR
BEE)RAEEEQNAEERES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a) Goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment according to their recoverable
amounts determined by the cash-generating units based on value in use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates including five-year sales growth rate, estimated growth rate beyond the five-year
period and discount rate which are subject to change of economic environment in future. Details are set out in
note 16.

(b) Loss allowance on trade receivables

The loss allowances for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
the tables in note 3.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive directors and the non-executive director of
the Company (the “Executive Directors” and the “Non-executive Director”). The Executive Directors and the Non-
executive Director review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources and
have determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors and the Non-executive Director consider the Group’s business and aggregate the operating
segment from a geographic perspective and have determined that the Group has three reportable operating
segments.

The geographical location of revenue is analysed based on location where goods are sold and services are provided.
The details are set out as follows:

(i) Hong Kong — sale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments through retail outlets as well as wholesale of Chinese medicine products and
healthcare products in Hong Kong. In addition, it includes the royalty fee income received from overseas
entities for using “Tong Ren Tang” brand name.

(ii) PRC — wholesale of healthcare products in the PRC and the sole distribution of Tong Ren Tang branded
products of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. to customers outside the PRC.

(i)  Overseas — retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation and treatments in other overseas countries/regions, including Macao.

Segment assets include right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investments
accounted for using equity method, financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income, deferred tax
assets, deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment, inventories, trade receivables and other current
assets, short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Segment liabilities include borrowings, lease
liabilities, trade and other payables, current and deferred income tax liabilities.

Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate expenses.

Sales between segments are carried in accordance with terms agreed by the parties involved.

The Executive Directors and the Non-executive Director assess the performance of the operating segments based
on revenue and segment results of each segment. Management has determined the operating segments based on

the location of the entities and the information reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance.

o R S 2 R B i

EONCHELHPE ]

EARAEREREERREAMAR (BREERBRATHARSBHEEASENE
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REBEERREHMGTRBR - MASST AT SELRRAEERER - RS 45
RBREFEARERR  EUBHART —EVRFEHEEREENREEHFHOT
ERBE-

(a) FIE

AEESFRERASELEANFERAEERETNRE S  AIEAPEREERE
EARE BEFEFETEANGTERLIFHHEERE  AFHUEZH
BEEMAEBRENBAMBEREIBREEREMEE - FHEIHARMEE
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(b) MMk 15 Sk 1t A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 mEEr ()
(a) Analysis of consolidated income statements (a) BB TR D
Hong Kong Overseas
B8 SN
HK$’000 F & T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F & T
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F 12 A31 BLLEE
Segment revenue 7 ZBULA 1,076,111 474,322 338,805 1,889,238
Inter-segment revenue 7 2P UL A (285,946) (170,660) - (456,606)
Revenue from external customers 2 B SN E F Z A 790,165 303,662 338,805 1,432,632
Timing of revenue recognition W A 7 52 #9 i 24
At a point in time 12 5 — K2 787,772 295,947 292,702 1,376,421
Overtime £ —ER BRI A 2,393 7,715 46,103 56,211

790,165 303,662 338,805 1,432,632
Contribution to segment results 7 282 4& 2 H &k 658,603 6,128 67,793 732,524
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #13 =R REITE (8,227) (736) (7,170) (16,133)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# AEEEITE (28,729) (1,575) (21,009) (51,313)
Amortisation of intangible assets &2 & = # 85 (1,300) = (10,497) (11,797)
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment &Y% « lE KRR E 28 2 2 (2,063) (2,067)
Loss allowance on trade receivables & 5 FEUW 118 2 B {E T 12 = (3,390) (10) (3,400)
Impairment loss on inventories 7 & Z BB T2 - - (7,180) (7,180)
Write-off of inventories 17 & HfliEl (197) - (110) (307)
Segment results 73 SPFEE 620,148 425 19,754 640,327
Inter-segment elimination 23 2B & & §4 11,659
Operating profit £ & X4 651,986
Finance income 81 #% U5 & 42,498 165 752 43,415
Finance costs B3 tH (1,081) (46) (3,080) (4,207)
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method FE{GIREERS E A BR 2 IR B K518 (1,972)
Profit before income tax & 15 % 1 A58 689,222
Income tax expense FT{SFiEI X (101,531) (4,483) (6,356) (112,370)
Profit for the year £ & F5H 576,852
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Analysis of consolidated income statements (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ 2018 F 12 A31 BLLFEE
Segment revenue 7 ZBULA
Inter-segment revenue 7 &R LKA
Revenue from external customers 2 B M E F Z XA
Timing of revenue recognition W A 7 52 #9 i 24
At a point in time 7£ 3 — B 26
Overtime £ — BRI

Contribution to segment results 7 &8 ¥ 4& 2 & f&f

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #J% - =R RETE
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 & &= # #4

Impairment loss on inventories 7 & 2B {EHE

Write-off of inventories 1 & il

Segment results 7 2B 4E

Inter-segment elimination % B &% 4

Operating profit £ % #584

Finance income B 7% Uk

Finance cost 8173 H

Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method JE/GIREER E A BR 2 IR B K518
Profit before income tax B FT 15 51 Fl;E

Income tax expense FTi8%iBI X

Profit for the year £ & F5H

5 b ERH(H)
(a) AHFRERFESHT ()

T fF B 2 e i e

Hong Kong Overseas
BB jisE
HK$’000 T &t HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 &t
1,150,830 510,885 333,610 1,995,325
(343,485) (137,283) (684) (481,452)
807,345 373,602 332,926 1,513,873
802,680 365,045 285,619 1,453,344
4,665 8,557 47,307 60,529
807,345 373,602 332,926 1,513,873
707,657 7,636 28,360 743,653
(14,825) (722) (8,741) (24,288)
(1,300) - (5,258) (6,558)
_ - (1,423) (1,423)
(354) - (257) (611)
691,178 6,914 12,681 710,773
(12,759)
698,014
22,668 153 571 23,392
- - (19) (19)
(489)
720,898
(114,706) 304 (5,173) (119,575)
601,323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

. 1 Ve Dl [ ek
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 mEEr ()
(b) Analysis of consolidated balance sheets (b) & OF& E B AEEN T
Hong Kong Overseas
BE y:SBYN
HK$’000 F7& 7T HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$°000 F7/& 7T HK$°000 F& 7T
At 31 December 2019 7420194612 A31 H
Segment assets and liabilities 2 2EER & F
Total assets &= 2,458,660 323,307 356,354 3,138,321
Investments accounted for using the equity method &R A AR Z & 10,376 = 8,168 18,544
Additions to non-current assets () JEREE E 21N O 29,940 482 8,289 38,711
Total liabilities & & (225,634) (36,376) (110,675) (372,685)
At 31 December 2018 74201812 A 31 H
Segment assets and liabilities 2 EER & &
Total assets BEE 2,662,367 225,606 283,112 3,171,085
Investments accounted for using the equity method R A A BRZ8E 12,708 = 7,473 20,181
Additions to non-current assets ) JERENE 7 2 1L 0O 11,086 857 41,285 53,228
Total liabilities 22 & & (82,769) (27,289) (36,800) (146,858)
Ul In this analysis, additions to non-current assets exclude investments accounted for using the equity method, financial ‘” AOHH FRDEEZENTEERESZEARZIRE - LAAEBEENE
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets. BESHTAHMGERENEREENECHMERNEE -
(c) Revenue (c) WA
The analysis of revenue by category is as follows: REREZHBRADHMOT :
2019 2018
HK$'000 F 5T HK$000 F3& 7T
Sales of products $8&E M 1,376,421 1,453,344
Service income ARIEURA 55,963 60,078
Royalty fee income fa h {5 FA & Uk 25 248 451
1,432,632 1,513,873
(d) Information about major customers (d) AEFEEFNER
For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue from three (2018: three) customers each accounted for more HZE2019F12A31BLLEEE  KE=ZF(2018F : =ZR) BFHWAZER
than ten percent of the Group’s total revenue. These revenues are attributable to the Hong Kong segment and EEBARABSZTULE - ZERARBE B BRAIEAS B - REZEEP
the PRC segment. The revenues from these customers are summarised below: AR T -
2019 2018
HK$'000 & 7T HK$'000 357t
Revenue from: BRE LT AU A :
— Customer A ZF A 323,589 258,672
— Entities under the control of the ultimate holding company ™ (Note 28(a))
BRAERATEHNERE O (MEE28() 204,024 214,187
— Customer BEF B 140,204 160,531
667,817 633,390
o It represents a group of entities under common control considered as a single customer. m EZHAREHN—HER  RAE—&FF -

There are no customers of other segments individually accounted for ten percent or more of the Group’s total BZE2019F12A31ALFEE  Hito BHMEEF (2018 F : &) ERMEARE
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil). EARANBES ZTHRUL -

[
S

7 3 Sof

Rl i g g 3

)
S
S

EC e S I




N
(=3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SrERERL(H)
(e) Information about geographical areas (e) 7 B 3wk i) R}
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. An analysis of revenue from external customers and non-current KAFANEBEE - AEEARMBESINREANMAEFZRARFERBEEN
assets of the Group by geographical area is set out below: DHMAT :
(i) Revenue (i) WA
2019 2018
HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 T & 7T
Hong Kong &8 790,165 807,345
PRC 303,662 373,602
Macao 2 168,121 157,415
Australia 8 X F 58 52,311 56,226
Canada & X 37,042 39,172
Singapore N 23,773 24,488
New Zealand #7745 20,029 19,798
United States <] 20,599 14,767
Other countries EfthEl = 16,930 21,060
1,432,632 1,513,873
(ii) Non-current assets? (i) FE B & aE @
2019 2018
HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 & 7T
Hong Kong & & 267,804 245,136
PRC A 1,991 1,656
Macao ZF9 68,232 46,437
Australia A F 35 51,217 35,038
Canada & X 17,558 6,676
New Zealand %7 75 & 14,455 3,975
United States %El 10,074 20,092
Europe BUM 15,617 16,703
Other countries EftE = 9,094 1,408
456,042 377,121
" The geographical location of revenue is analysed based on the location where goods are sold and services are M BARFIEBIREEE mRIBERBAELDMN -
provided.
@ IRDEERBESNERBEZEENMEMRISEHRETE - XOHM
@ The geographical location of non-current assets is analysed based on where the assets are located or held. In FERBEEABTEERES EARZRE - UAREBERER it
this analysis, the total of non-current assets excludes investments accounted for using the equity method, HEHT AEMGEWRENEREENELEMESHEE - /T‘
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets. E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(f) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following liability related to contract with customers:

Contract liabilities — Service income &R & & — RIEUA

The Group has not recognised any contract assets related to contract with customers as at 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018.

There is no significant changes in contract assets and liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2019.

(g) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities in the year related to carried
forward contract liabilities.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities at 1 January A1 81 BCHERENEERE BN A

T fF B 2 e i e

5 b ERH(H)
(f) BL% P & A B B & R

FEECRRAUATHEHEFSREBRNEEMAR

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
201912831 H 2018 12 A 31 H

HK$000 T HK$’000 F3&7T
2,159 4,935

A2019F 12 A31 BM20185 128310 ' AEBABRIAEEFAEAEENS
BEE-

BE2019F 12831 BILFE  AREENAEAREEARE -

(g) CLmEd Y S [ R A B YA

TERAFRFECHANESRAEERERANBRATHEFESREEABENT
AZH -

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
20194612 H31 H 201812 A 31 H

HK$’000 T# 7T HK$’000 T & 7T
2,812 4,430
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

6 EXPENSES BY NATURE 6 IR BB 3Z
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F/& 7T

Cost of inventories sold (Note 19) HE&FE K7 (FfFE19) 341,585 363,372
Employee benefit expenses (Note 7) & & & FIB8 X (HizE 7) 215,323 201,448
Operating leases payments L& HE(SR - 86,713
Expenses relating to short-term leases 45 #iFH & & 27,259 =
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities (Note)
RHENREER (TEEEREEEE) () 986 -
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments (Note 14) T8 {7 48 & 10 & 7018 # 85 (FiEE 14) - 543
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) &2 & E#i 88 (FizE 16) 11,797 6,558
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14) £ EZEETE (fizE 14) 51,313 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 15) #13% - = & :R&EITE (KizE 15) 16,133 23,745
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 26) tHE¥)% - BE - & f& 2 E518 (K5 26) 2,067 774
Impairment loss on inventories (Note 19) & 2B AR (FizE 19) 7,180 1,423
Write-off of inventories (Note 19) 17 & #fiim (Ffi5E 19) 307 611
Loss allowance on trade receivables (Note 20) & 5 FEUWFIE 2 B {E TR (FiFE 20) 3,400 -
Auditors’ remuneration 4% Sl &

— Audit services # ZBRS 6,596 4,413

— Non-audit services JEZZ IR 455 295
Research and development fff 3% 13,512 18,546
Net exchange gain [ 3 Y25 558 (240) (1,727)
Promotion and advertising expenses E& K B4R X 12,351 29,546
Legal and professional expenses AE N E#B 5,454 5,352

Note: Variable lease payments represent the amounts which are calculated based on percentages of revenue generated by certain
retail outlets that exceed their fixed rentals. Mz TREENREEREETEEFEENBRARBILTEABEEBEHEN S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

7  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 7 REWAMZ  SFEFHE
EMOLUMENTS
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F/& 7T
Salaries, wages and bonuses & + TERTEAL 190,560 176,206
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Rk & K48 — EZEHEFRET 2 12,171 11,678
Other benefits EAth &7 12,592 13,564
215,323 201,448
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) LAREHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include two (2018: two) AEEFANEEESHTALTEEMAL(2018F : ML) ES - HB S MM
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 8(a). The emoluments paid or @)D PFRM - FRENREMBRT =L (2018F : =) ATHWEESWT :

payable to the remaining three (2018: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2019 2018

HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 &7t

Basic salaries and other benefits £ 4 & E & 2,392 1,009
Bonuses fE4L 1,869 3,365
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk &M A~ — EZEMH KT 132 18
4,393 4,392

The emoluments fell within the following bands: MENFUTER :

Number of individuals A £

2019 2018
Emolument bands i< 23 &
HK$ & 7T 1,000,001-HK$ & 7t 1,500,000 3 5
HK$ 7% 7T 1,500,001-HK$ & 7T 2,000,000 - 1
(b) Senior management’s emoluments (b) =S BIM4E
The emoluments paid or payable to senior management (including the one who resigned as senior BZE2019F12A31ALFEENSENSREEAS (BFER2019F10 8
management in October 2019) for the year ended 31 December 2019 fell within the following bands: BEN—ESREBAB)NMENFUTEHE :

Number of individuals A £

2019 2018
Emolument bands €25 E
HK$ 7 7t 0-HK$ & 7t 1,000,000 1 _
HK$ 7% T 1,000,001-HK$ & 7t 1,500,000 2 3
For the year ended 31 December 2019, no emoluments (2018: nil) were paid by the Group to any of the five BZ20195 12831 BLEE A5XEYREOEEBRSHFALTZIAEATHM S
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of (20185 ' &) » ERAWMSIEMARMAAEEFNRBIBRBHE  FTEES

office, and no arrangement under which any of the highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any of FALHESRDZHREEAHENZHE -
the emoluments.
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6

ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HE W9 & S b i BRI B e ) 5 R )
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) HHEWE

The remuneration of every director for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out below:
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

ERES(FERAARAREFARLHE) RHEBEMIARERNHE

Employer’s

contribution to a
retirement benefit

HZE2019F K%2018F 12 A31 HEFENAQRTZESEHFMOT ¢

Salary and Discretionary scheme
Year ended 31 December 2019 other benefits bonuses EExZEBKE
HE2019F 12831 HLFE s HERHAER BigEA sl
HK$’000 T & T HK$°000 T & T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T & T HK$°000 F & T
Non-executive Director I {TEE
Mr. Mei Qun® #8554 ) - - - - -
Executive Directors HI{TEE
Ms. Ding Yong Ling® T k¥ 2+ @ - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Huan Ping® iRJ/&F 4@ - 827 917 57 1,801
Ms. Lin Man & &+ - 815 917 57 1,789
Independent Non-executive Directors & JEH1TEE
Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & &% 5% 5t 4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen R4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Ngai Chi PR %% 5tr 55 4 240 - - - 240
720 1,642 1,834 114 4,310

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
ERES (FERADRREFATRLE) RUHBRFEMZFREWNEE

Employer’s

contribution to a
retirement benefit

Discretionary scheme
Year ended 31 December 2018 bonuses EExZERKRE
#HZE2018F 1231 ALLFE 2k BB TEAL St
HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$’000 F7& 7T HK$’000 F &t HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$’000 &7t
Non-executive Director I {TESE
Mr. Mei Qun® #8554 O - - - - =
Executive Directors H{TEE
Ms. Ding Yong Ling® T k¥R &+ @ - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Huan Ping 3R/ 554 - 715 1,002 1,725
Ms. Lin Man M2 &+ — 715 1,002 1,725
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTESE
Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & %5 54 240 - - - 240
Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen IR 5E4E 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Ngai Chi BR %% 5th 7t 2 240 = = - 240
720 1,430 2,004 16 4,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8§ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
o Mr. Mei Qun was retired from the non-executive director of the Company on 11 March 2019.
@ Ms. Ding Yong Ling is also the Chief Executive of the Company.
® Mr. Zhang Huan Ping is also the Chief Executive of the Company with effect from 18 April 2019.
No directors of the Company waived or returned any emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office as a director.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefit under a defined benefit scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
No payment was made to any directors as compensation for the early termination of the appointment during
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’
SE€rvices
No payment was made to the former employer of any directors for making available the services of them as a
director of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors
There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

9 FINANCE INCOME, NET

9

T fF B 2 e i e

8 HHAM ax AL (A (A R RG] (5F 622%) 58
383k Je v v] (R H H A s EORE) MBI (5 622G EH)
AR B 99 i M L TR B B B ) (48)

(a) M5 (4]

—

L WEHAER2019FE3 8 11 BREADAFHNITES -
@ TXERLZENRBRATARSITHAS °
@ RHRTPEEBE2019F4 18R ABERATABRSTHAE ©

AABRAUBEEHRARBETANE - AKETFEOESAEAME - FR
WEIMAEE RBREMASRBRFEDBEREE -

IR IRAE A

FEERNALBSAHBNESRAERN  FREARUAQXILEMNBELEH
B ERAE MR 2 P55 (2018 F : ) ©

o EHRAE A

FEEAWEAESZAEAMNE - FRERASENERAEE (20185 1 &) -

WAL 58 =07 \ B % 3 = MBSO AT A AR

AEERTERNERIE = FAEAR AN ESMEINAZSEAERNFETIN
RIB (20184 : &)

B %%?}jfﬁélfk% HHBABEEZ EX - BEXK
VA B HoAth 22 5 #H B &

AFERANYEESE EELHOE ZEZEWUERENR EERUREMI
SHHEBEM (2018F : &) -

HERAEREEFT LM S ~ RHSA F P E R

AEEARFER  AEERESITEASRAEEZEEMA LA 2ESRE
BREBEEATHEEEAREZEERS R HAER (2018F : &) °

2
%

0 B WA

2019 2018

Finance income BF#5 U=
Finance costs 81§ 1

— Bank borrowing /715 &
— Lease liabilities FHE & &

Finance income, net j® B 7§k %

HK$°000 % T HK$000 Fi&7T
43,415 23,392

@) (19)

(4,204) -

39,208 23,373
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 10 ZEEREARZHE
(a) The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows: (a) REHEEAFRBERHSHWT :
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HK$000 F 3 7t HK$'000 58 7%
At 31 December 1A12 B 31 H
Joint ventures & & % 18,544 20,181
(b) The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as follows: (b) W E PR R MR AT

2019 2018
HK$’000 T T HK$’000 F7& 7T

For the year ended 31 December EiZ12 B 31 HILFE
Joint ventures & & {3 (1,972) (489)

Interests in joint ventures (c) REBMEEIMES

The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint ventures. The following table analyses, in AEBEEETREITEANGELCENES - TRINMEAEESHEZSE
aggregate, the movement of the carrying amount of the Group’s interests in these joint ventures, and its share AELENREZREEZDNELZECELENES HFESRa REIE -

of results, other comprehensive income and commitments of these joint ventures.

2019 2018
HK$’000 T/ T HK$’000 F7& T
At 1 January ®R1 818 20,181 20,766
Share of losses FE{L FE 18 (1,972) (489)
Share of other comprehensive income/(losses) fE{E H bR &%, (E518)
— Currency translation differences & %5 5 {2 =58 335 (96)
At 31 December 812 831 H 18,544 20,181
The Group’s share of joint ventures’ commitments 7~ 55 B FE {5 & & 1> 2R IE 5,283 5,009
Notes: B 5E
(@) The joint ventures are private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares. (a) RELERMART  HROUETIERE -
(b) There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in joint ventures. (b) LUEEHAKEFEaECXERNIERE -
(c) Details of the joint ventures are set out in note 29. (c) SEEFBEHNAME29 -
. . EE N =T e
(d) Interests in associates (d) A=A E 2 R
The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial associates. AEERBETENTEANEE ARNES -
it
2019 2018 =
- A
HK$’000 T /&t HK$’000 F7& T =
At 1 January and 31 December ®1 A 1BR&12 8318 - -
s
Notes: Fﬁ?ﬁ . E
e {54
(a) The associates are private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares. (a) BENAARTRAQT  HRMGOIWBHIGRE 2
=
()  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in associates. (b) UEBALEEMSHEARNEZNITEE-
0 221
(© At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s investment in one of the associates which is still under the process of (c) M2019F K2018F12831H » AKEEMEP —RHBEE QA TAMNKRESFERE
being wound up, was fully impaired. LEEE N R T B o =
(d) In 2019 and 2018, the Group has not recognised its share of loss of one of its associates as its share of accumulated (d EBEAEEEG-—EELZLANEEBEBRNEERNZBE QAR ZRERSE &) —
losses has exceeded its investment cost. R2019F K 2018 FW MERHE(LHEE © hu
F
=
b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

11

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FrAdisc

MERGFTTERBAER16.5% (2018 4F 1 16.5%) IR X REBFEHR - BHE
EEMEARF ARG ERBFIERZ25% (2018 F : 25%) MBL R RHBEIBEFTE
Bt o BAFENREERFRAGH ERRFBEAEECEMEAINRITHEAE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year. PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25 % (2018: 25%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

HK$’000 T & T HK$°000 F7& 7T
Current income tax & HiFT 1558
— Current year N E 109,631 122,326
— Over-provision in prior years £ F Z&HEE (668) (485)
108,963 121,841
Deferred income tax (Note 18) JEZEFF 15 %1 (=T 18) 3,407 (2,266)
Income tax expense Fri5 %z H 112,370 119,575

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using AEERBANBOASHRBEARE A RERABOMEL IR ETHOE

the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows: MEEERMT
HK$’000 T &7t HK$'000 F & 7T
Profit before income tax & F7 15 % 51 FI & 689,222 720,898
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries
218 5 B 3 ) R AR B O B A B R 5 B 2 B IR 112,587 116,791
Tax effects of: AT HIBI#5 S L&
— Income not subject to tax & Fi W & (7,330) (5,681)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A {1%i B8 % 3,829 5,319
— Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised R FRIEIE Fri5H & ENBER A 4,551 4,419
— Withholding income tax on royalty fee from overseas entities BHiS/NE 88 7 F AE R TS 40 309
— Over-provision in prior years 1 & &1{& (668) (485)
— Research and development enhanced deduction ff 925 3% & /9 b H1 %1 28 (210) (1,059)
— Others Efth (429) 38)
Income tax expense FT{§%¢ 112,370 119,575
EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRAER

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted BREXRBADERNATEEAEGRBRUFACRTEERNOMEFTHEGE -

average number of ordinary share in issue during the year.

2019 2018

HK$’000 T3& T HK$°000 F& 7T

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7~ B # A A FE45 FI8 556,118 580,720
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 2 2T Z B IR IEFH9H (T R) 837,100 837,100
Earnings per share (HK$) &R &% G&87t) 0.66 0.69

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per HZE201958 K2018F 1231 ALFE AABRAETHINEZRSG  SREE
share as there were no potential dilutive shares. BHERNBREREF o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

13

14

DIVIDENDS 13 BE

The dividends paid in 2019 and 2018 were HK$795,245,000 (HK$0.95 per share) and HK$159,049,000 (HK$0.19 per
share) respectively. Dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of HK$0.23 per share, amounting to a
total dividend of HK$192,533,000, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting on 12 June 2020. These financial

2019F R2018FE M T 4 I B & Bl £795,245,00058 (& R0.95%8 t ) &
159,049,00078 7T (2 0.1958 L) - BZE2019F 12831 HEFENREER0.23
Bt (RE#%E A 192,533,000 ) SRR DT E2020F6 B 12 HBITHWRRBF

statements do not reflect this dividend payable. ARELRE - ZEVBBRUBRUZESTRE -
2019 2018
HK$’000 T & 7T HK$’000 & T
Special interim dividend paid of HK$0.72 (2018: HK$Nil) per ordinary share
ENEREBRISRITERE0.728 T (20185F : T T) 602,712 -
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.23 (2018: HK$0.23) per ordinary share
EEREREBERARIKRE0.23787T (20184 : 0.23787T) 192,533 192,533
795,245 192,533
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14 fEIREE
Leasehold land Buildings Total
HE L g¥ A%
HK$’000 T 77T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T & T
At 1 January 2019 74201941 A1 H - - -
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2(b)) #R44 & 78 B 75 3R & 22 Bl 55 16 5% (FIEE2(b)) 100,807 122,017 222,824
At 1 January 2019, as restated X 20191 818 > it 100,807 122,017 222,824
Additions & 10 = 23,620 23,620
Modification £2& - (421) (421)
Depreciation charge (Note 6) #r & 3z H (Fff5E 6) (2,668) (48,645) (51,313)
Currency translation differences & % 5 2 Z 48 - 347 347
At 31 December 2019 A 2019412 531 H 98,139 96,918 195,057
(a) The total cash outflow for leases, including the payments made in relation to lease liabilities and expenses (a) 2019FREERENRSREATH78,2240008 7% AEUAEE/IES S
relating to short-term and variable lease payments in 2019 was HK$78,224,000. UK EREENRBEM TR EESRE -
(b) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for (b) A< 45 [ ) L 65 06 B % L ot e B

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and retail stores. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed AEEHEAZERAE ERNZESH HECRBEREEHMR 6@A
periods of 6 months to 10 years, but may have extension options as described below. Z10E7E  BEUHEETXAMMNERRERE-

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. HEMRETSEAENER LETER LTS TENEAFGRL - 1
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that ERBRTEEEHEARENHELEENERAEZINEMTRY - HEEE
are held by the lessor. Leased assets must not be used as security for borrowing purposes. TERERERER -

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a store. For BoEHENECSHEHNEEREHAN TSI RERR - HRSEH
individual stores, variable lease payments are calculated based on percentages of revenue generated by BHEN N ERRESE R BHEEHeNE XL MEBA DL ER -
certain retail outlets that exceed their fixed rentals.Variable lease payments that depend on sales are REHEEEENITSHENRECBEZSIRENREZENBTTAE
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs. & e

FEEEAEFHEHEESEHERRENKLHERER  UWEAEEKE
FANEEEETAGAREHMRSBELENEENE - ARES AN EA
BERNMKLIHERERENAEETE  MIFRERNHBATRE -

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective
lessor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018 12 A 31 HILFE
Opening net book amount H3#)1R ElF &
Additions 3 il
Disposals (Note 26(b)) & (FffzE 26(b))
Depreciation charge (Note 6) T &% H ({5 6)
Currency translation differences &% i =48
Closing net book amount i 5K i /& &
At 31 December 2018 X 2018412 A 31 H
Cost 2
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2337 & K& Fi{E
Net book amount iR & FHE

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F 12831 HILLFE
Opening net book amount, as previously reported A% 1 & 7F &
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2(b)) Fr 48 & 78 B 15 3R & 2 B 25 16 5% (K 2(b))
Opening net book amount, as restated HA ¥ IR E FE @ Eilt
Additions 3 il
Disposals (Note 26(b)) && (7 26(b))

Depreciation charge (Note 6) #TE X H (F{5E6)
Currency translation differences &% i # =58

Closing net book amount £ K i /% {&

At 31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H
Cost 2N
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 257 & K& Fi{E

Net book amount ik F{E

Freehold land
and leasehold land

15 W3k - R Kt

T P B B A M

held under
finance lease Furniture
KAFREL R Leasehold Plant and and Motor
RERMEREMN Buildings improvement machinery equipment vehicles
BFENHEE L B¥ HEYHEHE N BREKRHRE AE
HK$’000 F3& T HK$’000 & 7T HK$’000 F3& T HK$’000 F7& T HK$’000 & T HK$’000 T3t HK$000 T T
103,649 104,250 28,491 10,443 15,891 831 263,555
32,806 5,614 5,009 2,689 6,055 177 52,350
- - 717) ) (58) - (784)
2,127) (3,054) (10,555) (2,445) (5,267) (297) (23,745)
(755) (2,456) (1,232) - (595) (35) (5,073)
133,573 104,354 20,996 10,678 16,026 676 286,303
146,731 132,196 84,342 55,729 38,296 3,151 460,445
(13,158) (27,842) (63,346) (45,051) (22,270) (2,475) (174,142)
133,573 104,354 20,996 10,678 16,026 676 286,303

Freehold land
and leasehold land

held under
finance lease Furniture

KAFERE L Leasehold Plant and and Motor
REREREMN Buildings improvement machinery equipment vehicles
FENHEELH B HEMEEE B E KRR RERRE AE

HK$’000 F3& T HK$’000 F3& T HK$’000 & T HK$’000 F3& T HK$°000 F& T HK$’000 T 7T HK$’000 T 7T

133,573 104,354 20,996 10,678 16,026 676 286,303

(85,342) - - - - - (85,342)

48,231 104,354 20,996 10,678 16,026 676 200,961

- - 3,565 4,160 3,973 812 12,510

- - (927) - (1,138) (110) (2,175)

- 3,117) (6,865) (1,326) (4,540) (285) (16,133)

82) (267) 138 - (79) @ (294)

48,149 100,970 16,907 13,5612 14,242 1,089 194,869

48,149 131,913 69,630 59,889 38,686 3,791 352,058

- (30,943) (52,723) (46,377) (24,444) (2,702) (157,189)

48,149 100,970 16,907 13,512 14,242 1,089 194,869
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowing is secured by a freehold land and building amounted to HK$10,536,000
(2018: HK$10,913,000) (Note 24).

Depreciation expenses were charged to the consolidated income statements as follows:

2019 2018

Cost of sales $5& A
Distribution and selling expenses 7 $5 & $5 €51

General and administrative expenses —f& & 1T BB =

No impairment loss on property, plant and equipment was charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the years ended at 31 December 2018 and 2019.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The net book value of the Group’s intangible assets is analysed as follows:

At 1 January 2018 A 20181 81 H

Amortisation (Note 6) ##H (3 6)

Currency translation difference &% 5 2 = 55

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R 2018 12 B 31 H& 20194181 H
Amortisation (Note 6) ##4 (HizE6)

Currency translation difference & ¥ i 2 = 25

At 31 December 2019 #2019 12 A 31 H

Note:

Other intangible assets represent customer relationships, a management contract and an exclusive supply contract.

Impairment test for goodwill

The Group recognised a goodwill of HK$49,419,000 in 2015 as a result of the acquisition of the equity interest in
Honour Essence Trading Limited, which is principally engaged in the distribution of Chinese medicine products in
Hong Kong. The goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing to this Honour Essence Trading Limited CGU
within the Hong Kong segment.

Goodwill is monitored by management at the operating segment level. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
goodwill arising on acquisition is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (“CGU”) within the Hong Kong
segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined by management based on value-in-use calculation. The key
assumptions adopted in the value-in-use calculation are based on management’s best estimates and past
experience.

The value-in-use calculation is based on a five-year financial budget approved by management, with five-year sales
growth rate ranging between -7% to 12% (2018: 1% to 5%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). A pre-tax discount rate of 16% (2018: 16%) is used
which reflects the specific risks relating to the relevant operating segment.

T fF B 2 e i e

15 W3k - s Kt (41)

20195128318 » RITHEFKUIKEE10,536,00058 7T (20184 : 10,913,000/ 7T)
HKAEBET B REFEDIER (MEE24) -

REHFRBERPIFAFERZIWT ¢

HK$°000 T3t HK$’000 F 38T
4,094 5,348

7,729 11,757

4,310 6,640

16,133 23,745

2018 R 2019 FEXBMBENRENREHRERN —BRITBEIZIPFA -

B E

FEENETEENREFEINOT ¢

Other
intangible
Goodwill assets
5k Hi B\ EE
HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 &t
49,419 29,582 79,001
- (6,558) (6,558)
- 44 44
49,419 23,068 72,487
- (11,797) (11,797)
- (21) (21)
49,419 11,250 60,669

BisE

HthBEREENAEFHE SEARARBRHEAR -

[k SRR
AEER2015FHNBRACESERAR(HEIZXEKANEBRESHPEER) IF

BAEBER49,419,0008 T - BERIBMERTEBIBARESZBERLANREE
B P EATRUE R, o

a1

EHEEEKEINEEENEE - ATHENSNEN  BHECIREFAKE TR
HWEANCHENREELEMN -

REELEUNTHRSHREEERBECABENEEEMEE - AREELAE
ENERBRRREREERNGREMTNRENERMEE

FRABEFERENEEEEBNAEVREE - AFHHEEEREL —T%E12%
(2018 : 1% to 5%) - EFH B M BBEIEA3% (2018 : 3%) M EHIER R
WE o FTAZHABIREE16% (2018 : 16%) * RMABE D245 ERM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) represents a Hong Kong listed equity
security which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. This is a strategic investment which is not held for trading and
the Group considers this classification to be more relevant. Its fair value is analysed as follow:

At 1 January A1 A 1H
(Loss)/gain recognised in other comprehensive income (E518) /RISt AR H iR & Wi
At 31 December 12 B 31 H

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets IE(EFTSHEE

— Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions 1% BRI 535 & Frif s AR FR SR B &
Deferred income tax assets, net FIEIE TSR & &
Deferred income tax liabilities 3EFEFTSHi & (&

— Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to set-off provisions 1% BB 3K $418 E FTIK SE VIR Fr BB &
Deferred income tax liabilities, net SFEFEFri5Hi & 1&
Deferred income tax, net JEIE FT5 5 & = /F 58

The net movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows:

T fF B 2 e i e

17 DAy s w2 L5 Bt ALt 5 5 W 2% 1Y 4
B

UAABEFEEESZDF AEMGERENSREEAUBAENETBLT A

B BREBUERERITZUERIS  FAEERARE—2HEERE - HAAE
BEIHAT :
2019 2018
HK$’000 T T HK$°000 F %t
15,468 15,318
(4,485) 150
10,983 15,468

18 JELE RT3 HL

BRIEFFEHEERBENDIFTOT -

2019 2018
HK$'000 F3& 7T HK$’000 F 37T
28,829 11,851
(19,892) -
8,937 11,851
(25,268) (4,874)
19,892 -
(5,376) (4,874)
3,561 6,977

RIEFFSHARE FE2HMNT ¢

At 1 January 1818

(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (Note 11) (318), 3t A &SR =R (HizE11)
Currency translation differences & ¥ 5 i = 28

At 31 December 212 A 31 H

2019 2018
HK$000 T3 7T HK$’000 F 3%t
6,977 4,713

(3,407) 2,266

(9) @)

3,561 6,977

B bk TT 30 S0 =

s
i

=

N
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18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 18 IRAE P13 B8 (4H)
The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ETZRER-—BBEREEBRAEREENERT  ELEMESHEEREGEEHOT ¢

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Unrealised profit
resulting from
intragroup

Accelerated transactions
accounting EERBRS
depreciation EEW Provisions Lease liabilities Total

RS TR R BB T e HESE L

HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$’000 F7& 7T HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$’000 T8 T
Deferred income tax assets EEFTEHEE

At 1 January 2018 R 2018418 1H 56 9,076 - - 9,132
Credited to the consolidated income statement 5+ A & iz & 34 2,697 - - 2,731
Currency translation differences & % 5 2 = 28 6) (6) = = (12)
At 31 December 2018 74201812 531 H 84 11,767 - - 11,851
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2(b)) £48 % 78 B 7% 3 &5 % Bl 58 16 5% (= 2(b)) = = = 23,819 23,819
At 1 January 2019, as restated X2019F1 818 ' £E% 84 11,767 - 23,819 35,670
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (318 ), 5t A & Uz & (5) (4,286) 1,045 (3,650) (6,896)
Currency translation differences & # i Z 48 3 (1) (7) 60 55
At 31 December 2019 74201912 H 31 H 82 7,480 1,038 20,229 28,829

Accelerated
tax Right-of-use

depreciation assets

DB IR I B EHAEEE

HK$’000 T8 T HK$’000 T8 T HK$°000 T8 7T HK$’000 T8 T
Deferred income tax liabilities JEZEFTEH & &

paywi Auedwo) auoipaly asauly) Buel usy Buo] Bullleg

At 1 January 2018 72201841 A 1 B (3,983) - (436) 4,419)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (31 8), st A & #fUk & (569) - 104 (465)
Currency translation differences & # 5 i =8 10 - = 10
At 31 December 2018 X 201812 31 H (4,542) - (332) (4,874)
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2(b)) £R48 7 78 B 7% 3 25 2E Bl 55 16 5% (T 5E 2(b)) - (23,819) - (23,819)
At 1 January 2019, restated A2019F1 810 » &RE%| (4,542) (23,819) (332) (28,693)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (18 ), st A &SRR (870) 4,027 332 3,489
Currency translation differences & #5 7 i = 48 (6) (58) - (64)
At 31 December 2019 X 20194512 531 H (5,418) (19,850) - (25,268)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related WA BBRRERBFBLREEREEE AR EFEAERIRECHMERE i;
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of EoAEBEU R AAEUIKERREZRB W E M E 72,646,000 T (2018 F - H
approximately HK$14,805,000 (2018: HK$13,703,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately 72,021,000 70) BRIEL TS B & E 414,805,000 7T (2018 £ © 13,703,000 78 =
HK$72,646,000 (2018: HK$72,021,000) at 31 December 2019 that can be carried forward against future taxable Jt) o BRFIE E518 22,288,000 %8 T (2018 & : 30,263,00078 7t ) 1 2020 £ 2039 F B
income. These tax losses have no expiry dates except for the tax losses of HK$22,288,000 (2018: HK$30,263,000) BEZIH (20184 1 2019 E 2038 FHEIH) » ZEREFBABEHAH -
which will expire between 2020 and 2039 (2018: expire between 2019 and 2038). &
]
The Group did not recognise the deferred income tax liabilities of HK$3,756,000 (2018: HK$3,652,000) in respect of 20195128318 » AEBE W ERE THE D RRAEEZEF75,121,000/8 7t (2018 ﬁ%
the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries amounting to fF 173,049,000 ) s REMN 2RMBIEZIELFRSH A 163,756,000 T (2018 %
HK$75,121,000 (2018: HK$73,049,000) at 31 December 2019, as the Group can control the dividend policies of % 13,652,000 7T)  WIHANEBRAZEHELNBEARNREBEK  LHEEBELEXR
2 these subsidiaries and these unremitted earnings will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. FENFBISETERNRRIE - 933
hu
F
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 INVENTORIES

T fF B 2 e i e

19 #H&

2019 2018

Raw materials B A1 %}
Work in progress £ &
Finished goods and trading merchandise & K & 5 & MW

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$348,331,000 (2018:
HK$363,372,000) and the impairment loss on inventories and write-off of inventories included in the “general and
administrative expenses” and “distribution and selling expenses” amounted to HK$7,180,000 (2018: HK$1,423,000)
and HK$307,000 (2018: HK$611,000) for the year ended 31 December 2019, respectively.

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 T 7T
180,964 118,586

14,038 8,056

123,185 117,893
318,187 244,535

BZE2019F12A31MBLFE BRAABEIAFATHERNEL I NEFEREAR
348,331,000 7t (2018 % : 363,372,00087t) » st A —MRITHAX | R [ 28
FEERZ I NEFERETIEREFEMES % 7,180,000% T (2018 F : 1,423,000
#7t) % 307,00078 7T (20184 : 611,000787T) ©

20 B 5 e Wosk E B FL At i 8 5

2019 2018

Trade receivables & 5 FEUFIIE
— fellow subsidiaries & Z i & 2 7]
— joint ventures & %
— associate ¥ A 7]
— third parties =7
— loss allowance (Note d) JE{E3E %k (FfzEd)
Trade receivables, net T & 5 FEURFRIE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 {3518 K H b FE g 5518
Deposits #Z &
Amount due from a joint venture (Note b) FEUR & & 27018 (MizEb)

Notes:

(@) The fair values of trade receivables and other currents assets approximate their carrying amounts.

(b) The amount is repayable on demand, unsecured in nature and bears no interest.

(©) Retail sales at the Group’s stores are usually made in cash or by debit or credit cards. For wholesales to distributors (including

fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate), the Group normally grants credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 days.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date (including amounts due from
related parties of trading in nature) is as follows:

HK$'000 F &7t HK$'000 F#&7T
155,912 74,576
1,993 9,465
3,439 911
155,050 91,973
(3,351) =
313,043 176,925
24,112 36,227
18,993 22,223
1,114 1,114
357,262 236,489
Mk -
@ ESBEUREREGABEENAAEEREETERS -
(b) ZREFRSRESHEE BEFREL o

() AEEZEXBBEURS BIFREAFET ARMBETFIHEE (BERRKN
BAR  GELERBEQARAMS  AEEEERENEEHA30E90H -

~
I

0-90 days 0 £ 90 X

91-180 days 91 X £ 180 X
181-365 days 181 X £ 365 X
Over 365 days 365 K LA £

M2019F K2018F 12 A31H REXZABMNES BN E(BEREKEESHN
BERE)NREDTOT :
2019 2018
HK$’000 T3 7T HK$’000 T8 7T
220,595 138,079
31,397 29,121
50,616 8
13,786 9,717
316,394 176,925

[
S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. This resulted in loss allowance amounted to HK$3,351,000 (2018: Nil) for trade receivables
as at 31 December 2019. Please refer to note 3(a)(ii) for details about the calculation of the allowance and the Group’s
exposure to credit risk.

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

2019 2018

Loss allowance as at 1 January X1 81 BiR{EEX

Loss allowance of trade receivables for the year & 5 FEUFRIE 2 R{EFHE
Exchange difference [ 5 Z %

Loss allowance as at 31 December A 12 A 31 AR {EIE %k

(e) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables and other current assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018

Hong Kong dollar &7t
Renminbi A R#&

United States dollar 7T
South Korea won 87t
Australian dollar &t
Euro BT

Canadian dollar fl7T
Other currencies Hfth & #

) At 31 December 2019, the Group does not hold any collateral as security (2018: Nil).

20 B 5 e Wk E B LAt it 0 5 ()

MiEE - (&)

(d)

(e)

)

T fF B 2 e i e

AEBRBEBMBERESENFIORNE LA AN ERBEREL  DEMBEEFE
WHRERRZEFEHNARIBARE - R2019F12A310  EENEZRRR
B8 K155 3,351,000/8 7T (2018 : &) o MizE 3(a)(ii) AP ET ENFAB R -

M12A310 - ESEWRIAEZREN RERNE S BUEZREF ROBRNT !

HK$’000 F % T

3,400

(49)

HK$’000 F8 7T

3,351

AEENESRWAREREMABEENREBNUTIE

WETE

HK$'000 T % 7T HK$'000 F 7T
162,068 113,632
175,361 87,326

8,022 22,677
2,643 2,497
2,478 3,935
1,181 1,027
1,103 1,010
4,406 4,385
357,262 236,489

FEBENESEEMERRERER (20185 1 &) -

T 30 5ot =

Yt = ok

23 at

N
[S)]
N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

P
21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 21 Ble RRAT AR
2019 2018
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F7& 7T
Cash and cash equivalents & R IREZEEY
— Cash at bank and on hand 81T R EFRE 415,763 442,881
— Short-term bank deposits with original maturities within three months IR & =18 B 5 LA 2 S HISR 1T 1E 640,948 106,950
1,056,711 549,831
Short-term bank deposits with original maturities exceeding three months REARR & =18 8 M & 2 12 HRR 1T 17 5% 911,655 1,715,609
Total # 5t 1,968,366 2,265,440
At 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits included balances of MR2019F12A31H AEENRERREZEEVUREIRTERERE
HK$69,382,000 (2018: HK$52,336,000), which were deposits with banks in the PRC. The remittance of such 69,382,000/ 7T (20184 : 52,336,000/ 7T) » ZEREBEHEHERZBITNFR ©
balances out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC BREEHRERTEASHEBAERHIEEH KRR ERESE -
government.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are denominated in AEENReRESSEYUREHRITERNVIREAEATHESE !

the following currencies:

2019 2018
HK$’000 T & 7T HK$’000 &7t
Hong Kong dollar &7t 1,787,197 2,102,778
Renminbi A R#& 60,470 54,143
United States dollar 37t 27,736 12,453
Singapore dollar N4 7T 23,529 22,563
Canadian dollar ji Tt 21,152 19,319
Australian dollar J2 T 21,056 17,564
Macao pataca J2F9Jt 11,322 15,289
Other currencies Hfth & #& 15,904 21,331
1,968,366 2,265,440
22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 A

Number of shares Share capital
RHEE &N
HK$’000 &7t

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid 2 21T & 8 2 Z &R
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 A 2018 £} 2019412 A 31 H 837,100,000 938,789

[
S

7 3 Sof

Rl i g g 3

N
(9]}
O

EC e S I




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

23 RESERVES 23 fitifhd

Merger Statutory

reserve reserve
(Note a) Other (Note b) Exchange
EERE reserve
B S A

Retained
earnings

fREE W as

SOt reserves

(FfzEa) Hitbf# R (Fif=Eb)

HK$'000 F#&7T HK$000 F#ET HK$000 F#T HK$000 FEIT HK$S000 F#ET HK$000 FiET

paywi Auedwo) auoipaly asauly) Buel usy Buo] Bullleg

N
N
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At 1 January 2018 7420181 A1 H (13,124) 2,360 6,229 (6,512) 1,565,150 1,554,103
Comprehensive income 44 W&
Profit for the year & & /58 - - - - 580,720 580,720
Other comprehensive losses Hfth 424 & &
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UAREEFEEEEH T AEMSERENEREEANEBEED - 150 - - - 150
Release of exchange reserve upon liquidation of a joint venture —f& & ¥ ER M E 2 [E L HE - - - 1,703 - 1,703
Currency translation differences &% X & =58
— Group A&£®E - - - (10,693) - (10,693)
— Joint ventures & & % - - - (96) - (96)
Total comprehensive income %R & 54 48 - 150 - (9,086) 580,720 571,784
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners S EZFIEEUEFIEEN G R ETHR S WAL
Dividends paid (Note 13) B {1 B (Fff5E 13) | - = = = (159,049) (159,049)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners B2z FIEE UHMMEEN BN ETHNR S WEE - - - - (159,049) (159,049)
At 31 December 2018 }A2018 12 A 31 H (13,124) 2,510 6,229 (15,598) 1,986,821 1,966,838
At 1 January 2019 74201961 A1 H (13,124) 2,510 6,229 (15,598) 1,986,821 1,966,838
Comprehensive income &4 W&
Profit for the year & ;& - - - - 556,118 556,118
Other comprehensive losses E 47 & &8
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
DARBETEEHEHFTARMGENENEREEAAEBEES - (4,485) - - - (4,485)
Release of exchange reserve upon liquidation of a joint venture — & & (258 M B B 2 B X f#1H - = = (961) = (961)
Currency translation differences &% 7 & =28
— Group A5E - - - (1,888) - (1,888)
— Joint ventures & & % - - - 335 - 335
Total comprehensive income %R & N4 58 - (4,485) - (2,514) 556,118 549,119
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners BRI EEUEFEEN BN ETHR S NALEE
Dividends paid (Note 13) B {42 2. (FffzE 13) = = = = (795,245) (795,245)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners B2 FIEEUEFEEN S HETHR S A - - - - (795,245) (795,245)
At 31 December 2019 }A2019% 12 H 31 H (13,124) (1,975) 6,229 (18,112) 1,747,694 1,720,712 it
=
Notes: Bt 2 B
=
(a) Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the net book value of the entities that had been acquired and (a) AEENEHFEEERBERNREFEERNATAR2010FETEAMZH ﬁ
the investment consideration paid by the Company to effect a reorganisation that took place in 2010. REREBEHWERE -
(b) The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to (b) FEEERERBAE  EHREEMNQARARKRETEADRABER  BRSBEE 5
be appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their respective FHEREFAEMOFANBORBEUATEENRTBER) T 2BERBEBUERET i3]
statutory financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for specific EREB FMBEEREBEHABEARMRYL - FELAARDIKEFENKRBETE A
purposes. PRC company is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory reserves, upon distribution of its B ARZEREIEZEFANENI0% - EQAREZERENANBBEIMER Al
post-tax profits of the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory H50% 8 AAAFLEDE - AZERBRUAERBATNERER  BXQATANEE
i0 reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the EENEMARANER - i RBRESERER > AAUEAEBRBETEDE 241
companies, to expand the companies’ production operations, or to increase the capital of the companies. In addition, a ERBIELE DMK -
company may make further contribution to the statutory reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of =
the board of directors. =z
h
F
F
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24 BORROWINGS 24 158

Note Fff & HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F7& 7T
Non-current 3£ B)
— Secured bank borrowing B IEfERTE K (@-(c) = 54
— Unsecured government loan #4518 Bt fF{& 5% @ 833 999
Total non-current borrowings 3ERBIfEEAZE 83 1083
Current 57 &
— Secured bank borrowing HIE R TE K (@-() 54 -
— Unsecured government loan 35 8 B fF (£ 5% (G) 166 166
Total current borrowings REIMEE#E 20 166
Total borrowings & & 448 1,053 1,219
Notes: BiaE
(@)  The bank borrowing is secured by the freehold land and building of the Group amounted to HK$10,536,000 (2018: (a) SRITERBAREEA10,536,000 7T K K X E#E L it & 42 F MK H (2018 F :

HK$10,913,000) (Note 15). 10,913,000 7t) (M55 15) °
(b) The bank borrowing bears interest at 1.5% plus the bank bill rate in Australia per annum and is wholly repayable in 2020. The (b) BITERRBAFEMNRITEBREZMI5%RFFTE » L HIBITERER2020F
Group has HK$7,602,000 (2018: HK$7,691,000) undrawn borrowing facility with floating rate expiring beyond one year. ZEpEE - NEEAE 7,602,00078 5T (20184 : 7,691,00058 7t ) R B AR 2 B Al =
BEHEEINPREABRE—F -

(c) The bank borrowing is denominated in Australian dollar and its carrying amount approximates its fair values. (c) RITEEURTHE  BHEMEEAABEEE -
(d)  The government loan represents a fund from Macao Economic Bureau under a special assistance scheme for small-medium (d) BNERARMKERZSRESER/ NEESHNEDTETHRIE  LESERSE

corporations affected by typhoon. The interest free loan is unsecured and repayable in 7 years. The loan is denominated in
Macao pataca and its carrying amount approximates its fair values.

ERWFR7FAMEE  ERURMTHE  BEAREERQAAEBERES -

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 ® 5 R H AR 30

2019 2018

HK$’000 T3 7T HK$’000 F & 7T
Trade payables & 5 FE{I 5/ 18

E:Dj; — intermediate holding company A 32 % 2 &) 26,287 13,727
3
< — immediate holding company B 12 % A &) 7,554 6,792
(o]
3 — third parties £=7 32,068 31,196
By
e Trade payables (Note a) & 5 FE+ 7118 (HfzE a) 65,909 51,715
_{ a =
3 Accruals and other payables FEsTE F K H i B+ 5118 74,764 62,361
g Contract liabilities 5B & & 2,159 4,935
2 142,832 119,011 °
@ i
= &
Q =
S
3 ¥
Q
E| b
3 5
C R
3 a
a A
242 243
> =
= =z
c
S _
E A
S F
S F
© £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 25 B 5 R AbREA FOH (4)

Notes: Mt -

T fF B 2 e i e

(@ At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the aging analysis of the trade payables (including amounts due to the related parties of
trading in nature) based on invoice date is as follows:

(@) M2019FK2018F12A31H  RERFHBNESRAIRR(BEREMBEELN
EZRR)NREDFAOT :

HK$’000 F7& T HK$’000 Fi& 7T
0-90 days 0 £ 90 X 59,702 43,439
91-180 days 91 X £ 180 X 1,050 237
181-365 days 181 X £ 365 X 308 7,485
Over 365 days 365 K LA £ 4,849 554
65,900 51,715

()  The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies: (b) FEBESRHEMEMRENREENATIEETE:
HK$’000 F 7% 7T HK$000 Fi#& T
Hong Kong dollar &7t 69,805 56,170
Renminbi A R#5 37,709 31,813
United States dollar 7t 9,606 1,885
South African rand EI3ERI4S 5,455 7,766
Australian dollar 27t 5,864 5,235
Canadian dollar A7t 4,324 4,954
Singapore dollar A0 7T 1,984 2,348
Other currencies H b # 8,085 8,840
142,832 119,011

26 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

26 A HFB iR B R M
(a) KEBPTAEELZBIE

HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F& 7T
Profit before income tax Bk 5% 5 A 689,222 720,898
Adjustments for: FLUATEEH AR :
— Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments (Note 6) T {48 & 0 & FRE # §Y (MizE6) - 543
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 6) E FEEETE (KizE6) 51,313 -
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) #13% - = & R T E (MizE6) 16,133 23,745
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 6) #E i, & = # 8 (K3 6) 11,797 6,558
— Impairment loss on inventories (Note 6) 17 & 2 R{ERTIE (KizE6) 7,180 1,423
— Write-off of inventories (Note 6) 175 f##$5 (M7 6) 307 611
— Loss allowance on trade receivables (Note 6) & 5 FEUWFIE 2 B T2 (M3 6) 3,400 -
— Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) tHEY % « BiE K &6 2 &8 (Kizt6) 2,067 774
— Dividend income B FU & (195) (165)
— Finance income, net (Note 9) JH#E1 75Uk 25 (KftzE9) (39,208) (23,373)
— Share of loss of investments accounted for using the equity method (Note 10)
iR EARZIRERE (M 10) 1,972 489
— (Gain)/loss upon liquidation of a joint venture —RE& & t¥ER > (F1E) FiE (961) 1,703
743,027 733,206
Changes in working capital: B & &2 5
— Inventories 7 & (82,288) (16,757)
— Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 FEWRFRIE R H R B E &= (133,902) (20,841)
— Trade and other payables & 5 & H b fE 518 30,318 15,249
Cash generated from operations & & fiE4A 2B & 557,155 710,857
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26 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

26 £ i B G i B B i (4)
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i6

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment comprise:

2019 2018

(b) g%’rﬁéiﬁﬁ%* - HEWSE - W Kkt T Ak OH

HK$’000 T & 7T HK$’000 F & T
Net book amount (Note 15) BRI E(E (Fff3E 15) 2,175 784
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) tHEYI % - BiE K &6 2 & (Kizt6) (2,067) (774)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment &% « B E K& R EFT1S708 108 10

(c) Reconciliation of cash flows from financing activities

U]

Tl B T A W B O A

Borrowings Lease liabilities
-t HEAE
HK$’000 T 77T HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 F7& T

Liabilities from financing activities as at 1 January 2018 R=Z— \F— B —HRETBHNER 605 - 605
Proceeds from borrowing & & FT155% 1,165 - 1,165
Repayment of borrowing & & & & (522) - (522)
Foreign exchange adjustments [& i 7% (29) = (29)
Liabilities from financing activities as at 31 December 2018, as previously reported
R-E-N\F+ZA=+—-HREITBNEE 1,219 - 1,219
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2(b)) FR4NE 78 B 75 3R 2 2 Bl 55 16 55 (5 2(b)) = 121,081 121,081
Liabilities from financing activities as at 1 January 2019, as restated
REZB-NF-A-BRETHNEE KE 1,219 121,081 122,300
Principal elements of lease payments ¥ & & B4R & 22 = (45,775) (45,775)
Interest paid 24FFI & ()] (4,204) (4,207)
Repayment of borrowing BE{EE (166) - (166)
Acquisition of lease Bl E - 23,620 23,620
Others® E A 0 3 3,783 3,786
Foreign exchange adjustments [E 57 382 - 317 317
Liabilities from financing activities as at 31 December 2019 R=—ZE— " FE+-A=+—HRBEZTHHNEE 1,053 98,822 99,875

Other changes include accrued interest expense and lease modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

27 COMMITMENTS 27 R
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAHKIE
2019 2018
HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 F7& T
Contracted but not provided for © 5] #{8 Kk 2%
— property, plant and equipment #13 - &= K& % & 3,811 2,627
. =3
(b) Lease commitments (b) & A&
From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except for short-term H2019F1 A1 R AEECHAELAEAFEFRAEEE  UTHHEZES
and low-value leases as set out below: REEBEHEERIN
2019 2018
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F7& 7T
No later than 1 year 1 E A 3,403 58,222
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 1 2L E & 5F AR - 50,331
Later than 5 years 5F X £ - 4,990
3,403 113,543
As at 31 December 2019, undiscounted future lease payments amounted to HK$13,021,000 are committed by R2019F 12831 H  AKEEHEITEHRBAKATHE XN HESRHBEAN
the Group but the relevant lease periods have not commenced. These lease commitments will be recognised AITEEESFREH13,021,0008 ¢ - LB ERES T 2020 FHE RSB
as right-of-use assets upon the lease commencement date in 2020. HEHEIRERAREE -
28 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EABB TR S
At 31 December 2019, two subsidiaries of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong MR2019F12A31 B B-EEEARANWENEARBCENBERECERGER
Ren Tang Ltd. directly owned 38.05% and 33.62% of shareholding in the Company respectively. Tong Ren Tang NAD B EEFEAR AT 38.05% K% 33.62% - I-_ERHBERAATERCE
Ltd. is also the controlling shareholder of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. effectively owns 71.67% BENERRR -BCEROVERAIBDEREFEARADT71.67% KR - 88T 28.33%
equity interest in the Company. The remaining 28.33% of the shares are widely held. HIRDEEZESE -
The Board of Directors of the Company regards Tong Ren Tang Technologies as the immediate holding company, AARESERECENRAEEEZRAT  RACERGERLTAFEERAAR
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. as the intermediate holding company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings as the ultimate holding BLEEEARARERERAR  ZE DRGNP EZEMAL
company, all of which are companies incorporated in the PRC.
In addition to those disclosed in other sections of these consolidated financial statements, the following transactions REEEHTBRREMEGTABEEEN > THXZHEEESET
were carried out with related parties:
N 14 oy =
(a) Sales and purchases of products (a) 98 K E AR
2019 2018
Note Fff&E HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F7& 7T it
Sales of products to $HEEm T /E
Joint ventures & & 3% @) 7,135 18,297 -
Fellow subsidiaries [5 2 [{ & A &) (i) 204,024 214,187 2
An associate B A &) (i) 4,328 2,378
215,487 234,862 B

=)

2019 2018

paywi Auedwo) auoipaly asauly) Buel usy Buo] Bullleg

el

. Note FfizE HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 T8 7T 249
Purchases of products from BLL T AR EEmM
Immediate holding company B 12 % 22 7] U] 31,445 35,847 ;
Intermediate holding company B2 iR 2 7 (i) 81,690 87,561 -
Fellow subsidiaries [5 % f} & 2 & @i 857 1,606 n
113,992 125,014 i
k3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

28 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 28 FERBAW TR 5 (%)
(b) Royalty fee (b) il R ] 22

2019 2018
Note Fff&E HK$°000 T 3% T HK$’000 F & 7T
Royalty fee income from joint ventures & B & & % = @ 26 FA B (ii) 248 451
(c) Rental expenses (c) MAPZ
2019 2018
Note i &F HK$°000 T3 T HK$’000 F &7t
Rental expense to: MU T AR XS 2HE/MXE ¢
Ultimate holding company & #4518 A 7 (i) 558 287
Fellow subsidiaries [& % f{ B 2 & 0] 4,401 4,356
4,959 4,643
(d) Key management compensation (d) FEEEHANEHM
Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) and senior management. The emoluments FTEEBAEBEREUTRIVTEENSREEAE - REERBOTEZEE
paid or payable to key management for employee services is as follows: AEXNRESHHMESWT :
2019 2018
HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 F7& T
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits & ME M HHEERA 7,834 8,060
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk & KA — EEEERTE 287 129
8,121 8,189

Notes: B &E -

anr

ZER SR —REBBRPREL W ENERRKRET -

(i) These transactions were conducted in the normal course of business at prices and terms mutually agreed between the (i)
parties involved.

(ii) The royalty fee is charged annually by the Company at predetermined rates ranging from 1% to 3% on revenue of its (i) MEEAEBDALARAREREERARGEUBSABEN FRESEOEEE
joint ventures in accordance with the royalty agreements. From 1 January 2019 onwards, the charging basis changed WA 1% E3%RFWE - H2019F 1 A1 BB RER  WBEERAS
to higher of 1% on revenue and 1.5% on profit before income tax of the joint ventures with other terms of agreements EREEZWAN 1% MBEAABEN15%NEERER  EtiHERrREST
remain the same. Pursuant to these agreements, these joint ventures are allowed to trade under “Tong Ren Tang” B REZEHE ZECECEEEUIACEIREBREBRS -
brand name.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS G F 5 e R B

29 FHEMEAFAMGERE
TXEHN2019F K 2018 F 12 31 HNEEMBATMELE % -

29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries and joint ventures at 31 December 2019 and 2018:

(a) Subsidiaries ffi/& 2 7

(i) Directly held by the Company A2 A E#EEE

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity
AP B 3L F 3t B

Principal activities

Place of operation
T i 2

Particulars of issued
share capital

BRITRAFE

Effective equity interest held
iEsi 13 3

2019 2018

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International PRC, limited liability Sale and distribution of Chinese medicine Beijing, PRC HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd. company products and healthcare products HE bR 10,000,000 7T
TRECEERERERAROO HE - ERAE HERDEHEERERRER
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Australia Pty. Ltd. Australia, limited liability ~ Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine Sydney, Australia AUD1,000,000 75% 75%
TRECE BAFE)BRAF company products and healthcare products and BARE - B 1,000,0002 ¢
BAFIE - BRAHE provision of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments
MERTEPEERERERARREM
hEDERE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Science Arts Singapore, limited liability Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine Singapore SGD857,000 51% 51%
(Singapore) Co Pte. Ltd. company products and healthcare products and 33 857,000 1 3 7T
L RECEFH R (R MABRAF g - BRAE provision of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments
MBERTETEEREARRRURREMY
REDBRIRS
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Toronto) Inc. Canada, limited liability Retail of Chinese medicine products and Toronto, Canada CAD497,300 51% 51%
TRECE (ZRE)ERAF company healthcare products and provision of mex 2w% 497,300 & KT
meEX > BRLE Chinese medical consultation and
treatments
ZETEERERRRURRRABIRRE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Canada Co. Ltd. Canada, limited liability ~ Retail of Chinese medicine products and Vancouver, Canada CAD1,000,000 51% 51%
TRECE(NMEX)ERAR company healthcare products and provision of mER > BEE 1,000,000 lIE A T
mEX > BRAHE Chinese medical consultation and
ey treatments
= ZEREEREARRRREHPEDERE
3
a Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC United Arab Emirates, Retail of Chinese medicine products and Dubai, United Arab Emirates AED1,920,000 51% 51%
fibj TRECESEERATF limited liability company  healthcare products and provision of MAREAERE BF 1,920,000 f B¢ B s 1 18
) MR AKSERE Chinese medical consultation and
< BRAH treatments
= ZETEERERBRRREHPEDRRY n
% =
ES Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Macao, PRC, limited Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine Macao, PRC MOP1,000,000 51% 51% G
s Company Limited liability company products and healthcare products and HE] - R 1,000,000 7t =
i TRE{CE (R ERAE FE R BRAE provision of Chinese medical consultation
S and treatments gfé
8 MBRTEPEERERRRRIEM +
c YRR 5
3 7
g 5
252 253
z -
g z
<3 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 29 BEMHE A F ARG ()

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Place of incorporation quit
Place of operation share capital FrisRpRRE L

and kind of legal entity
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(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) KB 2 7 (&)

A B L 9 3

(i) Directly held by the Company (Continued) &2 B H 55 (&)

Principal activities

BEn

B RITRAFHE

2019

2018

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Poland sp.zo.o. Poland, limited liability Retail of Chinese medicine products and Warsaw, Poland Zloty130,000 100% 100%
L RECE (KB BRATE company healthcare products and provision of RE o ED 130,000 Z &2
BHE > BRAF Chinese healthcare treatments
ZETEERARRRRREHPEDERY
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Seoul) South Korea, limited Wholesale of Chinese medicine products and Seoul, Korea WON1,052,000,000 51% 51%
Company Limited liability company healthcare products BE B5F 1,052,000,000 8 7T
TRECE (B/) RSt BE  ARAF MBPEERERER
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) New Zealand, limited Retail of Chinese medicine products and Auckland, New Zealand NzD2,000,000 51% 51%
Company Limited liability company healthcare products and provision of A BRRl 2,000,000 $FA R T
TRECE (RR#E)ERAR HHEE BRAE Chinese medical consultation and
treatments
ZETEERERBRRREHPEDRRY
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong Le Hong Kong, PRC, limited  Retail of Chinese medicine products and Hong Kong, PRC HK$10,000 100% 100%
Company Limited liability company healthcare products and provision of HE - BB 10,0008 T
L RECZEROELEERA R HE B BRAE Chinese medical consultation and
treatments
ZEPEERERRRKRADEDERE
Honour Essence Trading Limited Hong Kong, PRC, limited ~ Wholesale of Chinese medicine products and Hong Kong, PRC HK$2,000 51% 51%
REESHERDF liability company healthcare products HE BB 2,000 7T
HE &8 BROE HBEPEERERED
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Vancouver Canada, limited liability ~ Retail of Chinese medicine products and Vancouver, Canada CAD750,000 51% 51%
Healthcare Center Co., Ltd company healthcare products and provision of mex - BEE 750,000 I KT

TRE-ERFEREFVERAT

nex > BRAT

Chinese medical consultation and
treatments

ZEREERARRRNRERDEDERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Er 0 B B i R B

29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 29 BEMHE A F ARG ()

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Place of incorporation A
Place of operation share capital s ERER

and kind of legal entity
B L9 1 B Principal activities Ry O R T IR S 4 2019 2018

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) KB 2 & (&)
(i) Indirectly held by the Company A2 AIE#iE%E

paywi Auedwo) auoipaly asauly) Buel usy Buo] Bullleg
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Beijing Tong Ren Tang Melbourne Australia, limited liability ~ Retail of Chinese medicine products and Melbourne, Australia AUD100,000 38% 38%
Pty Limited company healthcare products and provision of BAFIT  BFEAK 100,000 27t
TRECE (REAR)BRAR BAFE  BRATR Chinese medical consultation and
treatments
ZETEERERBRRREMTEDRRYE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pudu Health The Netherlands, Retail of Chinese medicine products and Den Haag, the Netherlands Euro650,000 45% 45%
Centre B.V. limited liability healthcare products and provision of il =T 650,000 & T
TRECEEERETOBRAR company Chinese medical consultation and
fd - BRAR treatments
ZEPEERARERRREHTEDERE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Czech Republic SE The Czech Republic, Retail of Chinese medicine products and Prague, Czech Republic CZK3,296,400 45% 45%
LRECE (ER)ERAE limited liability company healthcare products and provision of R Wik 3,296,400 12 7 72 B
En BRARF Chinese medical consultation and
treatments
ZETEERERBRREMTBDRERHS
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Sweden AB Sweden, limited liability ~ Retail of Chinese medicine products and Stockholm ,Sweden SEK50,000 45% 45%
LTRECE (HR)ERAE company healthcare products and provision of IR BB RE 50,000 %7 48 572 B
- BRAR Chinese medical consultation and treatment
ZETEERERELRRHEPED RRY
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Swiss SA Switzerland, limited Provision of Chinese medical consultation Geneva, Switzerland CHF500,000 45% 45%
TERECERLRHERAT liability company and treatments &t BHAR 500,000 3 £ 3486
It BRAF REHEDRRS
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Ming Qi Group, LLC United States, limited Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine New York, United States US$200,000 60% 60%
TRFECEREERARF liability company products and healthcare products 2E - #/%0 200,000 £7T
XE  BRAF HERTETEERERRER
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Concord United States, limited Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine New York, United States US$800,000 51% 51%
New York LLC liability company products and healthcare products and =68 #8 800,000 =7t
TRFCEGNARABRAE ZE - BRAA provision of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments
MERTEPEERERRRURRMY it
BYREH =
Al
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles United States, limited Retail of Chinese medicine products and Los Angeles , United States US$600,000 51% 51% Lj
Healthcare Center LLC liability company healthcare products and provision of EERp Y 600,000t
T RECERVRERROERAR =B BRAR Chinese medical consultation and -
treatments 5
FEPEERERRERELTBDRRY .
N
Beijing Tong Ren Tang United States, limited Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine Los Angeles , United States US$600,000 51% 51% Al
(San Gabriel CA) LLC liability company products and healthcare products and E3ERDY 600,000 37T
6 TRERECE(ZEBNMN ERAF 6 BRAF provision of Chinese medical consultation 257
and treatments _
MBERTEPEERERERARRMR =
BORERE -
n
&
F
®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

@

)

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity
SEB A L K3 B Principal activities

(b) Joint ventures & %

(i)

Directly held by the Company &2 T H###&H

Peking Tongrentang (M) SDN. BHD® Malaysia, limited liability ~ Retail of Chinese medicine products and
LTRECE(F) BRAR® company healthcare products and provision of
BRAR  BRAF Chinese medical consultation and
treatments

ZETEERERRRARRRTEDERE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co., Ltd.?  Thailand, limited liability ~ Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine
TRECE (RE)ERATO company products and healthcare products and
Z=E BRAF provision of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

HBERTEPEERERERURRER

hEDERE
Union Health International Limited Hong Kong, PRC, limited  Retail of Chinese medicine products and
REERERAR liability company healthcare products and provision of
HE &% BRAE Chinese medical consultation and
treatments

ZEPEERARRRURRATEDIRRS

The English names of the Group companies incorporated in the PRC represent the best effort by the management of the
Group in translating from their Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

Although the Company owns more or less than 50% of the equity interests in these entities, the directors of the Company
consider that these entities are joint ventures of the Company because their strategic operating, investing and financing
activities are jointly controlled by the Company and the joint venture partners in accordance with the joint venture agreements
rather than under the unilateral control or significant influence of the Company.

The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group.

Registered as a Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise under the PRC Law.

T fF B 2 e i e

29 FEIJE 2w A E A3 (B])

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Place of operation share capital Fris R

Rt

BRITRAFHR 2019 2018

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia MYR1,900,000 60% 60%
BRAZ > ERE 1,900,000 5 #
Bangkok, Thailand THB38,000,000 49% 49%
%=E 8% 38,000,000 Zk
Hong Kong, PRC HK$10,000 50% 50%
HE - BB 10,0008 T

0]

()

RABEEMRINEBEARBERARER  HANEAHBRLAEEEEERETX

BBEEM A
BEARABEZSERZINADN0% RE  EHARRESLEHE  ZSEREY
FREE RERBEZFDUAADARGEBHEARZS  MIRLALTDESIE

EHRBEBEAYE AR RAESARZSEBNLARAGELHE -

FENFZENBARZFERERENMSHEEREEATE -

REFEEZEIMBNIEBERE -
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30 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 30 AHEEAER
Note Fff & HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 &7t
Assets EE
Non-current assets R B EE
Leasehold land 18 & + 1th - 15,465
Property, plant and equipment 42 « = Kk & & 84,690 169,116
Right-of-use assets ff A EE 120,474 -
Investment property & & ¥ 12,074 12,213
Investments in subsidiaries R B2 & 2 & & 278,477 286,179
Investments in joint ventures RE & ¥ 2 RE 26,448 26,942
Investments in associates KRB A 8 2 & 3,930 3,930
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
LAREBESEEESHTAHMGERENERMERE 10,983 15,468
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment BE#1 % - MERRENCS TS 5,447 2,866
542,523 532,179
Currentassets REVEE
Inventories 7 & 217,397 152,906
Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 NGB R HiREEE 394,602 265,687
Short-term bank deposits 52 HA$R 1T 173X 890,420 1,691,613
Cash and cash equivalents 3] & R IR & ZEY 880,747 387,466
... 583066 2497672
Total assets EE#AH 2,925,689 3,029,851
Equity and liabilities #E# K& & &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &2 8] # & A E{L
Share capital f&4< 938,789 938,789
Reserves f# &
— Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UAARBESEAESHTAHMRERENERERE (2,805) 1,680
— Retained earnings 1% & Wi 31 1,772,121 2,011,967
Total equity B4 T840 T 2:952,4560
Liabilities & &
Non-current liabilities 3F7 & &
Lease liabilities HHE & 1& 4,122 -
Deferred income tax liabilities, net JEFEFT S A& » FE 5,210 4,370
e 932 4370
Current liabilities 7 B & {& ;E
Trade and other payables & 5 & H i fE{+ 70 E 75,501 54,222 Al
Lease liabilities 2% & & 18,335 - £
Current income tax liabilities & #i T8 & & 114,416 18,823
_____________ 208262 73045 O
Total liabilites A 217,584 77,415 E
Total equity and liabilities % & & fE# 5 2,925,689 3,029,851 /j%
0 The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2020 and was signed on NENEEEBBRN2020F AU AEESEHE  UHATARESE - 261
its behalf
hu
Ding Yong Ling Lin Man Tk® *E i
Director Director EE BEx £l
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31 RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 31 A wlfEf

Financial asset
at fair value
through other
comprehensive

income reserve

HAREEFEAR

Retained earnings BEGTARLMERS

R E W za KENEREE

HK$’000 %7t HK$’000 & 7T

At 1 January 2018 #2018 1A 1H 1,582,872 1,530

Profit for the year £ E #|58 588,144 -
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

UARBESEEESHHAAMGFERENEREEARBEED - 150

Dividends paid (Note 13) E{FB& B (3£ 13) (159,049) -

At 31 December 2018 2018 12 A 31 H 2,011,967 1,680

At 1 January 2019 7420191 A1H 2,011,967 1,680

Profit for the year £ [ 78 555,399 -
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

UAABENEEESEHHAHMBGSUENEREEAAEEEE = (4,485)

Dividends paid (Note 13) B AFBR B (F5E 13) (795,245) -

At 31 December 2019 R 2019512 A 31 H 1,772,121 (2,805)

32 IR HIH

R2020 F MH A FMEE (COVID-19) ZFEBRER - FERBRBECETILAESE
RR—R5IGEER - ARERAHTERERBBERHASHE  UARESHELX
EER2020F L¥FWH BRI - EEFCHREEETE  USEREEFTFEE -
FEESTINESRBFRRETGEEUBRRNELERENTE -

32 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the outbreak of the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented in the PRC, Hong Kong and Macao. The Group expects the
business in the PRC, Hong Kong and Macao to be greatly impacted and this may potentially affect the Group’s
financial performance in the first half of 2020. Management has taken relevant actions to minimise the unfavourable
impact to the Group. The Group will pay close attention to the development of the epidemic and evaluate its impact
on the financial position and operating results.
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

BEH EHR

INVESTOR CALENDAR

7 August 2019 2019 interim results announcement
24 March 2020 2019 annual results announcement
12 June 2020 Annual General Meeting

8 June to 12 June 2020

Closure of Register of Members (for determination of shareholders who are entitled

BEHHE

201946 8H7H
20203 H24H
20206 A12H
20206 B8HZE6A12H

2019 FHHEIEBE NS
2019 FEEED
BREBFAS

neE

BEMERMBFELTFE(REFREFERRBERS

(Both days inclusive) to attend and vote at annual general meeting) (BEEEMA) WHE EREZRE)
18 June to 22 June 2020 Closure of Register of Members (for determination of shareholders who qualify for 20206 A18AZ6 A22H EERERMBFELFE (BESERRBRPRER
(Both days inclusive) the final dividend) (BEEEMA) B®)
22 June 2020 Record Date (for determination of shareholders who qualify for the final dividend) 20206 A22H A (RESERBERIREMNRR)
On or before 29 June 2020 Payment of final dividend 20204 6 A 29 A Z Al AT REARR B
Y Y
SHARE INFORMATION W R
Company Name Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited AR ERE TRECZEREFRAR
Listing The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited i) BBBEXSMBERD B ER
Stock Code 3613 BRGRHR 3613
GEM Listing Date 7 May 2013 GEM L5 B 2013 5H7H
Transferred from GEM to 29 May 2018 HGEMEZ iR AH 201854 29H
Main Board Date
Lot Size 1,000 shares HEE 1,000 BRKRH
Issued Share Capital 837,100,000 m20193—:12ﬁ 31 H Z 837,100,000?&
as at 31 December 2019 B ERITRA
INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT G A
Room 1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza T (TR 1 5
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong SREEW A A 1405-1409 =
Tel: (852) 2881 7989 B © (852) 2881 7989
Fax: (852) 2881 0839 f#H : (852) 2881 0839
Email: ir@tongrentangcm.com E T : ir@tongrentangcm.com
Website: www.tongrentangcm.com 484t : www.tongrentangcm.com

SHAREHOLDERS SERVICE AND ENQUIRIES

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or address, transfer of shares, loss of share certificates or
dividend cheques, registrations and requests for annual/interim report copies, please contact the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office:

JBe S Ml 5 e 2

BHE BTREEAMSRMUEZTE  ROER BLAREIREIZNEIREZNFE
RHBRE)NER  BHEALRROBERBFE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre EEEFERFKER183YE

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong A EN1TIE1712-1716 3 5

Tel: (852) 2862 8555 EE  (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087 fEH : (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087
Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk B : hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
Website: www.computershare.com FEbl

BRPREFFBLERDA

[
S

TT 30 St

© www.computershare.com
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(CORPORATE INFORMATION

AN g

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ding Yong Ling (Chairman)
Zhang Huan Ping

Lin Man

Non-executive Director
Chen Fei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Zhao Zhong Zhen

Chan Ngai Chi

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan Ngai Chi (Chairman)
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
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(GLOSSARY
]

Articles of Association

Audit Committee
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group

Board
CG Code
Code Provision(s)

Company or TRTCM

Company Secretary

Competition Executive Committee

Competition Supervisory Committee

Controlling Shareholders
Director(s)

EGM(s)
ESG
Listing Rules

GLSPC

Group, we or us

Hong Kong or HKSAR

Annual general meeting of the Company

Articles of Association of the Company

An audit committee of the Company, consists of Chan Ngai Chi, Tsang Yok
Sing, Jasper and Zhao Zhong Zhen, and is chaired by Chan Ngai Chi

Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its
associates (including the Group)

The board of directors of the Company

Corporate Governance Code, Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

Code Provisions in the CG Code

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited, a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong, the shares of which were listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 7 May 2013 and were transferred to Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 29 May 2018

Company Secretary of the Company

A competition executive committee of the Company, consists of Zhang Huan
Ping and Lin Man

A competition supervisory committee of the Company, consists of Tsang Yok
Sing, Jasper, Zhao Zhong Zhen and Chan Ngai Chi, and is chaired by Tsang
Yok Sing, Jasper

Tong Ren Tang Ltd., Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang
Holdings

Director(s) of the Company, including all executive directors, non-executive
director and independent non-executive directors

Extraordinary general meeting(s) of the Company

Environmental, Social and Governance

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Main Board of the Exchange

Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules
manufactured by the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

BRRBFRE

tRECEER

Eg

&a~rhl

il

PRI

RABRE-EEHEE

ERBR

BRERFERAE

R HERER

LR E
WEEZATHBE
REEE R K M

58

RABRRBFRE

ARBREBEREME

RRBZEREES  REBERRH - BEARBEF
¥ - HBRERBLIEEERE

BCEERELR  HNBQE HARZHEE R B
ZA(BEAREHE)

ARAIZESE

LHRAIM 14 TR 2 R EER A

BRF A2 T AKX

ERECEREERAT  —RREBEMRLZBR

AR ERMR2013FE5 7B RBRFIGEM £ »
WHR2018FE 5 B 20 HEFMRArEMR LT

KRB ZHFUTEES  HEBERRTRME

AR ZHFEREZET  HEGEEHER - BPRR
FREREL - HEHEREETRE

BCERD B CENKRECERELF

ARBEEE BEMBYTES  FATESEREY

FUTES

RABRREFEBIARE

BRAERES EHRA

RATFHENEEESHIFHBEE

FREEBRRITHRE

L
S

TT 30 St

18 Mok

i
R

I b E at

[\
(=2}
=}

EHHT W




paywi Auedwo) auoipaly asauly) Buel usy Buo] Bullleg

S
N
(=]

6102 Hodey fenuuy

(GLOSSARY

HK$

INED(s)
Model Code
Macao

Nomination Committee

Non-PRC market
Owned Product(s)

Parent Group

PRC

Prospectus

Remuneration Committee

SFO

Share(s)

Shareholder(s)

Stock Exchange or Exchange

Tai Po Production and R&D Base

TCM
Tong Ren Tang

Tong Ren Tang Holdings or
TRT Holdings

Transfer of Listing

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

Independent Non-executive Director(s) of the Company

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

The Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC

A nomination committee of the Company, consists of Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper,
Chan Ngai Chi and Ding Yong Ling, and is chaired by Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Markets outside of the PRC

The product(s) manufactured by the Group

Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its
associates (other than the Group)

The People’s Republic of China and for the purpose of this annual report,
excluding Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan

Prospectus of the Company dated 25 April 2013

A remuneration committee of the Company, consists of Zhao Zhong Zhen,
Chan Ngai Chi and Ding Yong Ling, and is chaired by Zhao Zhong Zhen

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571

Share(s) of the Company

Shareholder(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The research and development and production base of the Company located
at Tai Po Industrial Estate in Hong Kong

Traditional Chinese medicine

Beijing Tong Ren Tang

China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned enterprise
established in the PRC on 17 August 1992 and is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company

the transfer of listing of the Shares from GEM to the Main Board pursuant to
Chapter 9A of the Main Board
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TRT International Natural-Pharm

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or TRT Ltd.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies or
TRT Technologies

UAE
UK
US or United States

Year

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited, a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC on 18 June 1997, the shares of which have been listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since 1997, and is the intermediate holding
company of the Company

Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC on 22 March 2000, the H shares of which have been
listed on GEM since 2000 and have been transferred to the Main Board since
July 2010, and is the immediate holding company of the Company

The United Arab Emirates

The United Kingdom

The United States of America

Fiscal year from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
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Where the English and the Chinese texts conflict, the English text prevails.
MERAANBNMERE - BLAESRAAEEE -

This Annual Report is printed on environmentally friendly paper
AERURRERDE
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